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FOREWORD BY THE EXECUTING AUTHORITY 

The 2016/17 fiscal cycle marks the fourth year of the fifth term of Administration 
after receiving a clear mandate from the people that we should continue to 
govern the country in May 2014. In full appreciation of this mandate, the 
OTP, as the leader of government business, set out a clear plan as codified 
in the Provincial Development Plan as well as the Medium Term Strategic 
Framework. This was further broken down into critical milestones that needed 
to be achieved on an annual basis and reflected in our State of the Province 
Address and the Premier’s Budget and Policy Speeches. 

In the year under review the OTP made bold pronouncements to pursue 
good governance and an effective public service delivery through uniting and 
facilitating synergy between the activities and interventions of government, 
business, labour and civil society to ensure a concerted and cohesive drive 
towards our Vision 2030. The implementation of the newly adopted Intergrated 
Service Delivery Model, which we have named Operation Masiphathisane, 
has been accelerated and several engagements with various stakeholders 
and communities have been undertaken and are ongoing. 

The repositioning of the OTP to ensure it plays a central role in planning, 
governance and accountability alongside coordination is complete. To this 
end, the department is pleased to report that its strategic plan as well as 
the service delivery model have been finalised and its implementation 
underway. We continue with our efforts to strengthen accountability in the 
province through leadership pledges, signing of service delivery agreements 
by MECs as well as SMS performance agreements, starting with HODs 
and DDGs. Subsequent to entering into these agreements/contracts the 
Provincial scorecard was employed as a means to provide a holistic picture 
in tracking performance. 
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In the year under review we focused on improving our ability to coordinate 
and intervene, where necessary, in service delivery bottlenecks in the 
Province. We continue to provide hands-on-support to the Departments 
of Education and Health. In the main, our interventions has resulted in 
the much improved compliance levels on human resource management 
matters. Given the sizes of these departments and the challenges they 
face, sustained efforts are still required to ensure that they fully achieve a 
turn around. Interventions on small town development were also pursued 
and finalisation of support plans by the Province are at an advanced stage. 
Efforts to reduce the provincial wage bill through the strengthening of the 
Provincial Coordination and Monitoring Team (PCMT) were implemented 
and this has resulted in the streamlining of Annual Recruitment Plans of 
departments. 

The achievements stated above could not have been possible without the 
unwavering support of the Executive Council, the Provincial Legislature, our 
Portfolio Committee, Audit Committee, Management and staff of both the 
OTP and its entity, the Eastern Cape Socio Economic Consultative Council 
(ECSECC). It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report for the 2016/17 
for the Office of the Premier.

Hon. P. Masualle     
Premier and Executing Authority
Date: 22 Septemeber 2017
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A1 Report of the Accounting Officer A1.1 Overview of the operations of the Department 
With its role being about inculcating good governance and effective public 
service delivery, the Office of the Premier (OTP) continues to strengthen its 
operations in all its areas. The following are operations that the Department 
implemented during the course of the financial year:

Programme 1: Administration 
Programme 1 is tasked with the provision of strategic leadership, management 
and support services to the Premier, effective and efficient secretarial services 
to the Executive Council (EXCO), financial management, management of 
strategic priority projects, as well as the provision of corporate services to 
the Department. 

The Cabinet Secretariat is a key administrative unit of strategic leadership 
and coordination. The Secretariat supported the cabinet committees and 
provincial management structures in order to integrate planning, improve 
accountability and align decision-making processes, while facilitating the 
sharing of information and promoting sound intergovernmental relations 
(IGR). The Secretariat supported all EXCO meetings, cabinet committee and 
cluster meetings and provincial management meetings that were conducted 
in the year under review.

The OTP remains committed to the improvement of communications with all 
stakeholders and the people of the Eastern Cape. The key areas of focus 
are to ensure continuity in the reputation management initiatives which 
showcase government service delivery achievements in various platforms, 
such as publications.  

In an effort to reduce the cost of litigation, the Provincial Legal Services 
continued with assisting departments. The Department strengthens the 
efforts of litigation management with emphasis on monitoring and trend 
analysis aimed towards identification of the areas of risk.
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The Special Programmes Unit (SPU) was fully integrated into the OTP, and 
this strengthened its oversight role on the transformation agenda relating 
to vulnerable groups. The Department has also led in mainstreaming 
and ensuring social inclusion of children, youth, women, older persons 
and persons with disabilities; and championed and monitored the 
implementation of international, regional, national and provincial directives, 
strategies and policies. Awareness raising and outreach initiatives were 
also coordinated in this regard. These included quarterly, annual and once-
off community dialogues and campaigns on gender-based violence (GBV), 
women’s health and harmful cultural and traditional beliefs.

The Youth Unit was established, and it initiated and supported strategic 
youth programmes, monitored and evaluated youth programmes across 
government departments, and also championed skills development and 
placement of youth in workplaces.
 
Programme 2: Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 
During the department’s 2016/17 transition towards a repositioned OTP, 
and as complementary services in the delivery of its main purpose, the 
programme incorporated the IGR and GIS functions into its operations. 
The reconfigured programme achieved some significant strides over the 
period under review in its aim of leading evidence-based decision-making 
towards integration.  

Reporting excellence: The programme spearheaded and coordinated the 
production of the Eastern Cape Provincial Administration’s mid-term report 
which outlined the fifth administration’s provincial performance against its 
electoral mandate. Eastern Cape was the first province to submit a 5th 
administration mid-term report to the DPME. The DPME lauded the quality 
of the Eastern Cape mid-term report and referred all other provinces to 
meet that report’s quality and format as a standard for their own mid-term 
reports.   

Integrated service delivery: Following the Premier’s launch of the Operation 
Masiphathisane initiative to drive integration, the programme coordinated 
the development of the Masiphathisane war room model, and led the 
establishment of identified war rooms in 21 municipalities across the province. 
 
To amplify the Masiphathisane approach towards integrated service delivery, 
the programme spearheaded the use of GIS mapping as a visual planning 
tool on spatial referencing to complement provincial and municipal Integrated 
Development Planning (IDP) processes. The resultant outcome of our 
integration efforts produced a Programme of Action that harnessed national 
and provincial specific outcomes which informed the direction of the provincial 
budget to be utilized more significantly whilst reducing inefficiencies.

To consolidate these positive gains, we strengthened accountability, oversight 
and reporting through improved functionality, alignment, coordination and 
reporting frameworks of the Provincial three Cluster System Structures with 
the related Working Groups.

Promoting accountability and service excellence: During 2016, the provincial 
executive adopted a balanced scorecard – as the official tool and instrument 
used to assess provincial performance of sector departments. The 
assessment process enabled the Premier to engage with MECs and their 
accounting officers. The scorecard assessments process also informed the 
2017 MTEF process in which the OTP partnered with the provincial treasury. 

Credible planning and resourcing: Credible planning and resourcing is a 
function of evidence-based decision-making, the programme became a 
standing member in the 2016 MTEC process to influence alignment of plans 
with budgets. To strengthen evidence based decision making, the programme 
developed a web-based research repository to build government’s business 
intelligence. To this end sector departments have not used scientific means 
to develop credible plans. Hence this research repository will assist in closing 
this gap. 
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Exemplary responsiveness: The programme designed the province’s 
response to electrification hotspot areas and informed the responsive 
projects to be resourced in this regard. This enabled the subsequent 
launch of the Amacwerha substation which will service 6 wards.  

Together with these performance highlights, the programme aims to 
strengthen its internal capacity and integration in order to achieve optimal 
impact within the organisation as well as for the province. Through 
enhanced integration of government programmes, the programme 
believes the province will be well situated to absorb any adverse effects of 
pervasive fiscal constraints. 
 
Programme 3: Institutional Development and Organisational Support

The purpose of this programme is to manage the administration of the 
public service system and promote accountable governance by providing 
institutional development and organisational support (IDOS) services. In 

the year under review, the focus was on the management of recruitment to 
improve efficiency.

The programme promoted the quality of organisational structures in provincial 
departments by providing ongoing support to the departments. There was 
also continued coordination of outcome 12 by this Sub-Programme through:
1) Coordinating quarterly reporting to the Governance and Administration 

(G & A) Cluster;
2) Communicating and evaluating compliance with legislation and 

determinations pertaining to the public service administration;
3) Strengthening the recruitment and development of senior management 

services (SMS) by ensuring compliance with compulsory directives 
on competency assessments and capacity building by government 
departments.

A1.2 Overview of the financial results of the Department

Departmental receipts

Departmental receipts

2016/2017 2015/2016

Estimate
Actual
amount 

collected

(Over)/Under 
collection

Estimate Actual
amount 

collected

(Over)/Under 
collection

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Sale of goods and services other than capital assets 153 169 (16) 146 175 (29)

Interest, dividends and rent on land 6 0 6 6 - 6

Sale of capital assets 41 330 (289) 39 283 (244)

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 77 3 74 73 180 (107)

Total 277 502 (225) 264 638 (374)
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The Department generates its revenue from the collection of commissions 
on insurance and related salary deductions, sale of tender documents, 
sale of capital assets and collection of the previous year’s debts.

For the period under review, the Department has over collected against 
its revenue target by R0,225 million. This is as a result of R0,003 million 

collected from financial transactions in assets and liabilities, R 0,169 million 
collected from the sale of goods and services other than capital assets, 
and R0,330 million collected from the sale of capital assets. The assets 
were either redundant or had reached their useful life, and were disposed 
of by means of an auction resulting in the revenue collected.

Programme expenditure 

Programme name

2016/2017 2015/2016

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/ Under 
expenditure 

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 249 061 245 749 3 312 378 567 367 002 11 565

Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 122 896 108 732 14 164 113 437 107 052 6 385

Institutional Development & Organisational Support 155 662 151 822 3 840 179 668 170 832 8 836

Total 527 619 506 303 21 316 671 672 644 886 26 786
 
 
Please note that, in the 2015/16 financial year, the Department operated with 
four programmes. In the 2016/17 financial year, Programme 4: Executive 
Support Services was disestablished and its functions integrated into 
Programme 1 and the then Programme 3 (which is now Programme 2). For 
further details of this change, please refer to the annexure on changes to the 
strategic plan.

In the year to date R506,303 million (96%) of the total budget was spent 
against the budget of R527,619 million. This represents an under-expenditure 
of 4% (R21,316 million) for the 2016/17 financial year. The deviations per 
programme are provided below: 
Administration underspent by R3,312 million mainly attributed to delays in 
filling the replacement of vacant posts.  
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Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation underspent 
by R14,164 million mainly due to delays in filling replacement of vacant 
posts. Goods and services under expenditure is mainly due to delays in 
the signing of the service level agreement for youth related projects.   

Institutional, Development and Organisational Support underspent by 
R3,840 million mainly attributed to delays in the replacement of vacant 
posts not being filled.

Virements/rollovers 

Programme
Adjusted appropriation Virements and shifting Final 

appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 232 386 16 675 249 061

Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation 133 554 (10 658) 122 896

Institutional Development & Organisational Support 161 679 (6 017) 155 662

Total 527 619 - 527 619

Virements were effected in the budget adjustment estimates utilising the 
savings from other programmes to defray the cost pressure within the vote. 
The virements were mainly funded from Programme 2 and 3 to address 
the shortfall in the budget as follows:
	Catering for departmental EXCO outreaches, legal services, 

consultants, advertising and operating activities.

Rollover requests for the 2016/17 financial year were submitted to the 
Provincial Treasury (PT) for the broadband for the Province, agricultural 
youth projects, oceans economy and human resources (HR) study 
amounting to R20 million.

Unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
The Department incurred irregular expenditure amounting to R8,3 million, 
of which R4,4 million is a carry-over from the 2015/16 financial year relating 
to deviations from procurement processes. The Department also incurred 
wasteful and fruitless expenditure amounting to R2,02 million, mainly to 
value for money was not derived on ICT assets that were procured in 2014. 
These assets cannot be found and therefore no value can be derived from 
them.
 
Future plans of the Department
The Department is reviewing its service delivery model and organisational 
structure. This is an effort to ensure efficiency and effectiveness in discharging 
its mandate.
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Public private partnerships
The Department does not have public private partnerships.

Discontinued activities / activities to be discontinued
The Department did not discontinue any of its functions during the course 
of the financial year.

Supply chain management
The Department has a fully established supply chain management (SCM) 
unit. All the required bid structures were appointed and functioned during the 
financial year. However, the Department is weak in contract management, 
mainly due to a lack of project management skills and the lack of a contract 
manager to assist in monitoring of contracts. These issues are being 
addressed in the skills development plan, as well as through the review of 
the service delivery model and structure of the Department.

Gifts and donations received in kind from non-related parties
The Department’s employees and 30 Eastern Cape top performing 2016 
Grade 12 learners received gifts which are detailed in Annexure 1f of the 
Annual Financial Statements.  The Department also made donations to 
various stakeholders, which include local dignitaries and communities. 
These are detailed in Annexure 1l.

Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury 
No exemptions and deviations were received from the National Treasury.

Events after the reporting date
The Department has closed the Sustainable Rural Development in the 
Eastern Cape (SURUDEC) accounts, and the proceeds were transferred 
to the Provincial Revenue Fund on 19 April 2017.

A1.3 Appreciation 
I would like to acknowledge the entire Office of the Premier management and 
staff for their dedication and support which has ensured the achievements 
reported herein. 

A1.4 Conclusion
The annual report and the financial statements therein have been compiled 
with the purpose of accounting to the citizens of the Eastern Cape. The 
Department commits to continuously striving towards excellence to ensure 
improved service delivery in the Province.

A1.5 Approval and sign-off

______________________
Ms NTM Mbina-Mthembu
Accounting Officer 
Office of the Premier
Date: 31 May 2017
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A2 Statement of responsibility and confirmation of 
accuracy of the annual report

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following: 

	All information and amounts disclosed throughout the annual report 
are consistent. 

	The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any 
omissions.

	The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the 
guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury.

	The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared 
in accordance with the modified cash standard and the relevant 
frameworks and guidelines issued by the National Treasury.

	The Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements and for the judgments made in this 
information.  

	The Accounting Officer is responsible for establishing and 
implementing a system of internal control that has been designed 
to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of 
the performance information, the human resource information and 
the annual financial statements.

	The external auditors are engaged to express an independent 
opinion on the annual financial statements.

In my opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the 
performance information, the human resource information and the financial 
affairs of the Department for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Yours faithfully 

Approval and sign-off

______________________
Ms NTM Mbina-Mthembu
Accounting Officer 
Office of the Premier
Date: 31 May 2017 
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A3 Strategic overview 

A3.1 Vision
Leading development with excellence and integrity.

A3.2 Mission
Coordinating functions of the Provincial Administration through 
provision of strategic leadership in policy development, planning and 
implementation.

A3.3 Values

Value What it means to the OTP 

Excellence

	We promote, recognise and reward excellence in service delivery to all our stakeholders.
	We provide a supportive and affirming environment that enables our employees to reach their full potential.
	We adopt innovative approaches to promote excellence in our institutional policies, structure, processes and systems.
	We are a people-centred and results-orientated organisation.

Integrity

	We commit ourselves to the highest standards of personal honesty and exemplary moral character.
	We behave in an ethical and professional manner. 
	We conduct our activities in an accountable and transparent manner.
	We ensure the integrity of our information, systems and processes.

Reactiveness and 
responsiveness

	We anticipate challenges and deal with these decisively and proactively.
	We respond timeously to the needs of stakeholders. 
	We provide accurate information about government services in an open and transparent manner.



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report23

PART A: GENERAL INFORMATION

Value What it means to the OTP 

Creativity and 
innovation

	We encourage and adopt innovative approaches to promote excellence in implementing government programmes.
	We are a learning organisation that continuously reflects progress to our stakeholders.
	We promote user-friendly processes to fast-track service delivery implementation. 
	We promote sharing of best practices. 

Inclusivity
	We promote inclusivity, ensuring that government is accessible, and promote social justice.
	We recognise and respect the value of consultation in planning and monitoring the work of government.

Professionalism 

	We are living the government promise.
	We are committed to the highest standards of service delivery.
	We use time and government resources effectively and efficiently.

A4 Legislative and other mandates 

The constitutional mandate of the Premier is derived from section 125 of 
the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996. This section provides 
the Premier and the Executive Council the authority over a province by:
	implementing provincial legislation in the province; 
	implementing all national legislation within the functional areas 

listed in Schedule 4, except where the Constitution or an Act of 
Parliament provides otherwise; 

	administering national legislation outside the functional areas 
listed in Schedules 4 and 5, that which has been assigned to the 
Provincial Executive in terms of an Act of Parliament; 

	developing and implementing provincial policy; 
	coordinating the functions of the Provincial Administration and its 

departments; 
	preparing and initiating provincial legislation; and 

	performing any other function assigned to the Provincial Executive in 
terms of the Constitution or an Act of Parliament. 

The Office of the Premier is a department created in terms of the Constitution 
of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 and the Public Service Act (Act 103 of 
1994) (Proc. 103 of 1994) to enable the Premier to lead the Eastern Cape 
Government in service of the public. It is thus mandated to ensure that:
	The Constitution, national and provincial laws, rules and regulations, 

as well as policies, are faithfully and effectively executed; 
	Through the Executive Council, the Premier drives the transformation 

process in the  Province; 
	Government is effectively coordinated; and 
	The Office of the Premier strives to be an exemplary and effective 

centre of the Provincial Administration. 

In addition to the Constitution and the Public Service Act, other important 
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legislative guidelines include: 
	Labour Relations Act (Act 66 of 1995);  
	Basic Conditions of Employment Act (Act 75 of 1997);
	Skills Development Act (Act 97 of 1998);
	Promotion of Administrative Justice Act (Act 3 of 2000) (PAJA);   
	Promotion of Access to Information Act (Act 2 of 2000) (PAIA);  
	Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act 5 of 2000); 
	Electronic Communications and Transactions Act (Act 25 of 2002); 

and
	State Information Technology Agency Act (Act 88 of 1998).   

The following are policy mandates that the OTP will be implementing, and 
have since been used to inform the current strategic plan:
	National Development Plan;
	Eastern Cape Provincial Development Plan;
	Medium Term Strategic Framework; and
	Provincial Medium Term Strategic Framework.
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A5 Organisational Structure
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A6 Entities reporting to the Executing Authority

Name of entity Legislative mandate Financial relationship Nature of operations

Eastern Cape Socio-Economic 
Consultative Council (ECSECC)

It is a schedule 3C public entity in terms 
of the Public Finance Management Act 
(Act 1 of 1999) (PFMA).

The Department transferred R37,011 
million in the year under review to allow 
the entity to discharge its mandate.

Its core business is to assist government 
and other stakeholders to achieve 
integrated development for the Province.
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B1 Auditor-General’s report: Predetermined objectives

The Auditor General of South Africa did not issue an opinion on the 
performance information report for the current financial year. However, 
a high level assessment was performed and the findings relating to the 
performance information report are contain within the Audit Report of the 
Auditor General on page 172.

B2 Overview of departmental performance

B2.1 Service delivery environment 
As the centre of governance and leadership in the Province, the OTP 
coordinated efforts of government with a firm focus on the triple challenges 
of inequality, poverty and unemployment amid anxiety caused by the 
credit rating downgrades. The country suffered a credit downgrade to 
sub-investment status by Standard and Poor, and Moody’s world rating 
agencies. This impacts negatively on the availability of funds and our 
ability to borrow money to meet government expenditure requirements. It 
has emphasised the need for government to move with speed in making 
meaningful interventions to address these societal challenges, and to 
improve the transparency, accountability and integrity of the public sector.

The Province has already embarked on stimulating growth through 
infrastructure development and the reduction of the cost of employment 
(COE) to rebalance our expenditure away from consumption. In the 
municipal space, four new amalgamated municipalities have been created. 

The Provincial Administration has continued with its effort in the social 
sector where the bulk of the provincial government budget is spent. 
Despite these efforts, teething challenges remain. In the health sector, 
for instance, medico legal costs have accumulated to R967 million with a 
contingent liability of R15 billion, and there is an above-inflation medicine 
and equipment cost. This negatively affects the per capita expenditure, 
resulting in the potential to reduce the quality of services. There are also 
staffing challenges with regard to medical specialists and nurses. 

In education, the Province continues to face the systemic challenges of the 
past such as poor infrastructure, the high number of schools that are not 
viable, the scarcity of teachers for critical learning areas, as well as curriculum 
challenges. The OTP, in collaboration with Treasury and the Department 
of Education (DOE), has initiated a process to build infrastructure delivery 
capacity in the DOE. The implementation of the seven point education 
transformation plan is progressing while still focusing on critical areas like 
the foundation phases, provision of learning and teaching support material 
(LTSM), teacher development and school nutrition.

In the economic sphere, the Province has elevated agriculture and its value 
chain as our key economic driver. In the primary sector, the core focus is to 
ensure that there is sufficient production to supply the four rural enterprise 
development (RED) hubs in existence. This requires a substantial investment 
in the production capacity, including fencing, dipping tanks, marketing 
infrastructure, and SILOs. With respect to industrialisation, the Province 
continues to support the economic entities and the industrial development 
zones (IDZs). The Provincial Local Economic Development Framework has 
been approved, which is being converted into a Bill, and designated items for 
offtake agreements have been communicated to departments.

On the administrative side, leadership pledges, service delivery agreements 
(SDAs) for the Members of the Executive Council (MECs), and SMS 
performance agreements starting with heads of department (HODs) and 
deputy directors-general (DDGs), were validated and signed as part of 
the strengthening of accountability. Departmental scorecards were also 
introduced to inform the review of HOD performance which was previously 
the responsibility of the Public Service Commission (PSC). 

Further details of the Department’s achievements and challenges are outlined 
in section B4: Performance Information by Programme of this report.
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B2.2 Service delivery improvement plan
The Department has completed a service delivery improvement plan.  The tables below highlight the service delivery plan and the achievements to date.

Main services and standards

Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  standard of 
service Desired standard of service Actual achievement

Provision of policy and planning 
services to sector departments 
and municipalities

	All programmes in OTP 
	Eastern Cape provincial 

departments
	Municipalities

Limited integrated planning in 
the Province resulting in poor 
alignment of provincial plans  

Strengthened policy coordination 
and integrated planning in the 
Province in terms of: 
	Province-wide outcome-

based integrated planning 
to improve government 
performance  

	Enabling legislation 
to support policy 
implementation developed

	Improved knowledge and 
research in the Province

The following can be 
highlighted as achievements in 
this regards:
	The 2017/18 POA was 

developed, and it guided 
planning in all departments 
and municipalities.

	To improve vertical and 
horizontal alignment of 
plans, various departments, 
municipalities and a public 
entity were supported in 
their planning initiatives, 
as well as in ward-based 
planning

Further details of these are 
outlined in the Programme 2 
performance highlights.
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Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  standard of 
service Desired standard of service Actual achievement

Provision of organisational 
model and organisational 
design services

All Provincial Government 
departments

Despite the creation of an 
enabling environment through 
regulatory frameworks 
and support mechanisms, 
departments are still struggling 
with the delivery of quality 
services. This is mainly 
because they fail to evolve their 
organisation quickly enough 
to match a shift in strategy. In 
addition, the design of their 
structures does not match how 
the department will actually 
create value through the 
delivery of its services.

All departments have 
appropriate service delivery 
models that are aligned to their 
mandate. Furthermore, their 
organisational structures must 
be aligned to the service delivery 
model. 

The OTP has supported the 
following departments to align 
their proposed organograms 
with service delivery models 
and the Department of Public 
Service and Administration 
(DPSA) generic structures:
	Department of Cooperative 

Governance and Traditional 
Affairs (COGTA);

	Department of 
Economic Development, 
Environmental Affairs and 
Tourism (DEDEAT); 

	Department of Human 
Settlements (DHS);

	Department of Education 
(DOE);

	Department of Health 
(DOH);

	Department of Transport 
(DOT); 

	Department of Rural 
Development and Agrarian 
Reform (DRDAR);

	Department of Roads and 
Public Works (DRPW);

	Department of Safety and 
Liaison (DSL); 

	Department of Sport, 
Recreation, Arts and Culture 
(DSRAC); and

	OTP. 
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Main services Beneficiaries Current/actual  standard of 
service Desired standard of service Actual achievement

All these departments have 
approved service delivery 
models which have been 
aligned with departmental 
mandates and five-year 
strategies.  Currently, provincial 
departments are at different 
stages in terms of finalising 
their organograms, and a 
pre-validation session was 
conducted by the OTP and 
DPSA to directly consult with 
departments. This resulted in 
departments understanding the 
functional grouping, which was 
a challenge in finalising their 
organograms.   

Furthermore, provincial 
departments were supported 
with a joint intervention in job 
evaluation in order to ensure 
that all newly created and 
reconfigured posts in the 
proposed organogram have 
gone through job evaluation.  
Job analysts were also trained 
on the new job evaluation 
web-based tool, and this has 
capacitated all analysts in 
provincial departments in terms 
of job evaluation. 
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Service delivery information tool

Current/actual information tools Actual achievements

OTP information tools. These are:
	Perspective – Newsletter for the public servants in the Province 
	Ikhwelo  – OTP staff
	Masincokole – Public 
	News Flash – OTP staff 
	Current Affairs – OTP staff 

Ten editions of Masincokole, three editions of Ikhwelo, and one edition of 
Perspective were produced. News Flash and Current Affairs were issued regularly 
during the year under review. 

Complaints mechanism

Current/actual complaints mechanism Actual achievements

The Department has a complaints mechanism in place where the public can raise their 
concerns with the Premier through walk-ins, petitions or written complaints. 

The Department receives petitions and complaints from communities, mainly around 
service delivery issues. The facilitation of the resolution of these was undertaken, 
and details of what was achieved in this regard is outlined in the Programme 2 
performance highlights.

The Department also manages complaints received from the Presidential Hotline. Towards promoting a government that is interactive, responsive and effective, the 
Province reached a resolution rate of 91% (8 910 out of 9 795 cases) at the end of 
the financial year. The improvement can be attributed to ongoing support provided 
to departments and municipalities 

For staff, a grievance procedure is in place, and a designated employee is appointed 
to investigate and facilitate the finalisation of grievances.

The statistics on the matter are explained in detail in the human-resource 
management report in table 3.10.4.
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B2.3 Organisational environment 
The Department embarked on a process to reposition itself to ensure that 
more focus is placed on the roles of planning, governance and accountability, 
alongside coordination and facilitation. To this end the strategic plan has 
been revised, the service delivery model has been completed and the 
organisational structure is in its finalisation stages.

Relating to governance, the Department has achieved successes in its 
management processes as depicted by the results of the Management 
Performance Assessment Tool (MPAT 1.6). The Department also achieved 
an unqualified audit outcome, although a matter of emphasis remains 
relating to the irregular expenditure incurred in the 2014/15 financial year. 
An audit improvement plan, which addresses all matters raised by the 
Auditor-General as well as by the departmental internal audit, has been 
put in place, and its implementation is being monitored on a monthly basis. 
The Audit Committee (AC) and Risk Management Committee (RMC) 
continue to be functional, and these provide valuable oversight functions 
to the Department.

B2.4 Key policy developments and legislative changes
There has not been any revision to the legislative and other mandates that 
govern the work of the OTP. 

B3 Strategic outcome-oriented goals and objectives 

Strategic outcome-oriented goal An efficient, effective and development-
oriented public service, and an empowered, 
fair and inclusive citizenship in the Province

Strategic objective 1 Lead the provincial development agenda 
for a shared vision institutionalising 
evidence-based decision-making and 
integrated planning over the medium term.

Strategic objective 2 Lead socio-economic transformation by 
accelerating implementation of government 
programmes to ensure access to quality 
services.

Strategic objective 3 Enhance inclusive governance through 
meaningful implementation of citizen 
empowerment and stakeholder 
participatory programmes in the current 
term.

Strategic objective 4 Strengthen accountability in corporate 
governance through enforcing the 
implementation of public sector reforms in 
the Province on an ongoing basis.

Strategic objective 5 Transform the OTP over the medium term 
to a high performance organisation by 
creating an enabling environment, building 
internal capability, and empowering 
employees.

The Department has identified qualitative and outcome-oriented performance 
indicators that are linked to the above strategic objectives. These indicators 
depict the outcomes that the Department is pursuing in the current MTEF. 
Due to the complexity of identifying a single indicator that depicts the 
achievement of an outcome, the Department has opted to define these 
performance indicators in terms of the following four levels: 

	Level 1 depicts an unacceptable level of performance where the 
Department or the Provincial Administration does not have the 
necessary frameworks in place to be able to implement government 
programmes.

	Level 2 is where the Department/Province has demonstrated 
progress towards an acceptable level of performance. This is achieved 
mainly when the Department or the Provincial Administration has the 
required frameworks in place (policies and plans) but has not started 
implementing these in a meaningful way.
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	Level 3 depicts an acceptable level of performance. It is the 
level where the Department or the Provincial Administration 
is implementing its programmes in accordance with the policy 
prescripts that govern that particular area. In other words, the 
expectations as outlined in the relevant policy framework have 
been met.

	Level 4 is where the Department or the Provincial Administration 
has gone beyond the acceptable level of performance. In other 
words, innovative ways of doing things are being employed, and 
the value thereof is being demonstrated. This is the level where 
‘better’ or ‘best practices’ can be found. 

Due to the detailed nature of these levels, it has not been possible to outline 
the details of each level in the performance indicator tables. However, a 
detailed description of each level is provided as an annexure to this annual 
report.

B4 Performance information by programme

B4.1 Programme 1: Administration

Programme purpose
Provide strategic leadership, management and support services to the 
Premier, Director-General (DG) and the Department; effective and efficient 
secretarial services to EXCO and provincial management structures; 
reliable legal services and a comprehensive communication service on 
behalf of government; and manage strategic priority interventions.
 
Overview of the programme 
The programme is structured as follows: 

Sub-Programme Sub-Programme purpose

Sub-Programme 1.1: Premier’s Office
To ensure effective governance and 
service delivery to citizens of the Eastern 
Cape through provision of executive 
leadership and oversight

Sub-Programme 1.2: Office of the 
Director-General 

To render strategic leadership, coordination 
and intervention support services to the 
OTP and the Provincial Administration; 
and render secretariat support to Cabinet

Sub-Programme 1.3: Office of the 
Chief Operations Officer

To provide communications support 
services to the Office of the Premier and 
the Provincial Government, and to ensure 
compliance to the constitutional and 
legislation requirements

Sub-Programme 1.4: Corporate 
Services 

To provide strategic human-resource 
management and office support services 
to the Department 

Sub-Programme 1.5: Financial 
Management

To provide financial and supply chain 
management support services

Sub-Programme 1.6: Internal Audit
To examine and evaluate the internal 
control environment, risk management 
and governance processes; and to provide 
counsel and recommendations 

Sub-Programme 1.7: Enterprise-Wide 
Risk Management

To provide risk management support 
services

Sub-Programme 1.8: Special 
Programmes Coordinating Unit

To oversee and ensure the empowerment, 
capacitation and social inclusion of 
children, youth, women, older persons 
and persons living with disabilities in the 
Province, including through strategic 
partnership

Sub-Programme 1.9: Departmental 
Legal Services

To provide legal support and advisory 
services to the Department
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Strategic objectives and associated outputs applicable to the 
programme

Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality services.

Strategic objective 3: Enhance inclusive governance through meaningful 
implementation of citizen empowerment and stakeholder participatory 
programmes in the current term.

Strategic objective 4: Strengthen accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of public sector reforms in the Province on 
an ongoing basis.

Strategic objective 5: Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high 
performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building internal 
capability and empowering employees.

Performance highlights 
1) Through the coordination of the DOE intervention, the foundation 

was laid to restore functionality in the DOE through the injection of 
needed capacity in a number of critical areas.  Direct support to HR 
recruitment initiatives and capacity building in the DOE has resulted 
in 88% (536 of 607) of posts in the approved annual recruitment plan 
(ARP) advertised, and 13% (78) of those filled. Within this, a total of 
14 SMS posts were filled, which was instrumental in bringing about 
stability at leadership level. Significant recruitment support was also 
provided in the selection processes for educational therapists with 64 
out of 79 posts filled, which provided crucial capacity to the Department 
in the area of inclusive education. Further, 39 infrastructure posts out 
of 54 vacancies were filled. 

2) Improved compliance and implementation of HRM policies and 
strategies in the DOE and the DOH: 

a) Support on the implementation of key indicators in the compliance 
framework has resulted in an improvement in the compliance levels 
of the DOH from 78% by the end of the last financial year to 93% 
by the end of the third quarter. This has registered significant levels 
of improvements in the effectiveness of HR to support business 
objectives, HR planning and implementation, attraction and retention, 
implementation of human resource management (HRM) delegations, 
employment equity (EE) plan implementation, employee wellness, 
performance management (in particular, contracting), human resource 
development (HRD), and the general capacity of HR practitioners.    

b) Support has resulted in 50% levels of HRM compliance in the DOE 
by the second quarter. 

c) The DOH organogram was concluded, and a post validation 
organogram submitted to the OTP for consideration and submission 
to the DPSA. This included completion of transitional organograms 
for decomplexed institutions. 

d) The HR audit intervention plan in the DOH was rolled out in the 
following districts and institutions: Joe Gqabi District, Chris Hani 
District, Nelson Mandela District, Amathole District, PE Complex, 
Dora Nginza, Provincial Hospital, Livingston Hospital, Frere Hospital, 
Cecilia Makiwane Hospital, Buffalo City Metropolitan Municipality 
(BCMM), Emergency Medical Services (EMS), Lilitha Nursing 
College Port Elizabeth, East London, Chris Hani, Joe Gqabi, and the 
head office.

e) In improving the effective utilisation and the credibility of HR 
information on the Personnel Salary System (Persal), monthly 
management information system (MIS) reports were produced for the 
DOE and the DOH with anomalies that should be corrected, pointed 
out; introduction to Persal training was conducted for DOE Officials; 
and COE trend reports were produced for the DOE and the DOH for 
the attention of the HOD and leadership. 

3) The following can be highlighted regarding efforts to improve HR and 
core business processes in the DOH: 
a) Although the district operating centres were not established due to 

the state of readiness of the Department, executive support was 
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obtained for the operationalisation of the district processing centres 
in the BCMM and the Amathole District to improve the HR business 
processes and transactions at district level. Support has been fully 
provided to the Department, and all the processes completed, 
including the finalisation of the concept, identification of sites and 
resources required, with standard operating procedures (SOPs) for 
the labour relations component and recruitment process flows for 
the recruitment of foreign health professionals developed. 

b) The backup system for the HR registry is 100% complete at the head 
office, and is being successfully rolled out at the Cecilia Makiwane 
Hospital (CMH). A new HR registry has been established at the CMH 
after decomplexing. The records management post decomplexing 
process, with implementation of the National Minimum Information 
Requirements (NMIR), has commenced at the HR registry. Patient 
registries for active and inactive records have been established. 
The records management training manual is 100% developed, and 
has been validated. 

c) Mapping of the current state of the Medical Outpatients Department`s 
(MOPD) patient journey flow at Frere Hospital was completed, and 
recommendations to improve patient waiting time were proposed 
to the hospital management. Implementation of patient waiting time 
improvement “quick wins” recommendations has begun as follows 
at Frere Hospital: 

i. Extra filing space for patient folders were identified at C9.
ii. Folders are in the process of being decanted to C9. 
iii. Hospital management approved patient waiting time 

recommendations to be included in the operations plan 
budget. 

iv. The MOPD waiting time project is to be integrated with the 
project on the redesign of the casualty/emergency area to 
improve patient flows.

4) In support of centralised recruitment, an annual recruitment 
calendar that was distributed to all departments, assisted in getting 

job advertisements placed immediately after approval by the Provincial 
Coordinating and Monitoring Team (PCMT). As such, of the 2 829 
critical posts (excluding clinical and educator posts) presented to 
the PCMT, 2 400 were filled as at 31st March 2017. The efficiencies 
introduced through centralised recruitment ensured that the Province 
met the DPSA recommended average time of six months to fill posts.  

5) Coordination of the implementation of the Infrastructure Delivery 
Management System (IDMS)
a) Institutional arrangements for infrastructure coordination were 

approved.
b) A database of projects in stage seven (Standard for Infrastructure 

Procurement and Delivery Management Stages) has been updated 
with follow-up actions with departments, the implementation agencies 
and the Geographical Information System (GIS) database with the 
layers of information clearly identified and referenced.

c) Mapping of sector department infrastructure projects has been 
completed.

6) Implementation of strategic projects in the Province 
a) Priority towns for small town development have been confirmed, and 

the following activities completed:  
i) Planning and consultation work for the small town development 

programme was successfully completed, and funds allocated for 
planning work were fully utilised. The beneficiary municipalities 
submitted confirmation letters signed by municipal managers, 
confirming services rendered by professional service providers 
for planning for the 2016/17 financial year.

ii) Collection of technical information and preliminary readiness 
assessments were conducted, and a project implementation 
readiness report has been finalised.

iii) The terms of reference and memorandum of agreement 
concerning a cession agreement have been signed between the 
OTP, beneficiary municipalities and professional service providers 
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for planning purposes.
iv) Detailed project preparation, design, and preparation of 

tender documentation, resource mobilisation, introduction and 
alignment of the small town revitalisation with the new IDP 
planning process have been conducted.

b) A memorandum of agreement has been signed between the OTP 
and beneficiary municipalities in preparation of implementation 
during the financial periods from 01 April 2017 to 31 March 2020.

7) On the electrification project delivered through the memorandum 
of understanding with Eskom, the new Amacwera substation was 
completed and commissioned. This includes work on the Amacwerha 
132Kv line linking the Amacwerha and Qumbu substations, the Qumbu 
and Mzintlava feeder bay, and the Mzintlava link line. 

8) Profiling of and support to the Provincial Government: The 
launch of a six-month (October 2016 – March 2017) radio campaign 
to publicise Operation Masiphathisane and its war rooms has been a 
great success. The popularity of the campaign exceeded expectations 
as it became influential in political circles as one of the campaigns is 
named after it, and the name of the Premier has become synonymous 
with it. Whenever the words “Simanxadanxada”, “Masiphathisane”, 
and “war rooms” are used by anyone in any setting, provincially or 
nationally, it is associated with the Premier or Provincial Government.

The Masincokole publication, a provincial newsletter, plays a pivotal 
role in ensuring that, as government, we have our own platform 
through which to publish our good stories.  A total of 70 000 copies 
per month were printed and distributed through insertion in selected 
local newspapers and community print. Part of the distribution strategy 
entailed direct delivery to communities by public liaison officers.   
Government programmes taking place across the Province during this 
fiscal year were also used as distribution points.

Provincial Communications received a certificate of recognition from 
the Government Communication and Information System (GCIS) for 
the outstanding support given to national programmes that took place 
in the Province.  The official Facebook page grew in popularity every 
month. Although the use of bulk SMS messages is at infancy stages 
with some technical glitches, this platform assisted with the immediacy 
of messages. The inaugural Premier’s Young Women’s Camp took place 
where the OTP, in collaboration with the Eastern Cape AIDS Council 
(ECAC), kick-started a grooming programme for 60 young women who 
are ambassadors in their districts.     

9) Coordination of the provincial communication system: The provincial 
communication system was coordinated to ensure coherent government 
messaging conducted and supported through various provincial 
communicators’ forums, such as the Head of Communications Forum 
and the Provincial Audio-Visual Forum.  

The provincial communications strategy has identified the community 
media sector as a strategic partner in ensuring that government 
information reaches communities at grass-root level. The engagement 
session between the heads of communications and community media 
was conducted to ensure the redress of the exclusion and marginalisation 
of disadvantaged communities and persons from access to the media 
and the media industry.  The engagement session was also aimed 
at promoting media development and diversity by providing support 
primarily to community and small commercial media projects.  

10) State of the Province Address (SOPA) 2017: The strengthened 
partnership with Bay TV generated postive results which included 
the featuring of Mr Thami Dickson, who is a seasoned former South 
African Broadcasting Corporation (SABC) news and actuality presenter 
with international experience, as our host. Mr Dickson helped put our 
broadcast on the map which boosted the image of the Eastern Cape 
Province tremendously in the eye of the viewing public. It was also 
the first time we utilised the skills of former SABC editor and current 
eNews Channel Africa (eNCA) news presenter, Mr Vuyo Mvoko, as 
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the executive producer of the broadcast. The collaborative effort by 
provincial departments with audio-visual infrastructure and personnel 
was helpful. The efforts of the Provincial Audio-Visual Forum ensured 
that various angles were covered at the 2017 SOPA, without stretching 
the OTP resources.

11) Support provided to departments on implementation of PAIA and 
PAJA:  The OTP, through the Office of the Chief State Law Advisor 
(OCSLA), coordinated the compilation and submission of all thirteen 
departments’ section 32 reports to the Human Rights Commission. 
This is the first time in five years that the Province has achieved this 
goal. OCSLA supported the departments of Education and Health, and 
DEDEAT with the drafting of their section 14 manuals. The OTP received 
the highest MPAT scores for both PAJA and PAIA compliance, which 
assisted the Department to ensure compliance with its constitutional 
obligations, and further provided an avenue for citizens to better 
access government services. OCSLA conducted training on PAIA 
in six provincial departments during this year, which assisted those 
departments to provide quality access to information to the citizens of 
the Province. The employees were trained to assist members of the 
public to gain access to relevant documents in order to exercise their 
constitutional rights to access to information. The OTP’s PAIA manual 
was published on its website, and the section 15 notice was published 
in the Provincial Gazette, once again ensuring compliance with the 
relevant legislation and with the Constitution. These processes allow 
members of the public to hold government accountable in the services 
that it renders to the public.  

12) Facilitation of legislative review process:  OCSLA coordinated the 
input from various provincial departments, which submitted old order 
legislation for repeal. OCSLA drafted the General Law Amendment 
Bill, 2016, which was submitted via the cluster system to EXCO 
for approval, and was introduced in the Legislature and adopted 
by the House. The Bill repeals old order and redundant legislation, 
consequently promoting legal certainty and good administration, 
and enhancing service delivery. OCSLA assisted COGTA with the 

Eastern Cape Repeal of Local Government and Traditional Affairs Laws 
Act, 2016, which repeals old order and obsolete legislation which was 
assigned to COGTA. It further assisted the DOH with the Eastern Cape 
Customary Male Initiation Practice Act, 2016, which provides for strict 
measures in relation to traditional circumcision in the Province. The Acts 
were assented to by the Premier. 

13) The OTP successfully hosted the Inter-Provincial State Law Advisors’ 
Forum, which provided a platform for the Eastern Cape legal advisors to 
benchmark from other provinces. The feedback received from the Eastern 
Cape legal advisors, who learnt about the challenges and successes in 
other provinces, especially in respect of the medico-legal claims, was 
immensely positive. The legal advisors agreed to share the names of 
specialists who could be used to support the State’s case.

14) On special programmes the OTP devoted its efforts to advocating the 
rights of designated groups, facilitating socio-economic empowerment 
and inclusion of designated groups (prioritising persons with disabilities 
and the youth), monitoring the mainstreaming of issues of designated 
groups in state institutions, institutionalising of youth development in the 
OTP, and coordinating institutionalised days.  To this end, the following 
achievements can be highlighted:

a) Children: As part of promoting children’s right to education and to 
promote access to education, a sanitary dignity campaign programme 
was coordinated. Targeted beneficiaries included girls from children’s 
homes within the BCMM and needy learners from twenty-four 
schools within the Alfred Nzo District Municipality. The campaign also 
sought to empower girls and boys on reproductive health rights while 
maintaining the dignity of the girl child and advocating for access to 
education for all.

A child participation workshop provided an opportunity and platform 
to children to be involved in decision-making on issues affecting 
children. The envisaged outcome of this initiative is not only the 
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protection of children’s constitutional rights, but also to equip and 
empower children on nation building and social cohesion at an 
early age. 

Empowerment sessions for special schools committees were held 
to advocate the social inclusion of children with disabilities and 
learners with special needs. A paracycling programme aimed at 
imparting cycling skills to learners with disabilities was coordinated 
within the Buffalo City Municipality. This was aligned with the launch 
of Disability Rights Awareness Month.

b) Youth: In contributing to the promotion of the socio-economic 
development of young people, a young women’s empowerment 
programme was instituted through a provincial empowerment 
camp, benefitting 60 young women from the Buffalo City Metropole 
and the Alfred Nzo, Amathole, Chris Hani, Joe Gqabi and OR 
Tambo districts. The camp  participants were exposed to a range of 
areas which will contribute to the young women’s socio-economic 
development, self-confidence and capability to initiate own 
development. 

As part of implementing the provincial youth development 
strategy, a training and development programme on animal 
husbandry, poultry and piggery farming was conducted in 
partnership with the Tsolo Agricultural and Rural Development 
Institute. The programme benefitted 50 young persons involved in 
agriculture and farming in the Alfred Nzo, Amathole, Alfred Nzo, 
Chris Hani, Joe Gqabi, OR Tambo, and Sarah Baartman district 
municipalities.  The envisaged outcome of the training programme 
is enhanced capacity which will result in improved quantity and 
quality of produce. In turn, this will improve the cooperatives’ 
income which will contribute to the economic development of the 
young persons and their communities. In addition to the training of 
these young persons, 11 youth agricultural projects were prioritised 
for technical support, implements agricultural inputs to enhance 
their viability. These projects are drawn from from across districts.

In pursuit of youth economic development and empowerment, 
a youth engagement session was held in the Alfred Nzo District 
Municipality within the context of the launch of the provincial 
Youth Month. Themed “Young people at the centre of economic 
emancipation: Moving South Africa forward”, the session was aimed 
at increasing the confidence of young people to participate in their 
communities and in decision-making processes. Whilst the session 
provided young people an opportunity to engage with the provincial 
leadership on matters of youth economic emancipation, the highlight 
of the session was the developmental and educational interaction 
between the young people and successful young entrepreneurs. 
It is envisaged that the engagement will lay a foundation for 
entrepreneurial development among the district’s young people. It 
is envisaged that this engagement will have a positive impact on 
youth economic empowerment and development, which is one of the 
provincial priorities.

c) Women: To strengthen monitoring of the attainment of the set gender 
equity target of 50-50 at SMS level and to promote accountability, an 
initiative that is envisaged to enforce attainment of equity targets was 
initiated. This entails the signing of a pledge on gender-equity and 
women empowerment by members of EXCO. It is envisaged that 
this initiative will speed up the inclusion of women in management 
echelons of the Provincial Administration.  

As part of promoting women’s constitutional rights to life and to 
safety, the Office of the Status of Women focused its efforts on the 
intervention against GBV. To this effect, the Nqadu Gender Based 
Violence (GBV) Intervention Programme was rolled out. This multi-
stakeholder programme is part of the programme of 365 days of 
action on no violence against women and children.  In addition, the 
following programmes were coordinated and implemented: 

i. The joint programme on a safer South Africa for women and 
children focussed on catalysing and scaling up prevention of 
violence against women and children. 



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report42

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

ii. Commemoration of the 16 days of activism for no violence 
against women and children.

iii. Launch of the 365 days campaign against GBV.
iv. Provincial men’s indaba. 

A common anticipated outcome in all these programmes is 
protection of the constitutional rights of women and children 
as part of nation building and social cohesion.

In response to the need to promote and advocate the rights of the 
marginalised and more vulnerable sectors of the designated 
groups, capacity building and empowerment of lesbian, gay, 
bisexual, transgender and intersex (LGBTI) groups, was initiated. 
This will be strengthened in the next financial year. 

d) Persons with disabilities: As part of advocating the rights of 
persons with disabilities (PWD), raising awareness on the issues 
affecting PWD including their needs, and facilitating the socio-
economic inclusion of PWD, a provincial disability rights machinery 
was established. The envisaged results of the initiative include 
improved coordination of the disability sector, improvement in 
mainstreaming of PWD in all aspects of the Provincial Administration, 
attainment of the minimum 2% representation of PWD within the 
current Administration, and establishment of collaborations and 
partnerships on socio-economic development and social inclusion 
of PWD.

Towards socio-economic empowerment and social inclusion of 
persons with disabilities, the Department, in partnership with the 
Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education 
and Training Authority (ETDP SETA), provided computer training 
to 50 young persons with disabilities drawn from the Nelson 
Mandela Bay Metropole and the OR Tambo and Amathole district 
municipalities. The programme was aimed at equipping the 
participants with information technology skills. It is envisaged that 
the programme will contribute to the young persons’ independence 

and socio-economic inclusion.  

As part of the socio-economic empowerment of persons 
with disabilities, the first cohort of 15 deaf persons from socio-
economically disadvantaged areas within the Nelson Mandela Bay 
Metropolitan Municipality (NMBMM) were capacitated in sewing and 
business skills. The programme will continue in the next financial 
year to progress the participants to the next level in order to enhance 
their skills. It is anticipated that the group will be skilled enough to 
be integrated into the mainstream economy. The envisaged outcome 
of the training programme is to improve economic access and 
participation which will ultimately improve the livelihood of the 
beneficiaries.

e) Older persons: To foster the rights of older persons and to 
promote awareness of these rights, various programmes were 
coordinated. The following can be highlighted: 
i) Capacity building and awareness sessions on the constitutional 

and legal rights of older persons were conducted in the Amathole 
District Municipality and the BCMM.

ii) An intergenerational session was held in the Chris Hani District. 
The envisaged outcome of this session is the reduction of 
assaults on and murders of older persons as a result of witchcraft 
allegations against them.

iii) The Know Your Rights workshops were held, targeting older 
persons within the BCMM and the Alfred Nzo and OR Tambo 
district municipalities. It is envisaged that these initiatives will 
contribute to the enhancement of older persons’ social inclusion.

f) Institutionalised days were successfully coordinated, and the following 
can be highlighted: 
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i) The provincial commemoration of Youth Day was coordinated 
within the context of the 40th anniversary of the Soweto 
student uprisings. A key element of the commemoration was 
the promotion of socio-economic development of young 
people. To this end, four youth development projects within 
the hosting district (Sarah Baartman District Municipality) were 
provided with financial support and will continue to receive the 
necessary capacitation for their sustainability.

ii) As part of promoting women’s constitutional rights, both 
the national and provincial Women’s Day commemoration 
programmes were  successfully coordinated, with the Province 
sending a delegation of 1 000 women to the national 60th 
anniversary celebration.  Both programmes provided a platform 
for advocating the rights of women, including the contribution 
of women in nation building and the country’s economy.  The 
envisaged outcomes include social cohesion enhancement, 
improved socio-economic development and the inclusion of 
women.  

iii) The Older Persons’ Day commemoration was coordinated. The 
highlight was recreation, which was envisaged to contribute to 
the well-being of older persons. 

g) To strengthen monitoring of the attainment of the set equity targets 
of 50-50 at SMS level and 2% of persons with disabilities in the 
public service, an equity accountability session was held. The session 
sought to provide a platform for state institutions to account for their 
EE achievements for the 2016/17 financial year. It is envisaged 
that the session will contribute to strengthening mechanisms for 
the monitoring and evaluation (M & E) of EE related programmes 
in the Provincial   Administration. The session further empowered 
participants on the prescripts, provincial commitments and other 
government requirements in relation to gender and disability 
considerations. It is envisaged that this empowerment will enable the 
institutions to improve their performance on EE. 

h) To promote economic participation and awareness on the basic 
rights of designated groups, an integrated food security session 
was held for designated groups, and it aimed at benchmarking and 
sharing best practices in the Province. The session also sought to 
identify crucial collaborations with the aim of consolidating rural 
development resources available in the Province.
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Strategic objectives indicators 

Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation of government programmes 
to ensure access to quality services.

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

2.1
Increased percentage of women; 
youth; people with disabilities 
participating in various sectors of 
economy

	Women

New indicator 50%

43% [Source: 
Statistics 

South Africa: 
Quarterly 

labour force 
survey (Q4 

2016)]

7%
There is a need to strengthen the women’s 
empowerment programme, and to ensure 
that more women are participating in the 
economy.

	Youth

New indicator 20%

45% [Source: 
Statistics South 

Africa: Quarterly 
labour force 
survey (Q4 

2016)]

25% The target of 20% was ill-informed due to a 
lack of data at the time of planning.

	People with disabilities

New indicator 10%

1,5% [Source: 
Statistics South 

Africa: Quarterly 
labour force 
survey (Q4 

2016)]

8,5%
There is a need to strengthen the 
empowerment programme focusing on 
PWD, and to ensure more participation in 
the economy.
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Strategic objective 3: Enhance 
inclusive governance through meaningful 
implementation of citizen empowerment 
and stakeholder participatory programmes 
in the current term.

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

3.1

Improved image of the Province as 
measured by the public perception 
survey 38% 40% 44% 4%

	The implementation of the recently approved 
provincial communication strategy is beginning 
to bear fruit.

3.2 An inclusive and unified provincial 
brand

Level 1 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	The provincial communication strategy is not 
aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts.

	The marketing and branding strategy for the 
Province is still being developed.

	Local government and departmental 
communication strategies of districts are 
aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts. 

	The Head of Communicators (HOC) and the 
Local Government Communicators Forum are 
fully functional. However, the provincial core 
team and the cluster communication fora are 
not fully functional.

	Media communications is still reactive, 
and the Department’s efforts to refocus 
communications to increase the voice of 
government in the media are yet to bear fruit. 

	The profiling of major government programmes 
is conducted effectively.

	Provincial communications policy and 
protocols developed.

	The public perception survey index has 
improved from 38% in the past three years to 
44% currently, which indicates a significant 
improvement.



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report46

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Strategic objective 3: Enhance 
inclusive governance through meaningful 
implementation of citizen empowerment 
and stakeholder participatory programmes 
in the current term.

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

3.3
Improved social inclusion of 
designated groups (children, 
women, people with disabilities, 
elderly, and youth)

Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None 

	An integrated need-based POA is developed 
for social cohesion.

	Public education on constitutional rights 
and responsibilities are explained to citizens 
through various campaigns. 

	The status of designated groups is monitored 
to inform issues of service delivery. 

	Intergenerational programmes are coordinated 
to foster understanding.

	Awareness programmes conducted with 
traditional leaders on protection of vulnerable 
groups. These include the Nqadu GBV 
Intervention, Stop Witchcraft Killings in 
Engcobo, International Day of Older Persons 
commemoration at KwaNontshinga Village 
in Centane, launch of 16 Days in Centane, 
Women’s Day, 365-day plan of action, men’s 
movement on issues affecting women and 
children, and an awareness campaign on the 
LGBTI community and widows.
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Strategic objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
ongoing basis.

Actual achieved
2015/16

Planned targets
2016/17

Actual achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

4.1
Improved legal and constitutional 
compliance by the Provincial 
Government 

11
All 13 

departments 
complying 

All 13 
departments 

complied with 
S32 of PAIA. 

However, only 
5 departments 

(OTP, 
DSRAC, DOH, 

Department 
of Social 

Development 
[DSD], and DHS) 

have complied 
with S15 of PAIA

8 departments 
(PT, DOT, 

DRDAR, DRPW, 
DSL, DOE, 

COGTA, and 
DEDEAT) have 

not complied with 
S15 of PAIA

These departments do not have accounts 
with government printers and, as a result, 
failed to publish their reports and policies in 
the Provincial Gazette.

4.2
Progressive improvements on 
corporate management practices in 
the OTP

Unqualified audit 
opinion with 

one matter of 
emphasis

Unqualified audit 
opinion with 

no matters of 
emphasis

Unqualified audit 
opinion with 

one matter of 
emphasis (for 

2015/16)

One matter of 
emphasis (for 

2015/16)

The Department recorded irregular 
expenditure of R4,4 million (2015: R1,5 
million) that had accumulated over the last 
two years and that has not been recovered, 
written off or condoned. Irregular expenditure 
of R3 million was incurred in the 2015/16 
financial year. 
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Strategic objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
ongoing basis.

Actual achieved
2015/16

Planned targets
2016/17

Actual achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

Average of 3,3 
on departmental 

MPAT score

Average of 3,7 
on departmental 

MPAT score

Average of 2,9 
on departmental 

MPAT score
0,8 point score

Improvements are required in the following 
areas:
	The Department oversees the work of 

ECSECC, however, their work has limited 
value to the objectives of the OTP.

	Implementation of the service delivery 
improvement plan. 

	Ensuring that management structures 
meet consistently.  

	Information and communication 
technology (ICT) governance is 
implemented.

	Unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure is prevented.

	30-day payment rule is adhered to. 
	Strengthen HRM overall.

4.3
Progressive improvements in the 
functionality of the Department of 
Education 

Provision of 
implementation 

support in 
departments 
of health and 

education 

Coordination 
of the 

implementation 
of the DOE 
intervention 

and 
strengthening 

HRM

The DOE 
intervention was 

coordinated. 
Further details 
are provided in 

the performance 
highlights.

None -
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Strategic objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
ongoing basis.

Actual achieved
2015/16

Planned targets
2016/17

Actual achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

4.4
Progressive improvements in the 
functionality of the Department of 
Health 

Provision of 
implementation 

support in 
departments 
of health and 

education

Strengthening 
HRM and 
front-line 

service support 
processes

Support was 
provided to 
the DOH to 

strengthen front-
line services. 

Further details 
are provided in 

the performance 
highlights.

None -

4.5 Coordinated and packaged support 
interventions in municipalities

Coordination 
framework 

developed and 
implemented 

Packaged 
support to 
identified 

municipalities 

Packages 
support was 
provided to 

the identified 
municipalities. 
Further details 
are provided in 

the performance 
highlights.

None -

4.6 Strengthening institutional capacity 
to deliver on infrastructure

Infrastructure 
delivery system 

is developed 

Infrastructure 
delivery system 
is implemented

The 
infrastructure 

delivery 
system was 

implemented. 
Further details 
are provided in 

the performance 
highlights.

None -
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Strategic objective 5: Transform the 
OTP over the medium term to a high 
performance organisation by creating an 
enabling environment, building internal 
capability and empowering employees

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviations

5.1
Improved organisational 
performance as measured by the 
shift to the right of the distribution 
curve

New indicator 5% 
improvement 0% 5%

The Department achieved 82% of its targets in 
the 2015/16 financial year and achieved 81% of 
its targets in the 2016/17 financial year. Factors 
that contributed to this lack of improvement 
include issues that are outside the control of the 
Department such as non finalistion of service 
delivery models by departments. 

5.2
Improved commitment to the OTP 
value system as measured by the 
climate survey index

New indicator 10% 
improvement

Unable to report 
as the climate 

survey was not 
conducted.

-
The Department is currently undergoing 
reorganisation, and it was not prudent to conduct 
a culture survey in the middle of a change 
process.

5.3
An appropriate service delivery 
model and organisational structure 
in place and implemented 

New indicator

Service delivery 
model and 

organisational 
structure in 

place  

The service 
delivery model 

is finalised, 
and the 

organisational 
structure is in its 

final stages of 
approval

Approval of the 
organisational 

structure is in its 
final stages 

Consultation processes took longer than 
anticipated, resulting in the delays in the approval 
of the organisational structure.
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Performance against set targets 

Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.1   Quarterly facilitation 
of provincial 
coordinating 
platforms

4 4

4 [Provincial 
Management; 
DOE Intervention 
Steering Committee; 
Interdepartmental 
Infrastructure 
Committee Team; 
Electrification 
Coordinating Team; and 
the Shared Services 
and Efficiency Task 
Team were coordinated]

None -

1.2   Quarterly 
coordination of the 
implementation of 
the DOE intervention

4 4
4 [Details of the 

achievements are 
outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -

1.3   Percentage 
compliance and 
implementation of 
HRM strategies and 
policies in the DOE 
and DOH

	 DOE

38%

50% [HRM capability 
assessment, HR 
planning, ARP 
recruitment, HR 
delegations, employee 
wellness (leave, PILIR), 
PMDS, (HR MIS) (Persal 
clean-up)]

50% None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

	 DOH

78%

90% [Strengthening HR 
cadre, strengthening 
HR compliance, 
system, policies and 
people, SOP of policies 
exist, Persal clean-up, 
implementation of the 
ARP and implementation 
of the HR plan, HR 
audit improvement 
implementation]

93% 3%

Support on the 
implementation of 
key indicators in the 
compliance framework 
has yielded an 
improvement in the 
compliance levels of the 
Department.

1.4   Number of DOH 
districts with 
improved HR 
processes

New indicator 2 [Sarah Baartman and 
OR Tambo] 0

2  [District processing 
centres in Sarah 
Baartman and OR 
Tambo are not yet 
operational]

The OTP did all the 
preparatory work including 
the development of a 
concept and process plan 
for district processing 
centres which was 
approved by the 
Department, identification 
and determination of 
readiness of sites to 
start the process, and  
identification of resource 
requirements. 

However, the DOH has 
taken time to acquire the 
resources required for 
the operationalisation of 
district processing centres 
and, as such, none could 
start operating.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.5   Quarterly 
coordination of the 
implementation of 
support packages 
in targeted 
municipalities 

Diagnostic exercise 
on the operational 
functionality of the King 
Sabata Dalindyebo 
(KSD) Local Municipality, 
NMBMM, BCMM were 
conducted

4
3 [The support provided 

is elaborated in the 
performance highlights]

1 quarterly   
   engagement

COGTA was still working 
with municipalities to 
determine further support 
required beyond the 
transition period. The 
matter will be resolved 
in the first quarter of 
2017/18.

1.6   Quarterly 
coordination of the 
implementation of 
the Infrastructure 
Delivery 
Management System 
(IDMS)

Blockages in 
infrastructure 
coordination and delivery 
was identified

4
4 [The implementation 

of the IDMS was 
coordinated] 

None -

1.7   Quarterly 
implementation of 
strategic projects in 
the Province

4 4
4 [The implementation 

of strategic projects 
in the Province were 
coordinated] 

None -

1.8   Percentage of 
EXCO decisions 
implemented 100% 100%

100%  [7 out of 19] of 
resolutions have been 
implemented while the 
remaining are still in 
progress

None -

1.9   Unqualified 
audit opinion on 
predetermined 
objectives

Unqualified audit Unqualified audit Unqualified audit None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.10 Percentage of 
employees in 
the programme 
complying with 
the performance 
management system 
(performance 
contracting, reviews 
and assessments)

New indicator 100%

96% [249 out of 260] 
of employees signed 
performance agreements

An average of 46% 
of officials conducted 
performance reviews 
[77% [168 out of 218] of 
employees conducted 
Q1 reviews; 53% [138 
out of 260] of employees 
conducted Q2 reviews; 
34% [74 out of 218 ] of 
employees conducted 
Q3 reviews; and 23% [50 
out of 218 ] of employees 
conducted Q3 reviews]

4% [11 out of 260] of 
employees did not sign 
performance agreements 
timeously

An average of 54% of 
officials did not conduct 
performance reviews 
timeously [33% [50 out 
of 218] of employees did 
not conduct Q1 reviews 
timeously; 47% [122 out 
of 260] of employees did 
not conduct Q2 reviews 
timeously; 66% [144 out 
of218 ] of employees did 
not conduct Q3 reviews 
timeously; 77% [144 out 
of218] of employees did 
not conduct Q4 reviews 
timeously].

Non-compliance is the 
major cause for non-
achievement of this 
target. Action will be taken 
against the non-compliant 
officials

1.11 Percentage 
of approved 
programme budget 
spent

96.7% [R362,009 
million out of R374,324 
million]

100% 98.7% [R245,7 million out 
of R249,06 million]

1.3% [R3,312 million out 
of R249,06 million] was 
not spent 

Please refer to details on 
programme expenditure 
in the Accounting Officer 
Overview.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.12 Percentage of 
findings of the 
programme in the 
audit improvement 
plan being 
implemented

94% [44 out of 
47 findings were 
implemented]

100%
96% [of which 19 out of 
45 findings are complete; 
24 out of 45 are in 
progress]

4%   [2 out of 45] 
of findings were not 
implemented

The filling of some posts 
was withheld to allow the 
capacity constraints to 
be addressed through 
the organisational re-
structuring.  
The housing fringe benefit 
is to be addressed by the 
DRPW, as the custodian 
for assets resides with 
them.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.13 Percentage of the 
programme risk action 
plan implemented

New indicator 100% 90% [36 out of 40 action 
plans were implemented]

10% [4 out of 40] of action 
plans were not implemented

	Core staff training plan 
was not implemented 
due to failure to the 
secure the anticipated 
tailored training. The 
Unit will be trained 
as per their personal 
development plans 
(PDPs).

	Information and 
knowledge management 
(IKM) champions 
were nominated and, 
considering that IKM 
is being introduced 
and embedded in the 
Department, training is 
being tailor-made and 
will be implemented 
in the first quarter of 
2016/17. 

	Anticipated ICT skills 
were not acquired.  
However, this was 
incorporated into the 
departmental redesign 
process with updated 
job descriptions and, 
eventually, skills audit, to 
assist and inform the ICT 
skills.

	The planned fire drill 
could not be conducted 
due to renovations that 
needed to be effected 
as a prerequisite by the 
BCMM.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.14 Number of 
statements issued 
on behalf of 
provincial Executive 
Council to promote 
government’s 
programme of action

New indicator 12 10 statements were 
issued 

Statements for January 
and March 2017 were not 
issued

The Department did 
not have a government 
spokesperson in January 
2017, therefore no media 
statement was issued. 
The statement for March 
was not issued because 
the matters discussed by 
Cabinet were of a sensitive 
nature and could not be 
shared with the public.

1.15 Number of 
government 
publications 
produced 
(Masincokole X 
12; Ikhwelo X 4; 
Perspective X 4)

New indicator 20
14 [10 X Masincokole; 
3 X Ikhwelo and 1 X 
Perspective publications 
were produced] 

6  [2 X Masincokole; 
1 X Ikhwelo and 3 X 
Perspective publications 
were not produced]

Due to the need to 
improve the quality of 
publications, there has 
not been enough capacity 
to produce all editions of 
publications as planned. 
The issue of capacity is 
being addressed through 
the organisational re-
positioning process.

1.16 Number of reports on 
media monitoring to 
identify opportunities 
and reputational risks 
and recommend 
ways to mitigate 
these  

12 12 12 media monitoring
reports were produced None -

1.17 Number of provincial 
environmental 
scans conducted 
to identify risks and 
opportunities, and 
recommend ways to 
mitigate these

4 4 4 None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.18 Quarterly 
coordination of 
the provincial 
communication 
system to ensure 
coherent government 
messaging 

4 4 4 None -

1.19 Quarterly monitoring 
and support of the 
Local Government 
Communication 
System to ensure 
coherent government 
messaging

4 4 4 None -

1.20 Number of 
campaigns 
conducted  to 
improve the image of  
the Province

4 4 4 None -

1.21 Quarterly facilitation 
of legislative review 
process

4 4
4 [legislative review 
process was facilitated 
as outlined in the 
performance highlights]

None -

1.22 Number of 
municipalities 
trained on bylaw 
development to 
strengthen local 
government legal 
capacity 

10 7 0 7
COGTA was non-
responsive. The matter 
was tabled as an agenda 
item at the PCF.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.23 Quarterly litigation 
monitoring and 
coordination 

4 4
4 [litigation monitoring 
and coordination was 
conducted]

None -

1.24 Number of 
departments 
supported in the 
implementation of 
PAJA and PAIA 

5 6 6 [DEDEAT; DOH; DOT; 
DRDAR; DSL; and PT] None -

1.25 Quarterly 
monitoring of the 
implementation of 
the human-resource 
plan

4 4 4 [Implementation of the 
HR plan was monitored] None -

1.26 Improved 
departmental ICT 
operational health 
[This is an index 
made up of five 
indicators at output 
level]

100% 280 210 70

Lack of critical ICT skills 
to perform the necessary 
technical management 
work resulted in this 
target not being met. This 
capacity constraint will be 
addressed through the 
implementation of the new 
organisational structure.

1.27 Unqualified audit 
opinion Unqualified audit opinion Unqualified audit opinion Unqualified audit opinion None -

1.28 Percentage of audits 
in the annual audit 
plan completed

96% [26 out of 27     
        planned audits     
        were 
        conducted]

100% 83% [19 out of 23] of 
audits were completed

17% [4 out of 23] of audits 
were not completed. 
These are ICT, records 
management, subsistence 
and travel review, 
and budget and cost 
containment audits. 

The ICT audit will be 
conducted by the PT as 
part of their transversal 
function. Plans are afoot to 
fill the vacant positions in 
the Internal Audit Unit and 
to co-source this function 
to address the capacity 
constraint challenge.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

1.29 Percentage of SMS 
and SCM officials 
disclosing their 
financial interest in 
accordance with the 
SMS handbook and 
SCM regulations

100% 100%

100% [All SMS and 
SCM officials disclosed 
their financial interest 
in accordance with the 
SMS handbook and SCM 
regulations]

None -

1.30 Number of 
stakeholder 
engagement 
sessions facilitated 
to advocate and 
raise awareness on 
constitutional and 
legal rights for:

	 Children New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Youth New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Women New indicator 4 4 None -

	 People with 
disabilities New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Older persons New indicator 4 4 None -

1.31 Number of 
empowerment 
engagement 
sessions facilitated 
for: 

	 Children New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Youth New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Women New indicator 4 4 None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

	 People with 
disabilities

New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Older persons New indicator 4 4 None -

1.32 Number of state 
institutions 
(municipalities 
and departments) 
capacitated on:

	 Children (child-
friendly communities 
and protection)

New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Youth (popularising 
the implementation 
of pillars of the youth 
strategy)

New indicator 4 6 2

The target was exceeded 
because of the 
implementation of the 
provincial Youth Day build-
up programme in the first 
quarter.

	 Women (gender 
policy framework) New indicator 4 4 None -

	 People with 
disabilities 
(accessibility and 
socio-economic 
inclusion)

New indicator 4 4 None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 2015/16 Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on deviation

	 Older persons 
(socio-economic 
inclusion and 
protection)

New indicator 4 4 None -

1.33 Quarterly 
interdepartmental 
sessions conducted 
to ensure responsive 
planning and 
budgeting framework 
for designated 
groups:

	 Children New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Youth New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Women New indicator 4 4 None -

	 People with 
disabilities New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Older persons New indicator 4 4 None -

1.34 Quarterly monitoring 
of socio-economic 
empowerment 
programmes for:

	 Children New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Youth New indicator 4 6 None -

	 Women New indicator 4 4 None -
	 People with 

disabilities New indicator 4 4 None -

	 Older persons New indicator 4 4 None -
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Changes to planned targets
	None

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance
	These are outlined in the ‘comment on deviation’ column. 

Linking performance with budget

2016/2017 2015/2016

Sub-Programme name Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sub-Programme 1.1: Premier’s Office 17 661 16 978 683 14 600 14 782 (182)

Sub-Programme 1.2: Office of the Director-General 58 518 58 031  487 233 712 226 765 6 947

Sub-Programme 1.3: Office of the Chief Operations Officer 42 714 42 712 2 45 850 43 479 2 371

Sub-Programme 1.4: Corporate Services 60 568 58 917 1 651 24 476 22 054 2 422

Sub-Programme 1.5: Financial Management 50 038 49 903 135 47 869 46 229 1 640

Sub-Programme 1.6: Internal Audit 5 624 5 480 144 4 985 5 885 (900)

Sub-Programme 1.7: Enterprise-Wide Risk Management 3 442 3 359 83 2 832 2 816 16

Sub-Programme 1.8: Special Programmes Coordinating Unit 10 401 10 354 47 4 243 4 992 (749)

Sub-Programme 1.9: Departmental Legal Services 95 15 80 - - -

Total 249 061 245 749 3 312 378 567 367 002 11 565
 
Please note that there was a change in the budget structure which affected the composition of the subprogrammes in this programme. Provincial Communication, 
the Office of the Chief State Law Advisor, and Cabinet Secretariat were moved to the newly created Subprogramme 1.3: Office of the Chief Operations Officer. 
The Special Programmes Coordinating Unit was part of Programme 4: Executive Support Services. For further details of this change, please refer to the 
annexure on changes to the strategic plan.
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The programme spent 98.7% of its budget, resulting in the underspending 
reported of R3,312 million. This budget ensured that the Premier provides 
strategic leadership in the Provincial Administration and, in that regard, 
various engagements were facilitated with adverse stakeholders in an 
effective and efficient system of internal control, risk management, financial 
and SCM.  The audit outcomes and the MPAT results reported this year 

are evidence of these efficiencies.  In addition to this, the HR Unit facilitated 
the implementation of the Department’s recruitment plan to enhance the 
capacity in the Department, and to attract required skills accordingly.  The 
reasons for underspending relates to Compensation of Employees due to 
delays in the filling of vacant posts.

B4.3 Programme 2: Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation

Programme purpose
To set the Provincial Administration’s programme of action, and lead evidence-based decision-making for integrated policy formulation, planning, monitoring, 
reporting, evaluation and review of government programmes, including intergovernmental, stakeholder and international relations management.
 
Overview of the programme
The programme is structured as follows: 

Sub-Programme Sub-Programme purpose

Sub-Programme 2.1: Programme Management for Planning, Policy Coordination, 
Monitoring and Evaluation

To provide strategic leadership and support to the programme and the Province 

Sub-Programme 2.2: Policy Planning and Research Coordination To lead the coordination of integrated evidence-based policy, planning and 
research in the Province

Sub-Programme 2.3: Intergovernmental,  Stakeholder and International  Relations To facilitate intergovernmental relations, international relations and stakeholder 
engagement

Sub-Programme 2.4: Service Delivery Intervention and Coordination Support To coordinate and facilitate service delivery interventions

Sub-Programme 2.5: Performance Monitoring and Evaluation To provide strategic leadership in ensuring monitoring and evaluation of 
government priorities 
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Strategic objectives and outputs applicable to the programme

Strategic objective 1: Lead the provincial development agenda for a shared vision institutionalising evidence-based decision-making and integrated planning over the 
medium term.

Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality services.

Strategic objective 3: Enhance inclusive governance through meaningful implementation of citizen empowerment and stakeholder participatory programmes in the current 
term.

Strategic objective 5: Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building internal capability and 
empowering employees.

Performance highlights 

1) During the period under review, the 2017/18 POA has undergone 
a vigorous consultation process with departments, cluster working 
groups, clusters, cabinet committees and EXCO to review the fourth 
year draft PoA.  An improved final 2017/18 PoA was tabled to EXCO, 
and has been endorsed and approved.  The departmental annual 
performance plans showed strong alignment with the PoA, with specific 
targets to be achieved during the 2017/18 financial year. 

2) Furthermore, to improve the vertical alignment of plans and ward-
based planning, a session was held with COGTA to review the IDP 
assessment tool. This was done in response to the IDP summative 
assessment report which emphasised a need to revise the Eastern 
Cape IDP Assessment Framework to accommodate provincial priority 
requirements, such as Operation Masiphathisane. Apart from these 
planning aspects, the quality of IDPs, as it relates to the results-based 
planning approach, still needs improvement.  

3) Institutionalising integrated planning and evidence-based decision-
making: The Amathole, Chris Hani, Sarah Baartman and Joe Gqabi 
districts were supported in their final integrated development plan forums 
through the presentation of provincial long-term infrastructure and other 
capital plans (B5 information) for integrated planning and alignment of 
projects. Further guidance was provided for the mitigation of the gaps 
identified in the B5 submission processes and approvals thereof. A 
provincial integrated coordination structure has been developed, which 
will seek to improve the level of infrastructure coordination and improve 
reporting by all stakeholders, including the OTP, PT, COGTA and the 
DRPW.  The platform will improve the coordination of the 10-year Eastern 
Cape Infrastructure Plan and the rapid response interventions. All 
districts’ infrastructure priority projects were spatially referenced through 
a GIS platform. The OTP, together with the PT and COGTA, facilitated 
provincial Medium Term Expenditure Committee (MTEC) hearings. This 
process was aimed at raising awareness to maximise the budgets by 
improving on efficiencies and aligning sector departmental plans to the 
provincial priorities. The MTEC engagements also focused on minimising 
the duplication of resources and influencing departments to plan in an 
integrated manner.
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4) Policy planning support: The BCMM, two districts (Joe Gqabi and 
Amathole) and three priority municipalities, (Mbizana, Mbhashe and 
the newly amalgamated Walter Sisulu local municipalities) were 
supported technically on policy priority integration during their IDP 
forums, strategic planning sessions and progress review of the Walter 
Sisulu Local Municipality, respectively.

5) Improving research intelligence by finalising front-end testing for the 
provincial research repository online via the internet. This research 
repository makes research conducted by sector departments and 
research institutions available to assist in improving decision-making 
by using scientific means.

6) The Department has made significant strides in the roll-out of 
Operation Masiphathisane. To this end, a total of 372 ward war 
rooms have been established throughout the six districts. Furthermore, 
six local war rooms were established in the Sarah Baartman District.

7) Various sectors of organised formations were consulted through 
the engagement sessions before and after the SOPA, and inputs 
were made towards the pronounced programmes. These include the 
business sectors as well as the youth sector in the Province.

8) Highlights with regard to international relations are:
a) The Eastern Cape hosted a delegation led by the vice-president of 

China, Dr Li Yuanchao, from 19 – 21 November 2016 to enhance 
bilateral cooperation between China and the Eastern Cape in the 
following areas:
i) Possible funding of infrastructure in the Eastern Cape under 

the Forum for China-Africa Cooperation (FOCAC). China 
indicated that it would facilitate funding for identified projects 
from preferential and commercial loans if South Africa provides 
sovereign guarantees.  

ii) Cooperation with China on skills and supplier development to 
improve local participation in the automotive sector. It was agreed 
that the Chinese Embassy in Pretoria would facilitate access to 
Chinese scholarships to Eastern Cape applicants with priority 
given to disciplines in science and technology.

iii) Promotion of the Eastern Cape tourism attractions, especially the 
Garden Route, to Chinese tourists to enable the Eastern Cape to 
tap into the growing Chinese tourism market.

b) As part of the effort to stimulate rural development, land reform and 
food security, the DRDAR and the Göttingen University, which is 
situated in Lower Saxony, initiated a joint project in February 2017 
to introduce simplified cost-effective technologies for aquaponics in 
order to make them accessible to small-scale and emerging farmers. 
Another project was also launched under the auspices of the Eastern 
Cape - Lower Saxony Joint Declaration of Intent on Cooperation to 
promote the participation of households in fresh fish and salt fish 
farming with a view to improving food security. 

c) The Eastern Cape and Lower Saxony signed the Joint Declaration of 
Intent on the Climate Change Protection Initiative in September 2016 
with a view to achieving the objective set in the P-MTSF 2014 – 19 of 
positioning the Province as a major generator of renewable energy. 
DEDEAT is currently collaborating with Next Energy in Lower Saxony 
to build a mini-grid at an estimated cost of R8,5 million to supply power 
from renewable energy sources in the Raymond Mhlaba Municipality.

d) Exchange   programmes  between the DSRAC and the 
LandesSportBund in Lower Saxony were undertaken towards 
the implementation of the joint declaration in the field of sport in 
2016 to provide for capacity building in sports management and 
improving performance in open boxing, canoeing, handball, women’s 
football, table tennis, triathlon, and athletics. Youth exchange and 
volunteer service programmes were also undertaken as part of the 
implementation of the Eastern Cape - Lower Saxony Joint Declaration 
of Intent on Cooperation.

e) To promote relations with countries on the African continent, the 
Eastern Cape hosted a trade mission from Tunisia. In their interactions, 
the two sides agreed to work towards formalising bilateral relations 
by concluding a twinning arrangement. To strengthen trade and 
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investment relations, Tunisia and the Eastern Cape further agreed 
to conclude a cooperation agreement to establish links between 
the Eastern Cape Development Corporation (ECDC), East London 
IDZ and Coega IDZ, and the Tunisian Zarzis Park Free Trade 
Zone. A cooperation agreement between the Eastern Cape and 
Tunisian Chamber of Business and Industry was also proposed. A 
joint venture between La Rose Blanche of Tunisia and a local entity 
in the Eastern Cape to facilitate sourcing and beneficiation of corn, 
wheat, barley and soya for manufacturing pasta, couscous, animal 
feed and related products for export markets.

9) Presidential Hotline cases resolved: With regard to strengthening 
the public’s confidence in government, significant strides were made 
in resolving community concerns, resulting in the resolution of 90,96% 
(8 910 out of 9 795) of calls received on the Presidential Hotline as at 
the end of March 2017. This is above the provincial target of 90%. 

10) Monitoring and facilitating resolution of service delivery 
concerns lodged: With regard to upholding the image of a responsive 
government, the following are some of the highlights made towards 
responding to community concerns:
a) Cookhouse sport field development: The Blue Crane Route 

Local Municipality committed to construct the sport field during the 
Premier’s visit to the area in 2015. The OTP facilitated that the 
municipality builds the sport field promised to the Youth during the 
previous years. The development will assist the young people to 
develop their sporting skills, and also remove them from the streets.

b) Kubusi housing development: The OTP facilitated that the 
Amahlathi Local Municipality completes the housing development 
that was abandoned by the previously appointed contractor. A 
service provider has now been appointed in order to complete the 
uncompleted houses. Currently, the service provider is on site. This 
intervention will contribute towards restoring the trust in government 
amongst the housing beneficiaries who had lost hope. 

c) Mnquma Local Municipality bridges: During a presidential visit, 

the national DRPW committed to construct three bridges in Mnquma 
Local Municipality. The OTP facilitated the Department’s fulfilment 
of its promises. All three bridges located in Bawa, Emazizini, and 
Sidutyeni have now been completed and are awaiting official opening 
by His Excellency, the President. 

d) Donation of shoes to Silindini Junior Secondary School: The 
OTP facilitated a donation of 50 pairs of shoes valued at about 
R7 500 to Silindini Junior Secondary School in Ntabankulu Local 
Municipality. The donation was made by the national Department of 
Rural Development and Land Reform. The shoes were handed over 
during the launch of the war room in the area, and will restore the 
dignity of children from poor families. It will also motivate the children 
to value education. 

e) Service delivery complaint from Thaba Chicha Ward 14 in the 
Matatiele Local Municipality: A petition was received covering a 
number of service delivery issues. Through the facilitation by the 
OTP, the DRDAR constructed the shearing shed with the required 
equipment and a dipping tank. In addition, the DRPW commenced 
with the regravelling of the road from Ongeluksnek to Mariazelle. 
Further, Eskom has appointed a contractor that has started to electrify 
two villages. All these have resulted in improved service delivery in 
the area. 

f) The following progress has been made towards the resolution of 
complaints received from the Ntabethemba community: 
i) New prefabricated offices have been built for the DSD in 

Ntabethemba, and this will improve the image of government.
ii) Surfacing of the road from Thornhill to Tsolwana Game Reserve 

is under way and 13 km have been completed, making the road 
more trafficable to citizens.

g) Housing rectification: A complaint was received regarding the 
rectification programme for 200 houses at Goodwin Park in Bedford. 
The OTP followed up with the DHS in order to ensure that the affected 
houses are rectified. The rectification housing programme in Bedford 
within Raymond Mhlaba Local Municipality is nearing completion, as 
most of the houses have been constructed. This contributes towards 
the dignity of the citizens who will occupy them.
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11) Facilitation, monitoring and reporting on provincial and national 
key programmes
a) Provincial petitions management framework: The provincial 

petitions management framework was developed by the Service 
Delivery Intervention Co-ordination and Support (SDICS) Unit 
in the OTP in collaboration with COGTA and the Eastern Cape 
Legislature. It was approved by EXCO, and its implementation will 
contribute towards ensuring that service delivery concerns from 
communities are speedily addressed.

b) Cookhouse Premier’s intervention: A complaint was received 
regarding the lack of houses built in the area. The OTP facilitated 
the release of land by Masizame Trust beneficiaries to make way 
for the housing development pronounced by the Premier during his 
visit to the area. This milestone will ensure that houses will finally 
be built for the Cookhouse residents, improving their well-being.

c) Operation Masiphathisane: The OTP participated in the 
establishment and launch of war rooms in six district municipalities 
in the Province. This included coordination of stakeholders and 
facilitation of training workshops on the integrated service delivery 
model (ISDM). The approach is aimed at bringing government 
closer to the people and ensuring that people participate in their 
development.

12) Content support was provided to provincial leadership 
engagements, including the HOD retreat which prepared for the EXCO 
Makgotlas (especially the first lekgotla after the 2016 local government 
elections). The support included facilitation of EXCO lekgotla outcomes 
and follow-up on resolutions, which was a critical milestone towards 
institutionalisation. The refocusing of provincial priorities (priorities of 
priorities) was thus agreed upon in order to influence planning and 
budgeting for 2017/18.

13) The Department developed a midterm report detailing the Provincial 

Government’s performance against the policy priorities (2014 – 2016), 
and ensured timely submission of the report to the Department of 
Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation (DPME). The Eastern Cape report 
will contribute to the national report on the midterm review of the South 
African Government’s performance. The report has been utilised by 
provincial leadership as reference material during the SOPA. The report 
has also been critical in shaping the Provincial Government programmes 
for the remainder of the term. 

14) With regard to monitoring of the POA, the overall performance of the 
three cluster systems (governance and administration [G & A], economic 
development [ED], and social transformation [ST]) was above 50%. 
The G & A Cluster showed an improvement from 43% to 53% on the 
achievement of targets, whilst the ED Cluster moved from 43% to 64% 
by the end of the financial year. This achievement is attributed to the 
functionality of the cluster system wherein integration work was carried 
out through the 14 working groups. However, continuous improvement in 
the functionality of all the working groups is being undertaken through 
reconfiguration of the cluster working groups. This is viewed as a critical 
building block towards integration and performance tracking in relation to 
the implementation of the POA. 

15) The capacity building programme for planning, monitoring and 
evaluation practitioners continued to focus on the diagnosis of the 
current situation. This included the development of terms of reference 
for the improvement of the performance monitoring and evaluation 
capacity of the Province.  The follow-up phases will focus on the review 
of the provincial M & E framework, mapping of provincial indicators, 
development of a data management system, effective implementation, 
reporting and evaluations.  

16) The provincial evaluation plan was executed in line with the DPME 
evaluation guidelines. Two out of four evaluations have been concluded. 
One is being finalised by the DOH whilst the remaining one could 
not be finalised by the DSRAC within the timeframes. The evaluation 
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of government programmes is critical in ensuring evidence-based 
decision-making. The findings of the evaluation of Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) support to municipalities, for example, revealed that 
50% of respondents felt that the implementation of the CFO support 
programme was effective, whilst 77% supported the notion that the 
CFO support intervention was cost-effective. The main reason put forth 
was that the provision of support saved municipalities the cost of hiring 
consultants. 

17) Support was provided to departments as part of MPAT coordination. 
As a result, there has been a concerted effort by some departments to 
include MPAT standards in their APPs and in the performance agreements 
of responsible employees. The support further yielded results wherein 
departments such as the DRDAR and PT improved from an average 
non-compliance level in MPAT 1.5 to compliance level 3 in the MPAT 1.6 
final results. 

Strategic objectives indicators 

Strategic objective 1: Lead the provincial 
developmental agenda for a shared vision 
institutionalising evidence-based decision-
making and integrated planning over 
medium term

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

1.1 Improved institutionalisation of 
integrated planning Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level 

	The POA was not ready at the beginning of the 
planning season in the period under review, and 
therefore it had limited influence on the strategic 
plans and APPs of departments.

	Majority of infrastructure plans are not fully 
aligned to provincial priorities. 

	However, all departments have a five-year 
strategic plan aligned to the ECPDP and 
P-MTSF and drafted in accordance with the 
relevant guidelines; an APP and an operational 
plan or project plans aligned to the POA 
and drafted in accordance with the relevant 
guidelines; delivery agreements of MECs are 
aligned to the POA, and HOD agreements 
are aligned to MEC delivery agreements; staff 
performance agreements are aligned to the APP 
and operational plans and projects plan.
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Strategic objective 1: Lead the provincial 
developmental agenda for a shared vision 
institutionalising evidence-based decision-
making and integrated planning over 
medium term

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

1.2 Improved evidence-based decision-
making  Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level 

	The Province has a research agenda which is 
aligned to the ECPDP and P-MTSF.

	Policy and programme analysis projects 
completed.

	Research and development capacity is still in its 
infancy. 

	The utilisation of research findings in policy 
development and service delivery improvement 
is still limited. 

	Knowledge database established and is being 
maintained.

	Provincial research forum has been re-
established and is functional
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Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

2.2 Improved interdepartmental 
coordination at all spheres Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	Strategic projects and programmes identified from the 
State of the Nation Address (SONA), ECPDP, P-MTSF and 
SOPA.

	Baseline data for Premier’s intervention projects is 
available. However, the one for basic services is not 
comprehensive.

	The OTP collates, analyses and provides strategic reports.
	The OTP coordinates departments and stakeholders to 

participate in platforms that deal with strategic projects and 
programmes.

	The OTP facilitates and monitors the implementation of 
strategic projects and programmes. However, there is room 
for improvement, particularly in terms of covering more 
strategic projects.

	The OTP is facilitating and monitoring implementation of the 
KSD Presidential Intervention.

	The indicator framework, data monitoring tools and 
reporting templates were developed.

	The capacitation of M & E practitioners on data collection 
tools was conducted. However, the quality of compliance by 
the Department is still weak.

	There was timely submission of complete data particularly 
regarding POA performance reports.

	Data verification was done.
	Data analysis and report writing is being done and reports 

are presented to various coordinating structures.
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Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

2.3 A responsive public service Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None 

	The Province has effective mechanisms, processes and 
procedures for managing community and stakeholders 
concerns. However, in some cases, citizens do not utilise 
these effectively.

	Community concerns are acknowledged and their 
implementation monitored. In the year under review, for 
instance, over 90% of cases logged through the Presidential 
Hotline were resolved. 

	The public perception survey index has improved from 38% 
in the past three years to 44% currently, which indicates a 
significant improvement.

	Compared to the 2015/16 financial year, there has been a 
reduction in the number of protests reported in the Province.
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Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation (through improved 
integration and  coordination)  of 
government programmes to ensure 
continuous  access to quality services

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

2.4 Improved access to quality services Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	Some governance structures involving citizens are not fully 
functional. Examples of these include ward committees and 
war rooms.

	The Province has a front-line service delivery monitoring 
programme in place. However, with more resources, the 
coverage of the programme will be improved.

	Annual front-line service delivery monitoring plan was fully 
implemented.

	There is significant room for improvement by departments 
and municipalities regarding the resourcing and 
implementation of service delivery improvement plans.

	The OTP monitors the implementation of service delivery 
improvement plans for all targeted facilities.

	Capacitation of M&E research practitioners was conducted. 
However, further concerted efforts are required to get 
the Province to reach the level of minimum norms and 
standards. 

	Support on concept notes for evaluation was provided to the 
four identified departments. 

	Support is provided on evaluation processes. However, 
departments are failing to develop and implement their own 
evaluation plans.
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Strategic objective 3: Enhance citizen 
empowerment through improved inclusive 
governance and implementation of 
meaningful stakeholder participatory 
programmes in the current term

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

3.4 Sound intergovernmental governance 
arrangements Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	The provincial IGR steering committee has been 
established and is functional. 

	Local and district IGR fora are established and functional, 
with the exception of the two metros.

	Ward-based IGR structures are established and relatively 
functional. 

	Ward forums are household and community profiling which 
will inform their plans has been conducted. 

	Through the household and community profiling, baseline 
information will be generated. 

	While all the structures have been set up and are 
functional, ensuring that agendas for different IGR 
structures are aligned, is a challenge. This makes it 
impossible to track the implementation of decisions.

3.5
Improved and meaningful 
participation of citizens in their own 
development

Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 2 Levels

	The strategy for stakeholder and community participation 
developed.

	Issues raised by communities and stakeholders 
find expression in government integrated plans and 
programmes. 

	The participation of communities in the monitoring of 
service delivery is being strengthened through the 
implementation of the Masiphathisane approach.

	Partnerships are leveraged for service delivery (including 
mobilisation of resources). However, this is still on an ad 
hoc basis, as the strategy is not yet in place.
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Performance against set targets 

Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.1  Percentage of employees in the   
programme complying with the 
performance management system 
(performance contracting, reviews and 
assessments)

New indicator 100%

100% [66 out of 
66] of employees 
signed performance 
agreements

An average of 63% 
of officials conducted 
performance reviews 
[98% (42 out of 43) of 
employees conducted 
Q1 reviews; 73% 
(48 out of 66) of 
employees conducted 
Q2 reviews; 60% 
(26 out of 43) of 
employees conducted 
Q3 reviews; and 
21% (14 out of 66) of 
employees conducted 
Q4 reviews]

An average of 37% 
of officials did not 
conduct performance 
reviews timeously 
[2% (1 out of 43) 
of employee did 
not conduct Q1 
reviews timeously; 
27% (18 out of 66) 
of employees did 
not conduct Q2 
reviews timeously; 
40% (17 out of 43) 
of employees did not 
conduct Q3 reviews 
timeously; and 79% 
(52 out of 66) of 
employees did not 
conduct Q4 reviews 
timeously]

Non-compliance is 
the major cause for 
non-achievement of 
this target. Action will 
be taken against the 
non-compliant officials.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.2 Percentage of approved programme 
budget spent

95.2% [R112,045 
million  out of 
R117,680  million] 
[Please note that 
Intergovernmental 
and Stakeholder 
Relations was not part 
of this programme in 
the 2015/16 financial 
year. However, their 
budget has been 
included in this 
calculation. The figure 
in the 2015/16 Annual 
Report therefore 
differs from the one 
declared here].

100% 88.5% [R108,7 million 
out of R122,9 million]

11.5% [R14,2 million 
out of R122,9 million] 
was not spent 

Please refer to 
details on programme 
expenditure in the 
Accounting Officer 
Overview.

2.3 Percentage of findings of the 
programme in the audit improvement 
plan being implemented

New indicator 100%
There were no 
findings relating to this 
programme

None -

2.4 Percentage of the programme risk 
action plan implemented New indicator 100%

95% [18 out of 19] 
of action plans were 
implemented

5% [1 out of 19] of 
action plans are 
not yet finalised

The MOU with 
universities on research 
has not been finalised 
due to the consultation 
process that is taking 
longer than what was 
anticipated.

2.5  Annual programme of action developed 1 1 1 [The POA was 
developed] None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.6 Number of departmental annual 
performance plans analysed for 
alignment with the provincial priorities

13 13

13 [Draft APPs of 
all 13 departments 
were assessed for 
alignment with the 
provincial priorities 
and feedback 
provided]

None -

2.7 Number of district IDPs supported to 
align with the provincial priorities 2 8

3 [Chris Hani; 
Amathole District 
Municipalities and 
NMBMM]

5 district municipalities  

Capacity challenges 
in the Department 
are being addressed 
through the review 
of the organisational 
structure.

2.8 Number of sector departments’ research 
aligned to the provincial research 
agenda

New indicator 1

1 [An assessment 
of research work 
in relation to the 
research agenda 
was concluded for 
DEDEAT]

None -

2.9 Quarterly implementation of the IGR 
strategy (quarterly PCF engagements 
and quarterly MuniMEC engagements)

New indicator 4

3 [Quarterly PCF 
engagements and 
quarterly MuniMEC 
engagements were 
held in all quarters, 
except in the third 
quarter]

A quarterly 
engagement was 
not held in the third 
quarter

The politica leadership 
were not available due 
to competing priorities 
hence the PCF could 
not take place in the 
third quarter.



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report78

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.10 Number of district/metro  municipalities 
implementing the Integrated Service 
Delivery Model (ISDM)

New indicator 8

6 [Chris Hani; 
Joe Gqabi; Sarah 
Baartman; Amathole, 
Alfred Nzo and 
OR Tambo are 
implementing the 
ISDM]

2  [NMBMM and 
BCMM are not 
implementing the 
ISDM] 

The ISDM could not 
be implemented in 
these two metros due 
to lack of cooperation. 
The matter has been 
escalated to leadership 
to intervene and the 
BCM is now preparing 
for implementation.

2.11 Number of public participation fora 
facilitated to ensure community 
and stakeholder engagements with 
government (EXCO outreach and 
institutionalised days)

4 32

29 fora were 
facilitated to 
ensure community 
and stakeholder 
engagements

3 fora could not be 
held due to competing 
priorities

The launch of Operation 
Masiphathisane in 
Chris Hani, which 
was scheduled for the 
second quarter, and two 
pre-SOPA engagements 
were not held due to 
competing priorities. 

2.12 Quarterly coordination of the 
Provincial International Relations 
Steering Committee to monitor the 
implementation of the provincial 
international relations strategy

4 4

2 [Sessions were 
held as part of the 
coordination and 
monitoring of the  
implementation of the 
provincial international 
relations strategy]

2 quarterly 
engagements were 
not held 

2 quarterly 
engagements for 
the second and third 
quarters were not 
held due to competing 
priorities 
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.13 Number of twinning arrangements with 
international partners concluded to 
advance provincial priorities

2 2

2  [Joint Declaration 
of Intent on the 
Climate Change 
Protection Initiative 
and Joint Declaration 
on Cooperation in the 
Field of Sport were 
signed with Lower 
Saxony in Germany]

None -

2.14 Percentage of Presidential Hotline 
cases resolved

86% [7 888 out of 9 
132] 90%

91% [8 910 calls 
resolved out of 9 795 
calls received]

1%

The cooperation 
between the OTP 
and departments in 
resolving hotline cases 
is maturing, hence the 
target was exceeded. 

2.15 Percentage of facilities monitored 
as part of front-line service delivery 
monitoring  and community-based 
monitoring programmes

100% 100% [54 sites]
A total of 61 site 
visits (113%) were 
conducted.

7  additional site visits 
were conducted 

In addition to the 
planned visits, 
additional site visits 
were conducted in 
some of the facilities 
due to poor progress 
made in implementing 
the improvement plans. 

2.16 Quarterly monitoring and facilitating 
resolution of service delivery concerns 
lodged

4 4
4 [Service delivery 
concerns were 
facilitated and 
monitored]

None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.17 Quarterly facilitation, monitoring and 
reporting on provincial and national key 
programmes

4 4

4 [Facilitation, 
monitoring and 
reporting on provincial 
and national key 
programmes was 
conducted]

None -

2.18 Percentage of POA targets achieved 
(Governance and Administration, 
Social Transformation, and Economic 
Development Clusters) 

New indicator 100%

54% [125 of 229] 
of indicators were 
achieved as follows:
	 Economic 

Development 
Cluster: 52% [24 
of 46];

	 Social 
Transformation 
Cluster: 56% [80 
out of 143];

	 Governance and 
Administration 
Cluster: 53%  [22 
of 40]

46% [105 of 229] of 
indicators were not 

achieved

Weak levels of 
accountability 
in the Provincial 
Administration hinder 
the achievement of 
targets in the POA.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17)

Deviation from 
target Comment on deviation

2.19 Number of provincial targeted 
evaluations coordinated and conducted New indicator 4

1 [Impact of 
CFO support to 
municipalities]

3 [Evaluation of 
integrated school 
health services policy 
and the evaluation of 
the Mass Participation 
Programme grant 
were not completed. 
The evaluation of 
the impact of the 
National School 
Nutrition Programme 
was withdrawn 
from the provincial 
evaluation plan since 
the Department of 
Basic Education was 
already conducting a 
similar study.]

The Department, 
through the MTEC 
process, will ensure that 
departments prioritise 
evaluations.

2.20 Number of Provincial departments 
implementing MPAT improvement 
plans

New indicator 13
13 [all department 
are implementing 
improvement plans]

- -

Changes to planned targets
	None 

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance
	These are outlined in the ‘comment on deviation’ column. 
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Linking performance with budget

2016/2017 2015/2016

Subprogramme name Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sub-Programme 2.1: Programme Management for  
Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation 2 904 2 399 505 2 949 2 882 67

Sub-Programme 2.2: Policy Planning and Research 
Coordination 45 379 44 471 908 61 303 53 208 8 095

Sub-Programme 2.3: Intergovernmental,  Stakeholder and 
International  Relations 20 278 18 210 2 068 15 723 13 792 1 931

Sub-Programme 2.4: Service Delivery Intervention and 
Coordination Support 39 382 31 746 7 636 20 807 21 750 (943)

Sub-Programme 2.5: Performance Monitoring and 
Evaluation 14 953 11 906 3 047 12 655 15 420 (2 765)

Total 122 896 108 732 14 164 113 437 107 052 6 385

 
Please note that there was a change in the budget structure which affected the composition of the Sub-Programme in this programme. The Sub-Programme 2.3: 
Intergovernmental, Stakeholder and International Relations was moved from Programme 4: Executive Support Services to this programme. Also note that, in the 
2015/16 financial year, the programme was Programme 3: Policy and Governance. For further details of this change, please refer to the annexure on changes 
to the strategic plan.

The programme spent 88,5% of its budget, resulting in it underspending by R14,164 million mainly due to delays in the replacement of vacant posts not being 
filled. Goods and services under expenditure is mainly due to delays in the signing of the service level agreement for youth related projects.   
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B4.2 Programme 3: Institutional Development & Organisational Support

Programme purpose
Managing the administration of the public service system and promoting accountable governance by providing institutional development and organisational 
support services to ensure that the Provincial Government has sufficient skills capacity to effectively and efficiently deliver on its mandate.

Overview of the programme
The programme is structured as follows: 

Sub-Programme Sub-Programme purpose

Sub-Programme 3.1: Programme Management for Institutional Development and 
Organisational Support To provide strategic leadership to the programme 

Sub-Programme 3.2: Institutional Support Services To provide strategic organisational development consultancy support services to 
the Province

Sub-Programme 3.3: Human Capital and Talent Management Support Services To provide strategic management, consulting and support services with respect to 
human capital and talent management

Sub-Programme 3.4: Human-Resource Development Support Services To coordinate the development and implementation of strategic human-resource 
development interventions 

Sub-Programme 3.5: Information Technology Management To provide and coordinate the provision of an integrated information and 
communications technology service

Sub-Programme 3.6: Anti-Corruption and Security Management To coordinate the implementation of the provincial anti-corruption programme of 
action and security management policies
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Strategic objectives and outputs applicable to the programme

Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation of government programmes to ensure access to quality services  

Strategic objective 4: Strengthen accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of public sector reforms in the Province 
on an ongoing basis

Strategic objective 5: Transform the OTP over the medium term to a high 
performance organisation by creating an enabling environment, building 
internal capability and empowering employees

Performance highlights 
1) The Department supported COGTA, DEDEAT, DHS, DOE, DOH, DOT, 

DRDAR, DRPW, DSL, DSRAC and OTP through the Organisational 
Development Unit to align their proposed organograms with service 
delivery models and DPSA generic structures.  All these departments 
now have approved service delivery models which have been 
aligned with departmental mandates and five-year strategies.  
Provincial departments are now at the final stages of completing 
their organograms, as a pre-validation session was conducted by the 
OTP and DPSA to directly consult with departments. This resulted in 
departments understanding the functional groupings and alignment 
with sector generic structures which was a challenge in finalising their 
organograms.   

2) Furthermore, provincial departments were supported with a joint 
intervention in job evaluation in order to ensure that all newly created 
and reconfigured posts in the proposed organograms have gone 
through job evaluation.  Job analysts were also trained on the new 
job evaluation web-based tool, and this has capacitated all analysts in 
provincial departments in terms of job evaluation. 

3) The Department implemented knowledge management projects to 

assist the DOE. These projects include: 
a) The facilitation of computer sponsorship for three schools, as 

the OTP, together with the Centre for Public Service Innovation 
(CPSI), facilitated the Mobile Telephone Network (MTN) Foundation 
sponsorship. This resulted in the delivery and installation of flat screen 
computers, printers and smart boards at St John’s College, and 
Ngwayibanjwa and Dalindyebo high schools.  Each school received 
21 computers, and learners in these schools now have access to the 
internet, which was also installed by the MTN Foundation.  Teaching 
software for Mathematics and Science was also installed on the 
computers. This intervention has greatly assisted the learners in 
these three schools, as they now have access to electronic learning 
through state-of-the-art computer laboratories.

b) The Provincial Knowledge Hub (PKH) was developed, maintained and 
populated with information which include policies, strategies, reports 
and information about municipal tenders.  This hub is constantly 
maintained and information is uploaded daily.  The hub is available 
through www.provincialknowledgehub.ecprov.gov.za.  These projects 
will be sustained through constant monitoring and evaluation in order 
to ensure that the impact reaches the desired level.

4) With regard to the development and implementation of service delivery 
improvement plans, the institutional support services chief directorate 
supported DEDEAT, DOT, OTP, DRDAR, DSD, DSL and the DRPW 
through the SDIP Unit: 
a) These departments have seen an increase towards improvement 

of productivity, due to business process mapping (BPM) and the 
development of standard operating procedures in key services 
delivery areas, e.g. DEDEAT’s consumer complaint section has 
achieved a 30% increase in productivity. 

b) These departments were assisted to develop minimum standards 
of operation to be adhered to by different sections that provide 
services within the departments. This intervention has ensured that 
all departments’ clients are treated consistently and fairly across 
all operations, including support service branches. It has also 
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encouraged a culture of accountability. 
c) The replication of BPM and SOPs can yield satisfactory results, 

and SOPs are tailor-made for each unique key service area. 
Therefore, In order to sustain this intervention and further improve 
the productivity of each department, a training session has been 
organised to train all relevant officials to develop BPM and SOPs 
in order to build the capacity of each department to conduct BPM 
and develop SOPs. 

5) The Department has supported all provincial departments on the 
development and implementation of Batho Pele and culture change.  
Subsequently, departments now have functional Batho Pele forums 
that understand what their role is in the implementation of the Batho 
Pele Revitalisation Strategy (BPRS). The implementation of Khaedu 
is an ongoing programme and, while all provincial departments are 
being supported to accelerate the implementation of this programme, 
the PT and DRDAR are doing well, as they have started implementing 
their Khaedu implementation plan. This will result in evidence-based 
planning, and will ultimately feed their service delivery improvement 
plans and HR planning processes. The OTP has drawn up a 
customised change management plan and implementation thereof has 
started. This plan could be shared with and replicated in all provincial 
departments, as it is integrated in the restructuring process. The 
Department successfully coordinated and facilitated Public Service 
Month (PSM) which was integrated with Operation Masiphathisane 
at Joe Gqabi and Sarah Baartman district municipalities. This further 
strengthened the Provincial Government’s efforts to reach out to 
local communities through community engagements, service delivery 
facilitation, showcasing of public services, provision of services on 
wheels, and problem solving.

6) Hands-on support on human capital and talent management 
policies
a) On education support, the foundation was laid to restore 

functionality in the DOE through filling of critical vacancies. A 

total of 14 SMS posts were filled, which was instrumental in bringing 
about stability at leadership level. The middle management level for 
support functions (HR, finance and SCM) was staffed in districts and 
the head office. Significant recruitment support was also provided in 
the selection processes for educational therapists, which provided 
crucial capacity to the Department in the area of inclusive education. 

b) The reported backlogs with regard to the Policy and Procedure 
on Incapacity Leave and Ill-Health Retirement (PILIR) are being 
eliminated with 98,9% of the applications being completed by the 
current health risk manager, and 98% of stockpiled applications 
have been finalised through Metropolitan HRM. This represents a 
significant improvement compared to the previous financial year. 
Improvement will continue with the support provided. The burden 
of the total elimination of PILIR cases rests with the individual 
departments, and the OTP is strengthening its efforts in supporting 
departments in this regard.

7) Labour environment
a) The Province has reduced the incidents of precautionary suspensions 

to a point where, in two quarters, there were none. This is a positive 
development in the management of discipline, as it suggests that 
departments now follow the policy and guidelines on suspensions, 
thus promoting fairness with respect to this aspect of discipline 
management.

b) The institutionalisation of dialogue with unions has seen consensus on 
pressing issues, including HR backlogs. This resulted in departments 
reporting a complete eradication. Whilst significant progress has 
been made, it is acknowledged that more still needs to be done. 

8) COE reduction: With the introduction of the PCMT control processes, 
the Province managed to reduce COE from 65% to 63%, yielding a 2% 
reduction in the 2016/17 financial year.

9) HOD performance management: The HODs’ performance agreements 
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were validated for compliance with the standard framework for HODs, 
inclusion of mandatory key result areas, and alignment with the SDAs 
of their respective MECs. This process ensured both uniformity (where 
appropriate) and a clear focus on service delivery commitments of 
government with respect to each department.

10) Assistance is being provided to 819 technical and vocational education 
and training (TVET) learners to help them qualify for diplomas, with 
81% coming from rural colleges. A total of 34 departments and 
companies across the Province are hosting learners. The project will 
contribute to raising the skills base with special emphasis on youth 
from rural areas. The HRD Council was reconstituted to be in a better 
position to respond to strategic provincial skills priorities.

11) A provincial induction task team was established (OTP, provincial 
departments and the National School of Government [NSG]) to 
oversee the implementation of all forms of induction. This task team 
will ensure that probation of employees is confirmed on time. 

12) A total of 863 newly appointed staff attended training that demonstrates 
the impact of the Compulsory Induction Programme (CIP) task team on 
the implementation of the CIP in departments. Leadership development 
programmes were implemented to strengthen the pipeline talent, and 
it benefited 127 provincial employees.  

13) All 13 departments submitted their workplace skills plans and annual 
training reports to the Public Service Sector Education and Training 
Authority (PSETA) and OTP. However, there are still challenges in 
getting the full budget for skills development by departments. The 
13 departments placed 1 650 interns across the Province due to 
shrinking budgets and a general rise in living costs. A total of 256 
youth were on the bursary programmes of six departments, whereas 
seven departments did not award any bursaries. Four departments 
are implementing learnerships to improve skills.

14) With regard to the financial aid programme, the OTP recognised 
that a number of academically deserving young people from the 
Eastern Cape were missing out on the opportunity to pursue their post 
matric studies due to a lack of financial capacity. The programme is 
structured as follows: 

a) The Premier’s scholarship award: Each year the Premier awards 
a scholarship of up to R80 000 per year for the duration of their study 
to the top 30 Grade 12 learners. In 2016 – 17 the Premier’s Office 
funded 151 Premier’s scholarship recipients studying at the Cape 
Peninsula University of Technology, Nelson Mandela Metropolitan 
University (NMMU), University of Cape Town, University of Fort 
Hare (UFH), University of the Free State, University of KwaZulu-
Natal, University of Pretoria, Rhodes University (RU), University 
of Stellenbosch, University of the Western Cape (UWC), 
Witwatersrand University, and Walter Sisulu University (WSU). All 
the scholarship recipients continue to produce outstanding results. 

b) Financial assistance to non-scholarship recipients: The 
non-scholarship programme assists academically deserving and 
financially needy learners studying at institutions of higher learning 
(RU, UFH, NMMU and WSU) in the Province who are academically 
deserving. The learners are assisted with R65 000 towards their 
studies every year in an effort by the Provincial Government to 
assist poor students.

c) Support to Eastern Cape institutions of higher learning to 
conduct research: The OTP assisted institutions of higher learning 
in the Eastern Cape with funding for the purposes of conducting 
research that supports the provincial development agenda. It is 
envisaged that the cooperation of our institutions will enable us 
to draw on the strengths of the institutions in terms of agriculture, 
economic development programmes, impact studies and social 
transformation outcomes. The institutions were supported with 
R6,5 million. The WSU received R2,5 million, the UFH received 
R2 million, the RU received R1 million and the NMMU received 
R1 million. 
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15) Regarding ICT governance, there is a better understanding of the ICT 
governance framework and what is required in order to mature in the 
implementation as endorsed by the DPSA Implementation Guidelines 
and the alignment to MPAT. Departments are slowly improving from 
level 1 to 2.5 as per MPAT ratings. The ICT steering committees are 
more functional in monitoring ICT projects to address scoping, planning, 
prioritisation, standardisation, economies of scale and value for money. 
Departments have learnt that cooperation is key, and that the correct 
approach should be applied when tackling complex challenges. Some 
departments already have working solutions for challenges that other 
departments are still struggling with (e.g. DEDEAT have an ICT strategy 
that is aligned to the Government Wide Enterprise Architecture (GWEA) 
Framework. Departments will share best practices before benchmarking 
with other provinces.

16) Broadband roll-out: Phase 1 of the Bhisho campus network revamping 
focused on providing network stability and has since been completed 
through the support of SITA in terms of wide area network (WAN). 

17) Regarding the implementation of the provincial anti-corruption action 
plan, the following can be highlighted:  
a) Financial disclosures: Due to the newness of the eDisclosure 

system, the Province struggled to meet targets on financial disclosures 
by SMS during the 2015/16 reporting cycle.  An extension of the 
submission date was sought and granted by the DPSA, after which 
only three departments still could not achieve 100%. This resulted 
in the improvement of the provincial performance from 47% in the 
previous disclosure cycle to 94% during this reporting cycle. 

b) The implementation of the Policy to Prohibit Trade and/or 
Employment by Employees of the Eastern Cape Provincial 
Government without Approval has reduced conflicts of interest 
during the tender processes of government, and also resulted in 
a reduction of the number of officials applying to do remunerative 
work outside government.  Ethics officers have been appointed 
or delegated in most departments to monitor the implementation 
of the policy, and to provide annual implementation reports. Ten 
reports were submitted by departments. 

c) Case management: The investigation and assessment of fraud 
and corruption backlog cases resulted in 465 out of 706 cases 
from the following departments being closed by the PSC: Health: 
133, COGTA: 143, and Education: 189 cases.

d) Anti-corruption awareness sessions were conducted in 
partnership with different anti-corruption stakeholders (Special 
Investigating Unit [SIU], Road Accident Fund [RAF], Statistics 
South Africa [SSA], South African Police Service [SAPS], and 
PSC) reaching government officials and community members with 
the aim of discouraging criminal acts, enhancing reporting, and 
preventing and detecting fraud and corruption acts.  The emphasis 
during the year was on taking ethics back to schools in a campaign 
that resulted in the participation of 25 schools which benefited 
more than 1 000 learners from different district municipalities. The 
sessions served as a deterrent to criminal and fraudulent activities 
which could lead to incarceration and convictions. 

e) All departments have direct access to obtaining fingerprints which 
has brought a turnaround in the processing of personality suitability 
checks before the appointment of officials in government.
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Strategic objectives indicators 

Strategic objective 2: Lead socio-
economic transformation by accelerating 
implementation of government programmes 
to ensure access to quality services

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

2.5 Improved skills development for 
economic growth Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	The funding available for young people to access skills 
development opportunities is still limited and, therefore, not 
all can access skills development programmes.

	Workplaces are providing limited spaces to engineering, 
TVET and higher education and training (HET) students 
to gain workplace experience and gain their qualifications. 
However, there have been improvements where 
government departments and municipalities are beginning 
to absorb more youth. 

	The alignment between the skills development and 
turnaround of economic development intervention is still 
limited as projects are not implemented within the planned 
timeframes.

	Departments are making budget available for interns and 
youth programmes. However, this is still below the 20% 
threshold prescribed by the DPSA.

	The OTP is coordinating the implementation of experiential 
learning programmes. In the 2016/17 financial year, R75 
million was mobilised for this programme.
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Strategic objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
ongoing basis

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

4.7 Effective management and 
operations systems Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 2 Levels 

	Only the DSD and DOT have completed phase 1 of BPM, 
which includes the mapping of (AS-IS) processes. The 
DRPW and DEDEAT have commenced with the process 
and they are still in progress.

	The operations management framework is still a new area 
in government. Therefore, its implementation is still at 
infancy stage. 

4.8 Skilled public service Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level 

	Departments developed workplace skills plans but the 
quality is still poor. For instance, there is weak alignment of 
the plans with sector development plans.

	Consultation with line managers and organised labour in 
developing HRD plans is still weak in most departments.

	Line function managers and supervisors do not prioritise 
core and critical skills training of officials.

	The work skills programmes (WSPs) are not taking the 
PDPs of employees into account and are not considering 
performance outcomes.

	All departments are still weak in managing succession 
planning. 

4.9 Professional public service Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 2 Levels 

	Only two departments (DRDAR and PT) have approved 
culture change and Batho Pele revitalisation plans.

	A provincial business process framework and methodology 
are in place.

	All departments except COGTA are participating in the 
PSM activities.

	None of the departments are conducting customer 
satisfaction surveys.

	Only three departments (OTP, DRDAR and PT) are 
participating in the Khaedu deployment programme.
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Strategic objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
ongoing basis

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

4.10 Improved human-resource capacity 
and effectiveness Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	Human Resource Administration (HRA) processes are 
partially functional and do not have clear SOPs.

	There is no focus on strategic policy directives like EE.
	HR forecasting is incongruent and effectiveness of 

assessments is limited.
	There are low levels of Performance Management and 

Development System (PMDS) implementation, focussing 
only on rewards.

	There is no engagement with social partners and no 
adherence to prescripts.

	Partially events-based organisational and employee 
wellness programmes are not informed by departmental 
needs.

4.11 Improved leadership capacity and 
accountability Level 2 Level 3 Level 3 None

	A leadership development model is in place, but leadership 
development programmes only target senior management.

	Competency assessments are conducted prior to the 
appointment of SMS members.

	Leadership training is taking place, however, its 
effectiveness is still being determined.

	All SMS officials are properly inducted into the Eastern 
Cape Provincial Administration.

	Reporting and analysis of leadership development 
programmes are taking place and improvements are 
developed.
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Strategic objective 4: Strengthen 
accountability in corporate governance 
through enforcing the implementation of 
public sector reforms in the Province on an 
ongoing basis

Actual 
achieved
2015/16

Planned 
targets
2016/17

Actual 
achieved
2016/17

Deviation 
from target Comment on deviations

4.12 Improved integrity in the public 
service Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 1 Level

	Backlog cases from 2005 have been cleared.
	All departments have fraud and anti-corruption policies.
	All departments, with the exception of the DOE, have anti-

fraud and corruption minimum capacity.
	More than half of districts and metros have anti-fraud and 

corruption minimum capacity.
	The implementation of anti-corruption policies is taking 

place in all departments except in the DOE. 
	The implementation of fraud prevention and anti-corruption 

policies is taking place in Chris Hani, NMBMM, Joe Gqabi, 
and Amathole. However, it is yet to take place in other 
districts and metros.

	There has been ongoing awareness campaigns on fraud 
and corruption.

	The provincial whistle-blowing policy is in place and cases 
are being reported.

	There is adequate collaboration with other law enforcement 
agencies in the Province.
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Performance against set targets 

Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.1 Percentage of employees in the 
programme  complying with the 
performance management system 
[performance contracting, reviews and 
assessments]

New indicator 100%

100% [74 out of 
74] of employees 
signed performance 
agreements

An average of 61% 
of officials conducted 
performance reviews 
[82% [49 out of 60] of 
employees conducted 
Q1 reviews; 61% 
[45 out of 74] of 
employees conducted 
Q2 reviews; 72% 
[43 out of 60 ] of 
employees conducted 
Q3 reviews; and 
30% [18 out of 60] of 
employees conducted 
Q4 reviews]

An average of 39% 
of officials did not 
conduct performance 
reviews timeously 
[18% [11 out of 60] 
of employees did not 
conduct Q1 reviews 
timeously; 39% [29 out 
of 74] of employees 
did not conduct Q2 
reviews timeously; 
28% [17 out of 60 ] 
of employees did not 
conduct Q3 reviews 
timeously; and 70% 
[42 out of 60] of 
employees did not 
conduct Q3 reviews 
timeously]

Non-compliance is 
the major cause for 
non-achievement of 
this target. Action will 
be taken against the 
non-compliant officials.

3.2 Percentage of approved programme 
budget spent

95% [R170,832 million 
out of R179,668 
million]

100% 97.5% [R151,8 million 
out of R155,6 million]

2.5% [R3,840 million 
out of R155,6 
million] was been 
spent. 

Please refer to 
details on programme 
expenditure in the 
Accounting Officer 
Overview.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.3 Percentage of findings of the 
programme in the audit improvement 
plan being implemented

New indicator 100%
67% [2 out of 3 
findings were fully 
implemented, 

33% [1 out of 3 is in 
progress]. 

The procurement of 
open source WAN was 
done but by the end 
of the financial year 
Internal Audit had not 
certified that indeed 
the tool was effective 
in addressing the 
concern of information 
security

3.4 Percentage of the programme risk 
action plans implemented New indicator 100%

95% [19 out of 20] 
of action plans were 
implemented

5% [1 out of 20] of 
action plans were 
not implemented. 

This relates to the anti-
corruption training that 
was not conducted by 
the NSG due to their 
competing priority 
programmes. An 
internal arrangement 
has been made to 
remedy the situation, 
procurement 
processes have 
started and the training 
will be conducted in 
the first quarter of 
2017/2018 financial 
year.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.5 Number of departments supported to 
align their service delivery models to 
departmental mandate

7 11

11 [COGTA; DEDEAT; 
DHS; DOE; DOH; 
DOT; DRDAR; DRPW; 
DSL; DSRAC; OTP 
were supported to 
align their service 
delivery models to 
departmental mandate]

None -

3.6 Number of innovative knowledge 
management projects implemented 
to enhance institutional efficiency 
[telemedicine; e-learning; and 
centralisation of the Provincial 
Knowledge Hub]

New indicator 3

3 [telemedicine; 
e-learning; and 
centralisation of 
the PKH were 
implemented] 

None -

3.7 Number of departments supported 
to implement service delivery 
improvement plans

3 4

7 [DEDEAT, DOT, 
DRDAR, DRPW, 
DSD, DSL, OTP 
were supported to 
implement service 
delivery improvement 
plans]

3 [DOT, OTP and 
DRDAR ]

DOT, OTP and 
DRDAR were not 
part of the targeted 
departments, but they 
made requests to be 
supported and this was 
done in the second 
quarter.

3.8 Number of departments supported 
to implement the provincial Culture 
Change and Batho Pele Revitalisation 
Strategy

11 13

13 [All departments 
were supported 
to implement the 
provincial Culture 
Change and BPRS]  

None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.9 Number of departments provided 
with hands-on support in the 
implementation of the human capital 
management strategies and policies 

5 5

5 [DOE, DOH, DOT, 
DRDAR, and DRPW  
were provided with 
hands-on support in 
the implementation 
of the human 
capital management 
strategies and policies] 

None -

3.10 Number of departments supported 
to implement HRM policies and 
strategies.

13 12
13 [All departments 
were supported to 
implement HRM 
policies and strategies]   

1 [DOE]

Support was provided 
to the DOE through 
the employee wellness 
forum, PILIR Steering 
Committee meeting, 
PMS forum and 
(IDLR) forum, as 
the Department had 
requested support.

3.11 Quarterly engagements with 
organised labour to create a stable 
environment for productivity

4 4
3 quarterly 
engagements were 
held with organised 
labour 

The quarterly 
engagement in the 
third quarter was not 
held

The session could 
not take place due to 
unavailability of social 
partners in the third 
quarter.

3.12 Number of departments utilising 
the centralised human-resource 
recruitment

New indicator

3 [OTP, DRDAR 
& DRPW were 
supported with 
centralised 
recruitment]

3 [OTP, DRDAR and 
DRPW are now using 
the centralised human-
resource recruitment]

None -
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.13 Number of departments supported 
to implement the provincial skills and 
the human-resource development 
plans 

13 13

13 [All departments 
were supported in the 
implementation of the 
provincial skills and 
the human-resource 
development plans]

None -

3.14 Number of youths trained in various 
skills development areas

	Engineering 150 100 44 students were 
trained 66

Few suitable 
workplaces were 
identified through 
the tender process, 
which resulted in 
a limited number 
of students being 
trained. Partnerships 
will be established 
with parastatals, 
specifically Eskom and 
Transnet, to address 
this challenge.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

	TVET 150 1 000 819 learners were 
trained in workplaces 181

The departments faced 
difficulties in securing 
suitable workplace 
training for engineering 
learners. In addition, 
the allocation for 
tourism learners was 
also not yet met, 
as the industry is 
preferring students 
with marketing, 
hospitality and catering 
backgrounds.   Eskom 
has committed to 
placing 150 students 
over the next few 
months. Extra 
numbers are being 
committed to respond 
to piloting a response 
to Operation Phakisa 
skills needs.

3.15 Number of officials trained in  
government workplaces 800 800

948 officials were 
trained in government 
workplaces

148

The DSD addressed 
their training backlog, 
and this resulted in the 
over-achievement of 
the target.
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.16 Number of officials undergoing the 
leadership development programme 80 200

127 officials were 
trained under 
the leadership 
development and SMS 
induction programme, 
Khaedu

73

The budget for the 
programme was 
redirected to other cost 
pressures. As a result, 
less officials were 
trained.  Departments 
will now be expected 
to fund this programme 
from their own 
budgets.

3.17 Number of departments supported 
to implement the ICT governance 
framework

13 13

13 [All departments 
were supported in 
the implementation of 
the ICT governance 
framework]

None -

3.18 Number of departments supported to 
roll out broadband 2 2

2 departments 
[DoE and DoH] 
were supported 
with the upgrading 
of data lines. The 
bandwidth size prior 
to the upgrading for 
the installed data 
lines ranged from a 
minimum 128kps to a 
maximum of 10 Mbps 
and the focus was to 
increase the minimum 
to 2Mbps

Approximately 10% of 
the data lines could 
not be upgraded 
due to the outdated 
infrastructure.

SITA, in conjunction 
with Telekom, are 
upgrading the 
infrastructure to a 
Metro-E technology)
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Performance indicator Actual achieved 
2015/16

Planned
target (2016/17)

Actual achieved 
(2016/17) Deviation from target Comment on 

deviation

3.19 Number of departments supported 
to implement the provincial anti-
corruption action plan 13 13

13 [all departments 
were supported in 
the implementation 
of the provincial anti-
corruption  action plan]

None -

3.20 Number of departments supported 
to implement the provincial security 
management policy 13 13

13 [all departments 
were supported in 
the implementation of 
the provincial security 
management policy] 

None -

Changes to planned targets
	 None 

Strategies to overcome areas of underperformance
	     These are outlined in the ‘comment on deviation’ column. 
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Linking performance with budget

2016/2017 2015/2016

Sub-Programme name Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure

Final 
appropriation

Actual
expenditure

(Over)/Under 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Sub-Programme 3.1: Programme Management for Institutional 
Development and Organisational Support 3 077 2 995 82 3 812 3 657 155

Sub-Programme 3.2: Institutional Support Services 12 243 10 247 1 996 10 601 10 102 499

Sub-Programme 3.3: Human Capital and Talent Management Support 
Services 14 715 14 647 68 14 406 13 799 607

Sub-Programme 3.4: Human-Resource Development Support Services 36 362 35 879 483 62 819 62 077 742

Sub-Programme 3.5: Information Technology Management 81 676 80 561 1 115 78 452 72 379 6 073

Sub-Programme 3.6: Anti-Corruption and Security Management 7 589 7 493 96 9 578 8 818 760

Total 155 662 151 822 3 840 179 668 170 832 8 836

 
Please note that, in the 2015/16 financial year, this programme was Programme 2. 

The programme spent 97,5% of its budget resulting in underspending of R3,840 million mainly attributed to delays in the replacement of vacant posts not being 
filled.
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B5 Transfer payments 

B5.1 Transfer payments to public entities 

Name of public 
entity

Services rendered 
by the public entity

Amount 
transferred 

Amount 
spent 

Eastern Cape 
Socio- Economic 
Consultative Council 
(ECSECC)

ECSECC is a 
schedule 3C public 
entity in terms of 
the Public Finance 
Management Act (Act 
1 of 1999). Its core 
business is to assist 
government and 
other stakeholders 
to achieve integrated 
development for the 
Province.

R37,011 million R33,914 
million

Achievements of the public entity

In support of the mandate of the OTP, ECSECC implemented the following 
initiatives in the period under review:
1) The governance and leadership of the organisation remains stable. The 

organisation met its statutory obligations of governance and reporting. 
The board held its annual general meeting, its ordinary board meetings 
and all committees of the board met as per their schedule. The AC and 
the Risk and ICT Committee of the board were merged, with the new 
Audit, Risk and ICT Committee appointed in September 2016. 

2) ECSECC received an unqualified audit for the 2015/16 financial year, 
which was its fourth consecutive unqualified audit. For the first time, 
there were no matters reported in the management report. 

3) In executing its mandate of development planning, ECSECC has focused 
on regional development and ensuring that the district development long 
range and integrated development plans are aligned to national and 
provincial priorities. ECSECC also assisted with the induction of new 
council members in this regard. Municipal planning and support was 
provided on the following district and metropolitan municipalities: OR 
Tambo (long-term plan, council induction and five-year IDP); Chris Hani 
(council induction and five-year IDP); Buffalo City (economic strategy and 
five-year IDP); Amathole (long-term plan); and Nelson Mandela Metro 
(human settlement sector planning). Planning support was also provided 
to local municipalities (Nyandeni, KSD, Port St Johns, Dr Beyers Naudé 
and Enoch Mgijima).  

4) ECSECC provided project management support to the DOE on the rollout 
of the infrastructure programme. This included interfacing with various 
stakeholders on the local economic development framework issued by 
the PT, DEDEAT, Provincial Treasury and local industrialists regarding 
school furniture manufacturing. 

5) ECSECC is committed to peer  learning in the public sector. In this 
regard, the organisation facilitated the following platforms and processes 
for learning and reflection in the public sector:
a) The DOT stakeholder sessions reflecting on the empowerment policies 

the Department has been implementing to enable participation of the 
bus and taxi industry in the public sector driven initiatives (June – 
July 2016).

b) Reflection session hosted by the Eastern Cape DHS on lessons 
learnt in provincial government on rolling out emerging contractors 
programmes towards a new integrated policy framework. The session 
was attended by the DRPW, DEDEAT and ECDC. This session was 
held in November 2016 in preparation for a consultation with MECs 
for all infrastructure sector departments in December 2016.

c) ECSECC facilitated a provincial learning session to review the 
IDP assessment framework, process and tools. The session was 
organised by COGTA, and attended by local, district and metropolitan 
municipalities, and provincial and national departments.  ECSECC 
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models for the LGBTI sector. The delegation was hosted by the State 
of Lower Saxony, and included representatives from the MSM sector, 
LGBTI sector and the ECAC secretariat. The purpose of the visit was to 
inform the design of targeted key population interventions for the LGBTI 
sector. 

11) The ECAC coordinated the 2016 Tuberculosis (TB) Day that was hosted 
in the Makana Local Municipality in April 2016.

12) A successful World AIDS Day campaign was conducted, mainly in the 
Joe Gqabi District.

13) Interventions aimed at addressing HIV prevalence among young women: 
a) The ECAC facilitated the Premier’s Inaugural Young Women’s 

Camp. The camp was held in Queenstown in August 2016. Sixty 
young women from across the Province participated in dialogue 
and empowerment activities to strengthen the provincial prevention 
strategy for this key population. 

b) Action research was conducted to probe reasons for young women 
engaging in multiple and concurrent partnerships, early sexual debut 
and the high prevalence of teenage pregnancies.  This was done in 
partnership with the DSD. 

c) Dialogues were held with schoolgoing girls in partnership with the 
DSD to discuss the issue of early sexual debut.

d) A social lab was established to address new HIV infections among 
young women.  The social lab addressed the causal factors and 
drivers of HIV infections among young women and girls.  A provincial 
programme will be developed to address teenage pregnancies and 
new HIV infection in this target population.

e) Dialogues were held with young girls in partnership with Soul City to 
address the issue of multiple and concurrent partnerships amongst 
young women. 

14) The Operation Masinyange community-based response to HIV and AIDS 

was responsible for the design and facilitation of the session 
(March 2017).

6) Supporting the OTP in the implementation of the provincial evaluation 
plan, ECSECC assisted the PT with the evaluation of the municipal 
CFO support programme. ECSECC’s contribution included 
questionnaire design and testing, data capturing, and analysis using 
SPSS. ECSECC analysed the survey results. 

7) Towards finalisation of a provincial infrastructure plan, the Eastern 
Cape Infrastructure Plan (ECIP) was developed on behalf of the OTP. 
The ECIP sets out agreed infrastructure priorities for the Province 
between 2016 and 2030, and outlines programmes, projects and a 
range of capacity building and institutional development interventions 
to achieve the intended outcomes. ECSECC also developed an 
implementation and institutional framework for the ECIP. 

8) In its endeavour to drive inclusive growth, ECSECC has supported 
the Province with execution planning and partnership facilitation in the 
areas of oceans economy, manufacturing and other industries, and 
human-resource development:
a) Supported DEDEAT in the development of the provincial economic 

development strategy. ECSECC provided facilitation and content 
development support.

b) Conceptualised the Basalt Fibre (composites) strategic project 
within Operation Phakisa’s oceans economy. The project will be 
run in partnership with the ECDC.

9) The ECAC coordinates the multi-sectoral response to the human 
immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and acquired immune deficiency syndrome 
(AIDS) through providing strategic information, and facilitating and 
driving sector planning and intervention design, with emphasis on at-
risk populations and key drivers of the AIDS epidemic.

10) A provincial delegation visited Lower Saxony to explore prevention 
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remained a mainstay of the ECAC programme for the year under 
review. Ten social labs have been established at ward level to date. 
A two-day training session for HIV coordinators, ward councillors, 
community development workers and community health workers 
from the identified wards was conducted across all district and 
Metropolitan Municipalities in the Province. Follow-up meetings were 
held to reintroduce and advocate for the implementation of Operation 
Masinyange in the wards, with all relevant stakeholders present. 

15) The organisation continues to provide strategic information to 
stakeholders and the public at large, and the launch of the new 
website has opened a new view about ECSECC’s role in  development 
planning archives. Eighteen knowledge products were developed and 
disseminated to stakeholders. These include:
a) Highlights of the 2016 community survey (July 2016).
b) Selected findings from Statistics South Africa’s Quarterly labour 

force survey: Probing reasons why people stop working in the 
Eastern Cape (Q1 2016)

c) Monthly review of inflation (July, August, September, November, 
December 2016, January 2017).

d) Quarterly review of the labour market (Q1 – Q4 2016).
e) Quarterly review of the gross domestic product (GDP) (Q1 – Q4 

2016). 
f) Analysis of funding for higher education. 
g) Eastern Cape bi-annual economic review (Joint project with 

DEDEAT, Coega, the ECDC and the Neil Agget Centre for Labour 
Studies).

h) ECSECC working paper no. 20:  Perspectives on Eastern Cape 
industrialisation, by Mike Lewis 

i) ECSECC working paper no. 21:  Leveraging ICT to increase 
productivity in the agricultural sector and stimulate rural development, 
by Jasiah Adeyemo

16) Five public dialogues were held as part of ensuring widespread 
dissemination of new policy approaches. These are:
a) Livelihoods research and rural development policy in the Eastern 

Cape.
b) Just work? Migrant workers’ struggle today. Eastern Cape launch of 

the book with the same title.
c) Local content requirements and the impact on the South African 

renewable energy sector 
d) What is to be done about education? The (GADRA) intervention. 
e) Rural livelihoods and small-scale agriculture: Some lessons from the 

Eastern Cape and implications for policy. ECSECC hosted a dialogue 
on research findings from EU funded research projects.

f) Revitalising the township economy. ECSECC hosted a dialogue in 
collaboration with DEDEAT and the Black Business Council. 
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B5.2 Transfer payments to all organisations other than 
public entities

The table below reflects the transfer payments made for the period 1 April 
2016 to 31 March 2017

Name of transferee Type of organisation Purpose for which 
the funds were used

Did the Dept. comply 
with s 38 (1) (j) of the 

PFMA?

Amount transferred
(R’000)

Amount spent by 
the entity

Reasons for the 
funds unspent by 

the entity

Eastern Cape Rural 
Development Agency 
(ECRDA)

Public entity Agricultural youth 
projects Yes 3 553 731

Agricultural youth 
projects were 
transferred   towards 
the end of the 
financial year due to 
delays in signing of 
the SLA.

South African 
Maritime Safety 
Authority
(SAMSA)

Public entity
Youth development 
through oceans 
economy

Yes 3 247 0

Oceans economy for 
youth development 
were transferred   
towards the end of the 
financial year due to 
delays in signing of 
the SLA.
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under Note 29 – 31, and they comprise of moveable and immovable assets. 
The asset register has been compiled to meet the minimum requirements 
for an asset register, and to comply with the Modified Cash Standard. 
The OTP is also moving towards implementing the asset module on the 
Logistical Information System (LOGIS) during the 2017/18 financial year. 
Two asset verification processes were undertaken during the year under 
review. 

Challenges still arise when verifying ICT assets that are located outside 
the Department as the buildings are not under control of the OTP, and 
assets are at times moved without consulting the OTP. The Department 
planned to transfer all functioning infrastructure assets to provincial 
departments.  The transfer of infrastructure assets will continue during 
the 2017/18 financial year after discussions with all relevant stakeholders. 

The Department has procured new assets in the year under review. The 
additions were in the form of the outright purchase of computer equipment, 
office equipment and furniture. Towards the end of the 2016/17 financial 
year some assets were identified for disposal and these will be considered 
by the Disposal Committee in the 2017/18 financial year. 

Name of transferee Type of organisation Purpose for which 
the funds were used

Did the Dept. comply 
with s 38 (1) (j) of the 

PFMA?

Amount transferred
(R’000)

Amount spent by 
the entity

Reasons for the 
funds unspent by 

the entity

Institutions of higher 
education 

Institutions of higher 
education

Funding Learners and 
ECPDP Research Yes 24 834 24 834

Research funds 
to address the 
ECPDP agenda 
were transferred 
towards the end of the 
financial year.

Total 31 634 25 565

 
There were no transfer payments which were budgeted for in the period 
1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, but not made.

B6 Conditional grants

B6.1 Conditional grants and earmarked funds paid
	The Department does not have conditional grants 

B7 Donor funds

B7.1 Donor funds received
	The Department does not have donor funds 

B8 Capital Investment

B8.1 Capital investment and maintenance
The Department’s assets are presented in the annual financial statements 
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C1 Introduction 

This chapter outlines the efforts of the Department to maintain good 
governance structures to effectively, efficiently and economically utilise 
state resources, which are funded by the tax payer.

C2 Risk management

The Accounting Officer has committed the OTP to a process of risk 
management that is aligned to the principles of good corporate governance. 
The Risk Management Unit operates within the parameters defined in 
the enterprise risk management policy. This policy articulates the OTP’s 
risk management philosophy, the scope, and the role players. The policy 
is implemented through the risk management strategy which was last 
approved on 31 March 2015 for a five-year period. The Department 
conducts risk assessments on a quarterly basis as a means to determine 
the effectiveness of the risk management strategy and to identify new and 
emerging risks. 

Risk Management Committee
The Accounting Officer has delegated the RMC with the responsibility to 
discharge her accountability for enterprise risk management by reviewing 
the effectiveness of the Department’s risk management systems, practices 
and procedures, and providing recommendations for improvement. The 
committee contributes to overseeing the implementation of effective, 
efficient and transparent financial and risk management systems and 
processes required to be implemented by the Accounting Officer throughout 
the Department by the PFMA (section 38) and Treasury Regulations 9.1.1; 
and also serves as the following: 
1) Fraud Prevention and Ethics Management Committee (to assist the 

Accounting Officer in discharging her accountability for anti-corruption 
& fraud prevention by reviewing the effectiveness of the Department’s 
fraud prevention plan, strengthening measures for managing unethical 
conduct, and promoting integrity in the Department); 

2) Security Management Committee (to assist the Accounting Officer in 
discharging her accountability for security strategies and policies in the 
Department); and

3) Occupational Health and Safety Committee (to assist the Accounting 
Officer in discharging her accountability for employee health and wellness 
strategies in the Department). 

The RMC Charter details the scope, roles, rules and responsibilities of the 
RMC. 

The risk management strategy provides that the AC’s role is to advise the 
OTP management on the effectiveness of risk management within the 
Department. Through the RMC Charter, which provides proper and timely 
reports to the Accounting Officer and AC on the state of risk management, 
together with aspects requiring improvement accompanied by the RMC’s 
recommendations to address such issues, the AC advises the Department 
on risk management and independently monitors the effectiveness of the 
system of risk management. 

Progress in the management of risks
Programme 1: 90% [36 out of 40] of action plans were implemented, and 
10% [4 out of 40] of action plans were not implemented. 
The reasons are: 

1) Core staff training plan was not implemented due to failure to secure 
the anticipated tailored training. The unit will be trained as per their 
PDPs.

2) IKM champions were nominated and, considering that IKM is being 
introduced and embedded in the Department, training is being tailor-
made and will be implemented in the first quarter of 2017/18. 

3) Anticipated ICT skills were not acquired.  However, this was 
incorporated in the departmental redesign process with updated job 
descriptions, and eventually a skills audit to assist and inform the ICT 
skills. 
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4) The planned fire drill could not be conducted due to renovations 
that needed to be effected as a prerequisite by the BCMM. 

Programme 2: 95% [18 out of 19] of action plans were implemented, and 
5% [1 out of 19] of action plans were not finalised. The reason is that 
the MOU with universities on research has not been finalised due to the 
consultation process taking longer than anticipated. 

For Programme 3: 95% [19 out of 20] of action plans were implemented 
and 5% [1 out of 20] of action plans were not implemented. The reason 
for non-implementation relates to the anti-corruption training that was not 
conducted by the NSG due to their competing priority programmes. An 
internal arrangement has been made to remedy the situation. Procurement 
processes have started, and the training will be conducted in the first 
quarter of the 2017/2018 financial year. 

Cumulatively, 73 out of 79 action plans, which is about 92%, were 
successfully implemented. This indicates a significant effort in the 
management of risks. However, it cannot be said that this has been 
transmitted into improvements in the Department’s performance. A better 
risk management culture is required to ensure that it improves, and 
awareness is being made to ensure this. 

C3 Fraud and corruption

Fraud prevention plan and the progress made on its implementation
Through the fraud prevention plan, the OTP has committed to reject fraud 
as a business norm. As such, this plan encompasses elements of the fraud 
risk management policy, minimum anti-corruption capacity requirements, 
disciplinary code and procedures, and the ethics strategy (amongst others), 
as it seeks to limit fraud risk within the organisation. It also prescribes the 
scope of fraud prevention and the relevant role players. Progress made on 
implementing the Department’s fraud prevention plan are at maturity, as 

all fraud-related enquiries are sent to the Risk Management Unit and dealt 
with timeously. 

Mechanisms are in place to report fraud and corruption
There are various mechanisms in place for whistle-blowing. The whistle-
blowing policy defines the mechanisms that may be used to report fraud 
and corruption. While the policy seeks to encourage whistle-blowing and 
protection of the employee to disclose, the number of reported cases 
remains relatively low and more needs to be done to improve this. As such, 
we conduct awareness workshops and campaigns to ensure that people 
receive the relevant information.  

To date, the Department has no cases reported through walk-ins, and nothing 
has come via the National Anti-Corruption Hotline (NACH).

C4 Minimising conflict of interest
The Risk Management Unit facilitates the submission of annual financial 
disclosures for SMS officials via the eDisclosure framework, and all relevant 
prescripts as prescribed by the Public Service Commission. The financial 
disclosures are verified for the assessment of potential and/or actual conflicts 
of interest, and these are followed up to ensure that they are cleared. 

On a quarterly basis, feedback is provided to the PT on their conflict of 
interest report sent to all departments with officials found registered on the 
provincial supplier database.  The Risk Management Unit ensures that these 
are cleared.

The Department maintains a register of all gifts received and made as 
determined by the policy and procedure on managing gifts. Where a potential 
or actual conflict of interest arises, an enquiry is conducted and the relevant 
remedial action is recommended with the approval of the Accounting Officer. 
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C5 Code of conduct 
The Risk Management Unit observes the code of conduct as included in 
Chapter 2 of the Public Service Act and Public Service Regulations, 2016. 
The ethics strategy has been amended to include the provisions of the 
Public Service Regulations, 2016 to ensure that all employees comply 
with the said regulations and the code of conduct. The ethics strategy is 
amended regularly to ensure that it is updated and applicable to current 
trends. Significant challenges lie in the implementation of certain parts 
thereof as we work on a framework prescribed by the DPSA which is still 
being developed. As such, it is not efficient and poses implementation 
challenges. We have advanced whistle-blowing mechanisms to deal with 
non-compliance with the code of conduct. It is envisaged that all employees 
should report all contraventions of the code of conduct. However, due to 
low reporting, it can be asserted that the Department does comply with the 
provisions of the Public Service Code of Conduct. A breach of the code 
of conduct would result in disciplinary action being taken, depending on 
the nature of the offence. The process and sanctions to be adopted are 
prescribed in the code of conduct.

C6 Health, safety and environmental Issues

Wellness government structures: The Department has a functional 
health and safety committee with full programme representation to ensure a 
safe working environment for its employees. The following subcommittees 
(task teams) were also reviewed to ensure governance in driving safety 
issues:
	First-aiders and peer educators that were appointed in 2014/15 are still 

within the operational period and will be reviewed in April 2018. First-
aiders were trained in June and September 2015, and peer educators 
were trained in 2014, and are still functional.

	Safety, health and environment representatives were appointed and 
trained in this financial year (2016/17). Their appointments are currently 
being reviewed.

	Firefighters were also appointed and were exposed to the training 
programme for 2016/17. 

Wellness systems, plans and policies:  The safety health environment 
risk and quality (SHERQ) operational plan for 2016/17 was developed and 
submitted to the DPSA via IDOS. An emergency plan workshop was conducted 
for the SHERQ structure. An inspection by the BCMM was conducted during 
the 2015/16 financial year to ensure compliance with the Occupational Health 
and Safety Act (Act 85 of 1993) (OHASA). A risk management implementation 
plan is still in place, and was implemented during 2016/17. As part of that 
process, an illumination survey was conducted, reflecting a need for minor 
maintenance, which was attended to. Implementation was at 90% complete 
at the time of reporting.

Safety facilities and equipment: The Department has safety equipment like 
fire extinguishers, fire reels, dust masks, and first aid kits, and has mounted 
fire extinguishers and signage in designated areas. The Department has 
purchased photo luminous signs that meet the South African National 
Standards (SANS). In addition, there are parking spaces, ramps, and 
ablution facilities for Persons with Disabilities (PWD). The Department is also 
facilitating the changing of all emergency exit doors to be user-friendly for fire 
and emergency situations. The offices are non-slippery and fully carpeted. 
The elevator was renovated to ensure that safety standards are met and is 
user-friendly to all employees, especially PWD. No injuries were encountered 
during the renovations. 

Injury on duty (IOD): Eight IOD cases were managed in 2016/17. Two 
IOD cases that came about as a result of 2014 fumigation were finalised 
during this financial year. One pending IOD case has been submitted to 
the Department of Labour for assessment. One case was disqualified on 
the basis of misrepresentation of information by a claimant, and three were 
withdrawn due to difficulties in obtaining medical reports. One case was 
reported long after the required reporting period, and therefore could not be 
processed. The claimant was informed accordingly. In order to attempt to 
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minimise the disqualification of cases, which was also attributed to a lack 
of information, three awareness sessions around IOD-related legislation 
were conducted. The common types of IOD range from trip and fall to car 
hijacking and fumigation.

C7 Portfolio committees

As part of its accounting to oversight bodies, the Department attended 
Portfolio Committee meetings during the year under review. A summary of 
the issues raised by the Portfolio Committee is contained in the table below.

C8 Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) resolutions 
 

Subject Details Response by the Department Resolved (Yes/No)

Irregular expenditure Irregular expenditure of R4,4 million (2015: 
R1,5 million) that has accumulated over 
the last two years and that has not been 
recovered, written off or condoned.

R1,5 million was incurred during the 
previous (2015) year. Thus, R2,9 million 
was incurred during the 2015/16 financial 
year. R2,1 million, which constitutes (70%) 
of the irregular amount of R2,9 million 
above, is as a result of irregular contracts 
concluded during the prior year.  Only R800 
000 relates to contracts concluded during 
the 2015/16 financial year.

It should also be noted that, out of the 
total amount of R4,4 million of the irregular 
expenditure above, R3,6 million (80%) 
relates to ICT assets that were procured 
irregularly.  

In addition, the existence of a significant 
portion of these irregularly procured ICT 
assets could not be physically verified.

In progress 
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Subject Details Response by the Department Resolved (Yes/No)

Steps taken to prevent irregular 
expenditure

What steps address and prevent irregular 
expenditure?

The Accounting Officer embarked on an 
enquiry and discovered that most of these 
assets which were irregularly procured 
were not functional, and it appears that 
some of them did not exist.

An internal audit report further confirmed 
that there is a significant portion of assets 
whose existence could not be verified.

The Accounting Officer was concerned 
that, although the highest budget item for 
the past four years was on transversal ICT, 
the Bhisho campus network continues to 
be unstable with no proper maintenance 
programme. 

In addition, the Accounting Officer noted 
instances of prepayment on systems with 
questionable functionality. This contravenes 
the Treasury Regulations and the PFMA.

The Accounting Officer commissioned a 
forensic investigation into the above.

A preliminary report indicates that there 
are serious transgressions of procurement 
prescripts which may lead to fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure as defined by the 
PFMA. Internal controls have also been 
strengthened to mitigate the risk of irregular 
expenditure.  For example, bid committees 
have been revamped, segregation of duties 
is in place, and training on SCM prescripts 
were conducted.

Yes
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C9 Prior modifications to audit reports

Nature of Emphasis of 
Matter 

Financial year in which it 
First Arose Progress Made in Clearing/ Resolving the Matter

Irregular expenditure 
of R 8,3 million (2016: 
4,4 million) that has 
accumulated over the last 
three years, and has not 
been recovered, written 
off or condoned was 
disclosed in the note 23 of 
the Financial Statements. 
Irregular expenditure of R 
3.9 million incurred during 
the year under review is 
included in the amount 
disclosed.

2014/15 The R 3,9 million irregular expenditure incurred during the current financial year is a continuation of prior year 
contracts that have already been identified as irregular expenditure in prior years. OTP is finalising its forensic 
investigation into ICT assets that were purchased resulting in irregular expenditure. Additionally OTP has 
sent a request to the Provincial Treasury asking for the condonement of the irregular expenditure. However 
the Provincial Treasury is also waiting for the forensic investigations to be finalised before approving the 
condonement of the irregular expenditure. All the irregular expenditure will be cleared in the 2017/18 financial 
year

Fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure of R 2 million 
disclosed in note 24 of the 
financial statements was 
incurred. This was a results 
of ICT assets that were 
purchased that did not meet 
the expected functionality to 
be used by the department.

2014/15 In July 2017 the procurement of the Drive Lock Contract was under forensic investigation. It has since been 
declared fruitless and wasteful. The department is now following corrective action to the affected officials 
regarding this transaction. All fruitless and wasteful expenditure will be cleared in the 2017/18 financial year.

C10 Internal Control Unit

The Department has an internal control unit that is tasked with the responsibility 
of, amongst others, ensuring that the findings of the internal and external 
audits are implemented, reviewing of the PFMA finance delegations, and 
monitoring compliance on all payments before they are made. 

C11 Internal audit and audit committees

The Internal Audit Services’ approved annual audit plan for 2016/17 had 
23 planned audit and two management requests, amounting to a total of 
25 audits for the 2016/17 financial year. Of the 23 audits approved, three 
were carried over to the 2017/18 financial year and one transferred to the 
PT for coordination. Therefore, 19 audits were completed, presenting an 
83% completion rate.
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Internal Audit also made progress in the implementation of the approved 
quality assurance and improvement plan (QAIP), as one of the findings 
relating to a governance maturity assessment was conducted during the 
year under review.

The Department also enhanced the internal capacity through training 
that was coordinated by the PT. Three auditors attended the Professional 
Internal Audit (PIA) programme and two will be eligible to sit for the Certified 
Internal Audit (CIA) professional examinations from the 2017/18 financial 
year.

Internal Audit also participated in the recruitment of graduates in the 
Province, as five interns were recruited during the year. At the end of 

the financial year, three interns were still within the unit, one intern was 
transferred to Finance, and the other resigned during the year.

Internal Audit is required to report functionally to the AC and administratively 
to the Accounting Officer in order to maintain its organisational independence. 
The AC consists of five members as listed in the table below. The AC members 
were appointed for a period of three years. There have been no changes in 
the AC composition of the Department.

Name Qualifications Internal or 
external

If internal, position 
in the Department Date appointed Date Resigned No. of meetings 

attended

Adv. Collen Weapond
(Chairperson)

M. Tech (IT), M Tech 
(Forensics), LLB External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Mr. Kevin Pather CA (SA) External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Ms. Thobeka Njozela B.Compt (Honours), 
CIA, CCSA, CRMA External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Mr. Singa Ngqwala B.Compt (Honours) External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Mr. Jason O’Hara CA (SA) External N/A 15/10/ 2015 05/06/2017 1
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C12 Audit Committee report

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 
2017.

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities 

arising from Section 38 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance Management Act and 
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  The Audit Committee is pleased to report that 
it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee 
Charter, has regulated its affairs and discharged its responsibilities in 
compliance with this charter.  

The Audit Committee members have been appointed on a three year term 
from 15 October 2015.  

The following are the members of the Audit Committee.

Name Qualifications Internal or 
external

If internal, position in 
the Department Date appointed Date Resigned No. of meetings 

attended

Adv. Collen Weapond
(Chairperson)

M. Tech (IT), M Tech 
(Forensics), LLB External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Mr. Kevin Pather CA (SA) External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Ms. Thobeka Njozela B.Compt (Honours), 
CIA, CCSA, CRMA External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Mr. Singa Ngqwala B.Compt (Honours) External N/A 15/10/ 2015 N/A 7

Mr. Jason O’Hara CA (SA) External N/A 15/10/ 2015 05/06/2017 1

The Director-General, the DDGs, and the Chief Risk Officer have standing 
invite to attend the meetings of the Committee. For the year under review, 
the Committee met regularly to address any issues at hand. 

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work, which was based 
on the risk assessments conducted in the department revealed certain 
weaknesses in its control environment, which were subsequently raised with 
the Department. 
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The following internal audit work was completed during the year under 
review:
	Review of international and Intergovernmental Relations 
	Consulting Review on Communications
	Culture Change Review 
	Internal Audit validation of MPAT 1.6
	Asset Count review 
	Governance Maturity Assessment & Risk Management  follow up 
	Ill Health & Incapacity
	Assurance on the Audit Improvement Plan  Quarter 1 to 4
	Audit of Predetermined Objectives ( Half year report, Quarter 3 and 

Annual Performance Report)
	Human Resource and Financial Delegations review 
	Review of Protocol Services
	Interim Financial Statements review
	Annual Financial Statements review 

The following were areas of concern:
	The lack of implementation of corrective actions to ensure that findings 

raised by Internal Audit are resolved timeously could result in a recurring 
finding and increase exposure for the Department. 

	ICT Audit was not conducted during the 2016/17 financial year due 
to a lack of capacity and expertise in the Department, this challenge 
is not confined to the Department only it remains a challenge for the 
entire province. The Audit Committee resolved that the ICT audit 
for the Department be included in the 2017/18 ICT audit plan of the 
Departments. Coordination of the ICT Audit are done by Provincial 
Treasury. 

	The Audit Committee was also concerned about the internal control 
measures in place for interventions that the Department has undertaken 
on behalf of other Departments including the Department of Education. 

Risk Management 
The Risk Management Unit facilitated the identification and monitoring 
of Strategic and Operational risks of the Department during the 2016/17 
financial year. Internal audit performed a follow up review on the effectiveness 
of risk management. A strategic risk assessment for the Department was not 
executed timeously which resulted in the risk based audit being finalized on 
the interim risk register. 
 
Performance of the Department
The monitoring of the Department’s performance is a key function of 
management, Executive Management and the Executive Authority. The 
Committee has no direct line responsibility for the Department’s performance 
measurement. However, the Committee has ensured, principally through 
the Internal Audit function, that the systems of performance measurement 
and reporting, as well as the systems of internal control that underpin the 
performance management framework of the Department, remain robust and 
are addressed routinely in the audit plans.
 
The Department did not achieve 100% of its annual planned targets. 
Management highlighted certain deficiencies in the current service delivery 
model which contributed to the under achievement of its targets.  

Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial 
Statements to be included in the Annual Report. The Audit Committee has 
provided input and advice on the draft Annual Financial Statements on 26th 
May 2017. 



Conclusion 
The Audit Committee acknowledges the control lapses which occurred 
during the 2015/16 financial year. Management has undertaken to address 
the identified control deficiencies and to continue providing effective and 
efficient service delivery in line with the OTP’s constitutional mandate.

The Audit Committee takes note of the improvements which have been 
made during the year under review which include the appointment of 
the Chief Operating Officer (COO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) to 
strengthen and improve the control environment of the OTP. As such 
the appointment of the COO and CFO will contribute immensely to the 
attainment of service delivery targets which were set for the 2017/18 
financial year by the OTP. 
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I would like to thank all members of the Committee for their contribution and 
the professional way in which meetings were conducted. To the Executive 
Authority, Director-General, Senior Management, the Internal Audit Unit, and 
the staff of the Department, our sincere appreciation for the progress made 
this year.

Advocate JC Weapond
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Office of the Premier – Eastern Cape
Date 12 June 2017 
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1. INTRODUCTION  

The information contained in this part of the annual report has been 
prescribed by the Minister for the Public Service and Administration 
for all departments in the public service.

2. OVERVIEW OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

This section covers the status of human resources with respect to 
the priorities set for the Department for implementation during the 
financial year under review (2016/17).

The priorities referred to came about as a consequence of two 
strategic HR exercises which include Human Resources Planning 
as well as HR Effectiveness assessment. The areas covered 
included Organisational structure review, filling of vacancies, 
HRD (Skills Development), Performance Management, Change 
Management programme, Employment Equity, Labour Relations, 
Employee Wellness and HR information systems. 

The HR Effectiveness assessment was conducted both as a 
compliance requirement and also to enable the Department to 
measure the ability of HRM in the department to strategically assist 
in the achievement of service delivery goals. Upon finalization of 
the assessment, a report with HR Turnaround plans was developed 
and the results submitted to National Department of Public Service 
and Administration (DPSA). An analysis of the status of HRM in the 
Department is outlined below. 

2.1 STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP AND CHANGE MANAGEMENT 
AS HR ROLES: 
There is still a need to re-position HR practitioners as both partners 
and change agents and further capacitate them to be the fully 
fledged HR generalists. The Department endeavours to roll-out this 
as a turnaround strategic intervention to improve visibility of the 
HRM component as required by different line function programmes.

Through the HR Effectiveness assessment, it was acknowledged 
that the consistent staff engagements at different levels, ranging 
from individual (one-on-one), labour and management as well as 
Departmental staff meetings chaired by the Director General and 
the Premier respectively, is making a difference and that had a 
positive impact on staff morale. According to the HR Effectiveness 
trend assessment report, the department scored 65% in 2013/14 
assessment, 75% in 2014/15 assessment and 85% in terms of its 
role as change agent, and that translates into 10% improvement 
each year of HR turnaround strategy implementation. However, for 
2016/17 assessment, the Department remained at 85%.

The Office of the Premier managed to roll-out a change management 
programme that will ensure that the Departmental values as 
encapsulated within the revised strategic plan are observed. 

2.2 ORGANISATIONAL DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT: Through 
previous assessments, there came a need for the organisational 
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structure to be aligned with service delivery model. The department 
is currently undergoing a restructuring process and approaching its 
final stages. The original target of finalisation and implementation 
of structure which was April 2017 could not be met due to 
circumstances surrounding the procurement of a service provider 
to conduct skills audit as well as staff shortages within the unit. It 
is therefore anticipated that this process will be finalised within the 
second quarter of 2017/18 financial year. 

Status on Phased implementation of structure:

The Business Case for Change and the Service Delivery Model for 
the Office of the Premier is 90% complete and will be circulated 
to all management and staff prior to being signed off by the DG 
and Premier. Both documents were crafted after extensive and wide 
ranging consultation sessions with all staff, including Organised 
Labour.

A preliminary consultation session with DPSA has been held. This 
was to ensure that preparations for the submission of all the required 
documents to the Minister of Public Service and Administration are 
in order.

Migration Guidelines which provide details on the process that will 
be followed when moving staff from the old to the new organisational 
structure were developed and communicated to both staff and 
Organised Labour. 

The Skills Audit will start beginning of November, as soon as the 
Service Provider gets appointed. The delays highlighted above 
were in relation to the delays in procuring a service provider for this 
exercise. The Department made a conscious decision to continue 
with other phases that can still be embarked upon either prior or 
concurrently with the skills audit.

Person to post matching is still to be conducted and will be 
communicated as soon as it is concluded.

It is worth- mentioning that, this has caused uncertainty amongst the 
staff members. That is the main reason for the Department to roll-
out a change management programme. That become pertinent in 
this regard in order to alleviate any fears that employees may have 
as this could lead to resistance to change and in turn resulting into 
low staff morale and productivity as well as unnecessary unrest and 
or protest action by employees.
 
2.3 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY AND DIVERSITY MANAGEMENT: 
There is a need to improve and maintain disability equity 
representation. Currently, the target within government is 50% 
representation of females at SMS and 2% representation of people 
with disabilities across all levels. OTP has met both national and 
provincial targets. However, developmental initiatives need to be 
redirected to target these designated groups of employees, including 
existing and should be extended to SMS level. 

With respect to Diversity Management, Job Access strategy and 
Gender equality and women empowerment strategy implementation 
plans have been developed and implemented accordingly. 

With regards to women empowerment, a Public Service Women 
in Management Week (PSWMW) was hosted in October 2016, 
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whereby progress on implementation of the 8 principles for gender 
equality and empowerment were discussed and action plan going 
forward was developed.

 2.4 ATTRACTION AND RETENTION STRATEGY

Staff attraction and retention focuses on both attracting suitably 
qualified professionals whose skills are in demand in the employment 
market to join the Eastern Cape Provincial Administration through 
focused recruitment strategies and keeping those who are already 
employed, especially those whose skills are crucial to the Eastern 
Cape Provincial Administration and OTP as a Department.  Staff 
attraction and retention involves motivating staff by covering both 
the psychological aspects of the employees, their perceptions, 
goals, behaviours and their aspirations in an attempt to reconcile 
them with the operational aspects attached to the job or tasks for 
which they were appointed.

During 2006 the ECPA adopted a Provincial Attraction and Retention 
strategy.  The purpose of this strategy was to implement more 
effective and efficient human resource management practices 
and mechanisms of attracting and retaining the right talent in the 
province.  The Provincial Strategy provided a basket of elements 
which could be instituted to realise their purpose thereof.  Annually, 
the Office of the Premier, customises and adopts specific strategies 
to be implemented, compile and present implementation reports 
to the provincial executive management structures on a quarterly 

basis.  

The HR Effectiveness assessment revealed that there is still a need 
to utilise information gathered during exit interviews to inform a 
review of retention strategies. Apparently, it is no longer implemented 
in relation to scarce skills requirements but rather to safe-guard 
personal relationships.

 2.5 ANNUAL RECRUITMENT PLANNING AND FILLING OF     
 VACANCIES 

The Department developed an annual recruitment plan (ARP) for 
2016/17 financial year and that was complemented by a project plan 
outlining targets and time frames.  

The status in terms of implementation of this plan is as follows:

	 66 posts were approved by the PCMT in the 2016/17 Annual 
Recruitment Plan. 

	 13 posts were withdrawn from the 2016/17 ARP
	 31 of 52 (60%) posts were filled at an average of 3.7 months.

Whilst overall picture depicts improvement in terms of time taken to fill the 
posts, there are still elements whereby recruitment and selection remain a 
challenge and certain posts still take too long to be filled. The average days 
taken to fill the posts is at 111 days.   
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Amongst the reasons that caused the delay is the centralization of 
recruitment process, the delay in sitting for selection processes due to 
unavailability of the panel members for both shortlisting and interviews as 
well as job evaluation.  

2.6 HR INFORMATION MANAGEMENT: 

The implementation of Persal Clean-up project was focused on:

	 Incorrect establishment information on the system whereby 
59 Out of adjustment cases were rectified; 22 temporary posts 
were abolished and 22 Additional were created to replace them. 
There are still some outstanding out- of- adjustment cases which 
are resulting from the directives like, PSCBC Resolution 3 of 2009, 
Coordination process in evaluation of clerical jobs and HROPT 
cases. This requires close monitoring of service terminations. 
Ensuring compliance with NMIR: 389 SP Files were reconciled 
with PERSAL in line with NMIR. A Staff Verification project wherein 
the employees will be required to provide documentation that relates 

to personal information will be undertaken during the second quarter 
of 2017/18 financial year.

	  Updating of PERSAL in line with the 2017/18 budget structure.  The 
2017/18 Budget Structure was captured on the system.

2.7   WELLNESS MANAGEMENT STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION.

There has been remarkable improvement around the 
implementation of Employee wellness strategy from 2015/16 and 
2016/17 compared to previous financial years. The launch and 
implementation of a revised wellness strategy that is comprised 
of four Pillars yielded the necessary turnaround in that area.  
The department is implementing the wellness strategy 
according to 4 pillars:
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2.7.1 Wellness Management Pillar:

·	  Professional service provider was appointed outsourced to deal 
with wellness management pillar, including counselling and conflict 
management and other professional wellness services.

• Case management continued internally and some referred to ICAS. 
However, ICAS reported a low utilisation rate as this was its first 
year of operation.  Marketing strategies have been strengthened.  
Overall, 56 Psycho social cases recorded – Most representing 
clusters being Stress,  Family & child care, Health & lifestyle issues, 
work related challenges

• 2 Wellness days were hosted whereby GEMS relaunched the 
fitness program. The Indigenous games, Dietician, Nutritionist, 
Therapists, Screenings, and Healthy Living Marketing of wellness 
programs, Promotion of Healthy lifestyles were also presented and 
deliberated on.

• 2 Retirement Sessions targeting employees aged from 50-55years 
old. These were focusing on pension benefits, investments, Estate 
planning, Healthy lifestyle. Expected outcome is better financial 
planning and choices upon retirement.

 

•  Physical Wellness: 

	Netball and Soccer matches against other provincial 
departments

	Weight Management Programme: Ongoing Weigh- ins on 
Wednesdays for employees to become health conscious, 
like drinking water, eating heathy and watching weight.

	Build-up Cancer walks in Q3 

• Men’s Health was successfully launched in September and a follow-
up session took place in Q4.

• Financial Fitness: 2 Awareness sessions conducted dealing with 
better financial choices, expected outcome being the reduction in 
the number of Garnishes orders. 

• Health Screenings were done parallel to the awareness sessions.

2.7.2 HIV AND AIDS & TB Management Pillar:

• Awareness sessions conducted, focusing on: HIV/AIDS, TB, Gender, 
based violence & STI’s. 

• Prayer to observe the world Aids day

• Distribution of condoms in the cloak rooms done.

• 2 HCT screenings conducted (Results reflected minimal change 
around 11 to 17) and that information assisted in operational 
planning.
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2.7.3 SHERQ Management Pillar:

• Illumination Survey conducted; reflecting a need for minor 
maintenance needs which have already been attended to.

• Reflective safety signs sourced and mounted

	Of the 8 IOD cases:  2x 2014 cases were finalised; 1 pending 
IOD case has been submitted to DoL for assessment; 1 case 
was disqualified on basis of misrepresentation of information 
by claimant; 3 were withdrawn due struggle in getting medical 
reports. Types of IOD inclue strip & fall, car hijacking and 
fumigation.

2.7.4 Health and Productivity Management Pillar:

• Two awareness sessions were conducted, focusing on Disease 
management and personal hygiene programmes.

• Cancer, Diabetes, Mental illnesses, nutrition and pregnancy 
information was disseminated through email.

• 6 health screenings were coordinated and on average, 50% of 
targeted turnout was achieved employees expected, 70 employees 
tested. 

• Coordinated blood donation drive on the 5 July 2016 through 
SANBS, 7 employees participated.

• Detailed sick leave analysis has been done for all four quarters, 
depicting the extent of utilisation and those that have exhausted 

their days. Reduction in rate of incidents of sick leave of absence 
before and after holidays has been observed from quarter 3.

2.8 LABOUR RELATIONS MANAGEMENT: 

• A total of 6 misconduct cases were managed and finalised, ranging 
from misuse of Government vehicle, late coming to work and 
neglect of duty, Incitement and disrespect of authority and joining 
illegal protest action.

• Staff engagements were also prioritized in areas of common interest 
between management and staff. Capacity building needed for 
managers to effectively manage conflict and deal with grievances in 
their respective areas.

• Labour and Management Forum was established and meets once 
every two months to look into areas of common interests between 
employer and employee as well as special individual cases. 

• The underlying challenge is the inability to keep to the 
prescribed timeframes to finalize misconduct cases. 

• A total of nine (9) grievances was registered; those relate to alleged 
unfair labour practice with respect to promotional opportunity, 
conflict with the supervisor/manager, non-approval of probation and 
reinstatement. Six (6) have been finalized and three (3) are still work 
in progress. 
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  2.9  TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT: 

	There has been some improvement in terms of training and 
development initiatives in terms of addressing critical skills, 
alignment to personal development plans and agreed career paths 
or to the growth of the organisation. 

	Alignment of Training and Development to personal development 
plans and career paths had to be dealt with, through integration of 
work place skills planning and Personal Development Planning. A 
training plan was adopted and implemented accordingly. 

The following training programmes were conducted:

A variety of skills development and training programmes was 
implemented throughout the financial year under review; targeting 
different categories of employees. These include; Advanced 
Management Development Programme (AMDP); Compulsory 
Induction Programme (CIP); Protocol and Etiquette Training; 
Scenario Planning and Strategic Thinking Training; Advanced 
Microsoft Excel; Financial Management Training; South African 
Sign Language; Job Evaluation; Advanced Project Management. 
Detailed information on the categories of employees that benefitted 
from these programmes, as well as budget is provided in tables 3.13.

The Department has contributed to the socio-economic strategies 
with a view to curb unemployment in the province. 

	Internship Programmes: In terms of internship programmes, 
18 interns were appointed during 2016/17 financial year; the 
EE breakdown of which relates to 5 Males and 13 Females. 

	Experiential Learning Programme: 19 Learners were placed 
in various directorates to gain workplace experience towards 
the completion of their qualifications. Those were 2 Males and 
10 Females. 

	Bursaries were issued to 21 employees for 2016 academic 
year; broken to 5 Males and 16 Females.

2.10 CAREER MANAGEMENT 

Since the adoption of Provincial Career Management policy, 
succession planning at critical positions was addressed mainly 
through implementation of progressive development programmes 
for targeted critical posts and posts across the board. The Personal 
Development Plans (PDP) are discussed within the PMDS framework 
to assist in career planning and development of employees. 

3 HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT STATISTICS  

3.1. Personnel related expenditure

The following tables summarise the final audited personnel related 
expenditure by programme and by salary bands. In particular, it provides an 
indication of the following:
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• amount spent on personnel 

• amount spent on salaries, overtime, homeowner’s allowances and 
medical aid. 

Table 3.1.1 Personnel expenditure by programme for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Programme Total expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

(R’000)

Training 
expenditure

(R’000)

Professional and 
special services 

expenditure 
(R’000)

Personnel 
expenditure 

as a % of total 
expenditure

Average 
personnel cost 
per employee 

(R’000)

Administration 245 754 144 171 1405 0 57 361

Planning,Policy Co-ordination, Monitoring 
and Evaluation 108 731 47 270 0 0 43 118

Institutional Development and 
Organisational Support Services 151 821 50 883 0 0 34 127

Total 506 306 242 324 1405 0 48 607

Table 3.1.2 Personnel costs by salary band for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band Personnel expenditure 
(R’000) % of total personnel cost No. of employees Average personnel cost 

per employee (R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) - - - -

Skilled (level 3-5) 9 010 3,7 47 192 

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 40 267 16.6 117 344

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12) 108 697 45 159 684

Senior and Top management (levels 13-16) 84 350 34.7 76 1 108

Total 242 324 100 399 607
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Table 3.1.3 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by programme for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Programme

Salaries Overtime  Home Owners Allowance  Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as a % 
of personnel 

costs 
Amount 
(R’000)

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Administration 109 468 75,93 2532 1,7 3532 2,34 4471 3,0
Planning,Policy Co-ordination, Monitoring 
and Evaluation 41 923 78,5 34 0,1 676 1,8 761 1.7

Institutional Development and 
Organisational Support Services 64 269 84,1 0 0 1 063 2,0 1 180 1,4

Total 215 660 88,8 2 566 1,0 5 271 2.2 6 412 2,3

Table 3.1.4 Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by salary band for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band

Salaries Overtime Home Owners Allowance Medical Aid

Amount 
(R’000

Salaries 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Amount 
(R’000)

HOA as a % 
of personnel 

costs 
Amount 
(R’000)

Medical aid 
as a % of 
personnel 

costs 

Skilled (level 1-2)  - -

Skilled (level 3-5)  5 830 64,71 483 5,3 596 6,6 732 8

Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 28 148 69,90 1 170 2,9 1 431 3,6 2 596 6,4

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12 83 449 76,41 913 0,8 1 928 1,8 2 331 2,1

Senior management (level 13-16) 71 423 84,67 0 0,0 1 316 1,6 753 0,9

Total 215 660 88,81 2566 1,0 5 271 2.2 6 412 2,3
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3.2. Employment and Vacancies

The tables in this section summarise the position with regard to employment and vacancies. 

The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy rate, and whether there are any staff that are 
additional to the establishment. 

This information is presented in terms of three key variables:

• programme

• salary band

• critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Departments have identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. In terms of current regulations, it is possible to create a post on the establishment 
that can be occupied by more than one employee. Therefore, the vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled. 

Table 3.2.1 Employment and vacancies by programme as on 31 March 2017

Programme Number of posts on 
approved establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate

Number of employees 
additional to the 
establishment

Administration 267 253 5,2 29
Planning,Policy Co-ordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 80 71 11,3 12

Institutional Development and Organisational 
Support Services 78 73 6,4 0

Total 425 399 6,1 41



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

131

Table 3.2.2 Employment and vacancies by salary band as on 31 March 2017

Salary band Number of posts on approved 
establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate Number of employees 

additional to the establishment

Lower skilled ( 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled(3-5) 45 45 0 3

Highly skilled production (6-8) 119 117 1,7 8

Highly skilled supervision (9-12) 173 158 8,7 10

Senior management (13-16) 88 79 10,2 20

Total 425 399 6,1 41

Table 3.2.3 Employment and vacancies by critical occupations as on 31 March 2017

Critical occupation Number of posts on approved 
establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate Number of employees 

additional to the establishment

Administrative Related 177 161 9 21

Cleaners in Offices Workshops 
Hospitals, etc 25 25 0 0

Communication and Information 
Related 5 5 0 0

Engineers and Related 
Professionals 1 1 0 0

Finance and Economics Related 7 6 14,3 0

Financial and Related Professionals 16 16 0 1

Financial Clerks and Credit 
Controllers 18 18 0 0

General Legal Administration and 
Related Professionals 5 4 20 0
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Critical occupation Number of posts on approved 
establishment Number of posts filled Vacancy Rate Number of employees 

additional to the establishment
Head of Department/Chief Executive 
Officer 1 1 0 0

Human Resources and 
Organisational Development and 
Related Professionals

35 33 5,7 2

Human Resources Clerks 6 6 0 0

Human Resources Related 18 18 0 0

Information Technology Related 3 3 0 0

Legal Related 4 3 25 0

Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 1 0 0

Light Vehicle Drivers 2 2 0 1

Logistical Support Personnel 4 4 0 0

Material-Recording and Transport 
Clerks 3 3 0 0

Messengers Porters and Deliverers 7 7 0 0

Other Administrat and Related 
Clerks and Organisers 5 5 0 2

Other Occupations 1 1 0 0

Risk Management and Security 
Services 2 2 0 0

Secretaries and Other Keyboard 
Operating Clerks 29 29 0 1

Senior Managers 50 45 10 13

Total 425 399 6,1 41
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Notes

• The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation – 

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or anticipated in the future, either because such skilled persons are not available or 
they are available but do not meet the applicable employment criteria;

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by a prolonged course 
or study and/or specialised instruction;

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and
(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employees.  

3.3. Filling of SMS Posts

The tables in this section provide information on employment and vacancies as it relates to members of the Senior Management Service by salary level. It also provides 
information on advertising and filling of SMS posts, reasons for not complying with prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken.

Table 3.3.1 SMS post information as on 31 March 2017

SMS Level Total number of 
funded SMS posts 

Total number of  
SMS posts filled 

% of SMS posts 
filled 

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant 

% of SMS posts 
vacant

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0
Salary Level 16 1 1 100 0 0
Salary Level 15 8 7 88 1 12.5
Salary Level 14 21 18 95 3 14.2
Salary Level 13 57 52 90 5 8.7
Total 88 79 90 9 10.2
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Table 3.3.2 SMS post information as on 30 September 2016

SMS Level Total number of 
funded SMS posts 

Total number of  
SMS posts filled 

% of SMS posts 
filled 

Total number of 
SMS posts vacant 

% of SMS posts 
vacant 

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 100 0 0
Salary Level 16 1 1 100 0 0
Salary Level 15 8 7 88 1 12.5
Salary Level 14 21 16 76 5 23.8
Salary Level 13 57 50 88 7 12.2
Total 88 75 85 13 14.7

Table 3.3.3 Advertising and filling of SMS posts for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

SMS Level
Number of vacancies per level 

advertised in six months of 
becoming vacant

Number of vacancies per level 
filled in six months of becoming 

vacant

Number of vacancies per level 
not filled in six but filled in 12  

months
Director-General/ Head of Department 0 0 0
Salary Level 16 0 0 0
Salary Level 15 0 0 0
Salary Level 14 4 1 3
Salary Level 13 2 0 2
Total 6 1 5

Table 3.3.4 Reasons for not having complied with the filling of funded vacant SMS - Advertised within 6 months and filled within 12 months after becoming vacant for the 
period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within 12 months
Posts were not filled due to other competing priorities

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months
Posts were not filled due to other competing priorities

 
Notes: In terms of the Public Service Regulations Chapter 1, Part VII C.1A.3, departments must indicate good cause or reason for not having complied with 
the filling of SMS posts within the prescribed timeframes.
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Table 3.3.5 Disciplinary steps taken for not complying with the prescribed timeframes for filling SMS posts within 12 months for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Reasons for vacancies not advertised within six months
None

Reasons for vacancies not filled within six months
None

Notes

• In terms of the Public Service Regulations Chapter 1, Part VII C.1A.2, departments must indicate good cause or reason for not having complied with 
the filling of SMS posts within the prescribed timeframes. In the event of non-compliance with this regulation, the relevant executive authority or head of 
department must take appropriate disciplinary steps in terms of section 16A(1) or (2) of the Public Service Act.

3.4. Job Evaluation

Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate any job in his or her organisation. In terms of the Regulations all 
vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be evaluated before they are filled. No jobs were evaluated in the 2016/17 finincial year.
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3.5.  Employment Changes

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of 
the department. The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.5.1 Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band
Number of employees 
at beginning of period 

01 April 2016

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department 
Turnover rate

Lower skilled ( Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels3-5) 46 0 2 4,3
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 110 1 3 2,7
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 159 7 17 10.7
Senior Management Service Bands A 42 1 4 9.5
Senior Management Service Bands B 8 1 0 12.5
Senior Management Service Bands C 3 2 0 0
Senior Management Service Bands D 1 0 0 0
Contracts 40 13 8 20
Total 408 25 34 8,3
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Table 3.5.2 Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Critical occupation
Number of employees 
at beginning of period-

April 2016

Appointments and 
transfers into the 

department

Terminations and 
transfers out of the 

department
Turnover rate

Administrative Related 160 14 14 8,8
Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals, etc 24 0 0 0
Communication and Information Related 4 0 1 25
Engineering Sciences Related 1 0 0 0
Finance and Economics Related 8 5 2 25
Financial and Related Professionals 16 0 4 25
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 19 0 2 10,5
General Legal Administration and Related Professionals 2 0 1 50
Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 2 0 0 0
Human Resources and Organisat Developm and Related 
Professionals 39 0 3 7,7

Human Resources Clerks 6 0 0 0
Human Resources Related 22 0 0 0
Information Technology Related 3 0 0 0
Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other Communications 4 0 0 0
Legal Related 5 0 2 40
Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 0 0 0
Light Vehicle Drivers 2 0 0 0
Logistical Support Personnel 1 0 0 0
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 1 0 0 0
Messengers Porters and Deliverers 9 0 1 11,1
Other Administrat and Related Clerks and Organisers 8 0 0 0
Other Occupations 1 0 0 0
Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 33 0 0 0
Senior Managers 37 6 4 10,8
Total 408 25 34 8.3
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Notes

• The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation – 

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or anticipated in the future, either because such skilled persons are not 
available or they are available but do not meet the applicable employment criteria;

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by a 
prolonged course or study and/or specialised instruction;

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and
(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employees.

 

The table below identifies the major reasons why staff left the department. 

Table 3.5.3 Reasons why staff left the department for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Termination Type  Number % of Total Resignations
Death, Permanent 2 8
Resignation, Permanent 13 52
Expiry of contract, Permanent 1 4
Dismissal-misconduct, Permanent 1 4
Retirement, Permanent 8 32
Total 25 100
Total number of employees who left as a % of total employment 6.1

Note: In total 34 service termination were realised which include 25 termination types and 9 transfers to other departments.
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Table 3.5.4 Promotions by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupation Employees
 01 April 2016

Promotions to 
another salary level

Salary level 
promotions as a % 
of employees by 

occupation

Progressions to 
another notch within 

a salary level

Notch progression as 
a % of employees by 

occupation

Administrative Related 160 6 3,8 71 44,35
Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals, etc 24 0 0 15 62,5
Communication and Information Related 4 0 0 2 50
Engineering Sciences Related 1 0 0 0 0
Finance and Economics Related 9 0 0 5 55,6
Financial and Related Professionals 16 0 0 11 68,8
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 19 0 0 11 57,89
General Legal Administration and Related 
Professionals 0 0 0 0 0

Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 2 0 0 0 0
Human Resources and Organisationals 
Development and Related Professionals 39 0 0 10 25,6

Human Resources Clerks 6 0 0 6 100
Human Resources Related 22 0 0 12 54,6
Information Technology Related 3 0 0 1 33,3

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communication 4 0 0 2 50

Legal Related 7 0 0 7 100
Library Mail and Related Clerks 1 0 0 1 100
Light Vehicle Drivers 2 0 0 1 50
Logistical Support Personnel 1 0 0 1 100
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 0 0 0 0 0
Messengers Porters and Deliverers 10 0 0 7 70
Other Administrat and Related Clerks and 
Organisers 6 0 0 5 83,3

Other Occupations 1 0 0 0 0

Secretaries & Other Keyboard Operating Clerks 33 0 0 24 72,7
Senior Managers 37 1 2,7 30 81,1
Total 408 7 1,7 222 54,4
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Table 3.5.5 Promotions by salary band for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary Band Employees 1 April 
2016

Promotions to 
another salary level

Salary bands 
promotions as a % 
of employees by 

salary level

Progressions to 
another notch within 

a salary level

Notch progression 
as a % of

employees by salary 
bands

Lower skilled ( Levels 1-2)
Skilled (Levels3-5) 46 0 0 27 58,7
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 115 0 0 92 80
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 169 6 4,35 61 36,1
Senior Management (Level 13-16) 78 1 4,17 42 53.8
Total 408 7 1,72 222 54,4

 

3.6. Employment Equity 

Table 3.6.1 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational categories as on 31 March 2017

Occupational category
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Senior Officials And Managers 22 3 1 1 17 1 0 1 46
Professionals 38 4 0 0 44 1 1 2 90
Technicians And Associate Professionals 61 1 1 1 94 3 1 3 165
Clerks 15 0 0 0 44 3 0 2 64
Service Shop And Market Sales Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Plant And Machine Operators And 
Assemblers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Labourers And Related Workers 9 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 34
Total 145 8 2 2 224 8 2 8 399
Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 1 5 0 0 1 8
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Table 3.6.2 Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational bands as on 31 March 2017

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

 Top Management 5 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 11
Senior Management 28 4 2 1 29 2 0 2 68
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and mid-
management

70 3 0 1 76 2 2 4 158

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents

28 0 0 0 83 4 0 2 117

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making 14 0 0 0 31 0 0 0 45

Total 145 8 2 2 224 8 2 8 399
 
 
Table 3.6.3 Recruitment for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior Management 2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and mid-
management

4 0 0 0 3 0 1 0 8

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents

2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Total 11 0 0 0 8 0 1 0 20
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 
Note: The total excludes 5 transfers to department that took place over the period under review which then gives a total recruitment of 25 employees
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Table 3.6.4 Promotions for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management 1 0 0 0 4 0 0 1    6

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foreman and superintendents

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 1 0 1 0 4 0 0 1 7
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 
 
Table 3.6.5 Terminations for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

 

Occupational band
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Top Management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Senior Management 1 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 4
Professionally qualified and experienced 
specialists and mid-management 7 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 15

Skilled technical and academically qualified 
workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foreman and superintendents

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 
making 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3

Total 10 0 0 0 14 0 0 1 25
Employees with Disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 1

Note: The total excludes 9 transfers to other departments which when combined with service termination types add to 34
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Table 3.6.6 Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Disciplinary action
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Misuse/Damage of gov. vehicle 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Fruitless and was wasteful expenditure 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1

Table 3.6.7 Skills development for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Occupational category
Male Female

Total
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White

Legislators, Senior Officials and Managers 24 2 2 1 26 1 0 3 59
Professionals 17 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 20
Technicians and Associate Professionals 12 0 0 0 24 1 1 0 38
Clerks 8 0 0 0 41 0 0 1 49
Labourers and Related Workers 2 0 0 0 6 0 0 0 8
Total 62 4 2 1 98 3 1 4 175
Employees with disabilities 1 1

3.7. Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS Members

All members of the SMS must conclude and sign performance agreements within specific timeframes. Information regarding the signing of performance 
agreements by SMS members, the reasons for not complying within the prescribed timeframes and disciplinary steps taken is presented here.
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Table 3.7.1 Signing of Performance Agreements by SMS members as on 31 May 2016

SMS Level Total number of funded 
SMS posts

Total number of  SMS 
members

Total number of  signed 
performance agreements

Signed performance 
agreements as % of total 
number of SMS members

Director-General/ Head of Department 1 1 0 0
Salary Level 16 1 1 0 0
Salary Level 15 8 7 1 14.28
Salary Level 14 21 18 1 5.5
Salary Level 13 57 52 14 26.9
Total 88 79 16 20.5

 
Notes

• In the event of a National or Provincial election occurring within the first three months of a financial year all members of the SMS must conclude and sign 
their performance agreements for that financial year within three months following the month in which the elections took place. For example if elections 
took place in April, the reporting date in the heading of the table above should change to 31 July 2015.

Table 3.7.2 Reasons for not having concluded Performance agreements for all SMS members as on 31 March 2017

Reasons 
Staff do not comply in terms of the timeous submission of agreements
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Table 3.7.3 Disciplinary steps taken against SMS members for not having concluded Performance agreements as on 31 March 2017

Reasons 
No disciplinary action taken

Notes

• The reporting date in the heading of this table should be aligned with that of Table 3.7.1. 

3.8. Performance Rewards

To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year under review. The information is presented in 
terms of race, gender, disability, salary bands and critical occupations (see definition in notes below).

Table 3.8.1 Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Race and Gender

Beneficiary Profile Cost
Number of 

beneficiaries
Number of 
employees

% of total within 
group Cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee
African
  Male 63 145 43.4 1,378.27 21 877
  Female 115 224 51.3 2,088.52 17 484
Asian
  Male 1 2 50 55.86 55 860
  Female 1 2 50 23.38 23 380
Coloured
  Male 4 8 50 139.91 34 977
  Female 5 8 62.5 96.29 19 258
White
  Male 1 2 50 49.53 49 530
  Female 6 8 75 198.90 28 826
Total 196 399 49.1 4030.66 251 192



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report146

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Table 3.8.2 Performance Rewards by salary band for personnel below Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
salary bands Total Cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (level 3-5) 26 47 57.7 200.85 7,724.89 2.2
Highly skilled production (level 6-8) 75 117 64.1 1,043.45 15278.37 2.6
Highly skilled supervision (level 9-12) 74 159 46.8 79.55 46,905.03 0.1
Total 175 323 54.6 2647.7 18,439.62 1.1

 

Table 3.8.3 Performance Rewards by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Critical occupation

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
occupation Total Cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee

Administrative Related 66 161 40.99 1,376.53 20,856.47
Cleaners in Offices Workshops Hospitals, etc 15 25 60 114.21 7,614.22
Communication and Information Related 2 2 100 35.23 17,614.43
Engineers and Related Professionals, 0 1 0 0 0
Finance and Economics Related, 3 6 50 79.75 26,583.20
Financial and Related Professionals, 10 16 62.5 232.87 23,286.65
Financial Clerks and Credit Controllers 13 18 72.22 172.86 13,297.05
General Legal Administration and Related 
Professionals 2 4 50 55.98 27,989.39

Head of Department/Chief Executive Officer 0 1 0 0 0
Human Resources and Organisational 
Development and Related Professionals 16 33 48.48 411.39 25,712.11

Human Resources Clerks 4 6 66.67 45.72 11,430.56
Human Resources Related 13 18 72.22 318.12 24,470.86
Information Technology Related, 0 3 0 0 0
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Critical occupation

Beneficiary Profile Cost

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
occupation Total Cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee

Language Practitioners Interpreters and Other 
Communications 2 4 50 41.14 20,570.88

Legal Related 2 2 100 92.54 46,270.14
Library Mail and Related Clerks 0 1 0 0 0
Light Vehicle Drivers 1 2 50 7.24 7,238.55
Logistical Support Personnel 3 4 75 53.38 17,793.47
Material-Recording and Transport Clerks 2 3 66.67 21.83 10,912.56
Messengers Porters and Deliverers 0 7 0 0 0
Other Administrat and Related Clerks and 
Organisers 0 5 0 0 0

Other Occupations 0 1 0 0 0
Risk Management and Security Services 0 2 0 0 0
Secretaries and Other Keyboard Operating 
Clerks 19 29 65.52 265.00 13,947.36

Senior Managers 16 45 36.36 648.04 40,502.75
Total 196 399 49.12 4,030.66 20,564.57

Notes

• The CORE classification, as prescribed by the DPSA, should be used for completion of this table.

• Critical occupations are defined as occupations or sub-categories within an occupation – 

(a) in which there is a scarcity of qualified and experienced persons currently or anticipated in the future, either because such skilled persons are not 
available or they are available but do not meet the applicable employment criteria;

(b) for which persons require advanced knowledge in a specified subject area or science or learning field and such knowledge is acquired by a 
prolonged course or study and/or specialised instruction;

(c) where the inherent nature of the occupation requires consistent exercise of discretion and is predominantly intellectual in nature; and
(d) in respect of which a department experiences a high degree of difficulty to recruit or retain the services of employees;  
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Table 3.8.4 Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band for Senior Management Service for the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017

Salary band

Beneficiary Profile Cost Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure

Number of 
beneficiaries

Number of 
employees

% of total within 
salary bands Total Cost (R’000) Average cost per 

employee

Band A 16 51 31.37 693.78 37,736.36 51,105.81
Band B 2 17 11.76 82.85 41426.49 19,244.23
Band C 3 9 33.33 117.09 39,029.13 12,354.79
Band D 0 2 0 0 0 4276.50
Total 21 79 26.58 803.72 38,272.48 86,981.33

3.9. Foreign Workers

The tables below summarise the employment of foreign nationals in the department in terms of salary band and major occupation. 

Table 3.9.1 Foreign workers by salary band for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band
01 April 2016 31 March 2017 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change
Lower skilled 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production (Lev. 6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled supervision (Lev. 9-12) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Contract  (level 9-12) 2 100 2 100 0 0
Contract  (level 13-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 2 100 2 100 0 0

Table 3.9.2 Foreign workers by major occupation for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Major occupation
01 April 2016 31 March 2017 Change

Number % of total Number % of total Number % Change
Senior Managers 2 100 2 100 0 0
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3.10. Leave utilisation 

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service. The following tables provide an indication of the 
use of sick leave and disability leave. In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

Table 3.10.1 Sick leave for the period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band Total days
% Days with 

Medical 
certification

Number of 
Employees using 

sick leave

% of total 
employees using 

sick leave
Average days 
per employee

Estimated Cost 
(R’000)

Lower Skills (Level 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (levels 3-5) 431 64.5 46 12.6 13.5 276
Highly skilled production (levels 6-8) 1 147 53.3 184 50.3 18.4 1 382
Highly skilled supervision (levels 9 -12) 1 401 55.9 158 43.2 17.3 3 356
Top and Senior management (levels 13-16) 355 58.0 50 13.7 12.8 1 372
Total 3 334 56.3 366 100 9.1 6 387

Table 3.10.2 Disability leave (temporary and permanent) for the period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band Total days
% Days with 

Medical 
certification

Number of 
Employees using 
disability leave

% of total 
employees using 
disability leave

Average days per 
employee

Estimated Cost 
(R’000)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 30 0 1 0 30 16
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 237 0 3 0 79 460
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 267 0 4 0 66.8 477



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report150

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The table below summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of 
annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 3.10.3 Annual Leave for the period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band Total days taken Number of Employees using 
annual leave Average per employee

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled Levels 3-5) 882 51 5.9
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 2 566 125 4.9
Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 3 588 181 5.0
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 1 539 82 5.3
Total 8 575 439 5.1

Table 3.10.4 Capped leave for the period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016

Salary band Total days of capped 
leave taken

Number of Employees 
using capped leave

Average number of days 
taken per employee

Average capped leave per 
employee as on 31 March 

2017
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0
Skilled Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 94.96
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 1 1 1 113.09
Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 0 0 0 128.81
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 5 1 5 71.86
Total 6 2 3 109.09
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The following table summarise payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Table 3.10.5 Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Reason Total amount (R’000) Number of employees Average per employee 
(R’000)

Leave pay-out for 2015/16 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous 
cycle 0 0 0

Capped leave pay-outs on termination of service for 2015/16 2 580 19 135 815
Current leave pay-out on termination of service for 2015/16 268 11 24 400
Total 2 848 30 94 963

3.11. HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes

Table 3.11.1 Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of 
contracting HIV & related diseases (if any) Key steps taken to reduce the risk 

Service delivery, Communication, Protocol, and M&E (In an nutshell 
those employees who work mostly outside the plant in communities)

• Conducted HIV/AIDS sessions 

• Offering HIV/AIDS screenings

• Making Condoms available at all times 

• Disseminating  HIV/AIDS pamphlets through Emails
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Table 3.11.2 Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and provide the required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes

1. Has the department designated a member of the SMS to implement the provisions 
contained in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide 
her/his name and position.

Yes  The appointed  designated member is Ms N Maceba

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it designated specific staff members 
to promote the health and well-being of your employees? If so, indicate the number of 
employees who are involved in this task and the annual budget that is available for this 
purpose.  

Yes The OTP does have the dedicated Employee Wellness unit with 4 Employees 
and an operational budget of R 610 000.

3. Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance or Health Promotion 
Programme for your employees? If so, indicate the key elements/services of this 
Programme. 

Yes The department has Contracted an external service provider ICAS to provide 
the following professional EAP services:
Financial Advice
Substance Abuse
Relationship management / Family Matters 
HIV/AIDS 
Stress
Workplace issues 
Trauma
Legal Advice
Change Management  
The department also partners with various stakeholders such as GEMS, DoH, 
and Local fitness service providers to provide continuous health awareness 
sessions.

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of 
Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the names of the 
members of the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they represent.  

Yes There is an active EE & Wellness Committee in place whose members are:
1. Ms L Dakada 

2. Ms N Maceba
3. Ms N Vakalisa 

4. Ms N Makhendlana 

5. Ms N Mtyobile 

6. Ms C Bokhwe 
7. Mr  S Lufutha
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Question Yes No Details, if yes

5. Has the department reviewed its employment policies and practices to ensure that these 
do not unfairly discriminate against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the 
employment policies/practices so reviewed.  

Yes OTP has an HIV & AIDS policy in place which is reviewed every 3 years or 
when needed. 

6. Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-positive employees or those 
perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these 
measures. 

Yes The names of those tested are not disclosed to protect their confidentiality 
and the department policies are against any form of discrimination and those 
found guilty are reprimanded.

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo Voluntary Counselling and 
Testing? If so, list the results that you have you achieved. 

Yes Quarterly VCT are conducted and a total number tested thus far is 19 
employees. 

8. Has the department developed measures/indicators to monitor & evaluate the impact of 
its health promotion programme? If so, list these measures/indicators.

No No. The department is utilising the standards as set by the provincial 
framework
Reduction in the number of Sick leave taken, PILLAR cases, IOD’s, Stress 
levels, Garnishees as well as a general H&S in the workplace also serve as 
success indicators. 

 

3.12. Labour Relations

Table 3.12.1 Collective agreements for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Subject matter Date
Total number of collective agreements  None 

Notes

• If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following:

Total number of Collective agreements None



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report154

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the year under review.

Table 3.12.2 Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total

Correctional counselling 0
Verbal warning 0
Written warning 1 16.7%
Final written warning 3 50%
Suspended without pay 0
Fine 0
Demotion 0
Dismissal 1 16.7%
Not guilty 1 16.6%
Case withdrawn 0
Total 6 100%

Notes

• If there were no agreements, keep the heading and replace the table with the following:

Total number of Disciplinary hearings finalised None

Table 3.12.3 Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

 Type of misconduct Number % of total
Misuse/ damage of government vehicle 1 50%
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 1 50%
Total 2 100%



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report155

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Table 3.12.4 Grievances logged for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Grievances Number % of Total
Number of grievances resolved 5 71%
Number of grievances not resolved 2 29%
Total number of grievances lodged 7 100%

Table 3.12.5 Disputes logged with Councils for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Disputes Number % of Total
Number of disputes upheld 1 20%
Number of disputes dismissed 1 20%
Number of disputes  withdrawn 3 60%
Total number of disputes lodged 5 100%

Table 3.12.6 Strike actions for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 

Total number of persons working days lost                                                                                      0
Total costs working days lost                                                                                                                                           0
Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay (R’000) R0

Table 3.12.7 Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Number of people suspended 3
Number of people who’s suspension exceeded 30 days 0
Average number of days suspended 11
Cost of suspension(R’000) R25 442.54
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3.13. Skills development

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development. 

Table 3.13.1 Training needs identified for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017 

Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Legislators, senior officials and 
managers

Female 19

People 
Management 
Advanced Project 
Management 
Strategic 
Planning Change 
Management

Workshops

Seminars
319921.64

Male 27

People 
Management 
Advanced Project 
Management 
Strategic 
Planning Change 
Management

Workshops

Seminars
442 062.36
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Professionals

Female 48

Monitoring
 and Evaluation AMDP 
Contract Management 
Finance for non-
Financial managers 
Advanced and 
Intermediate Microsoft 
Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 
Labour Relations 
Policy Development 
Compulsory Induction 
Programme Demand 
Advanced acquisition 
SCOA for Managers 
and Practitioners

Workshops

Seminars
406 004.5

Male 42

Monitoring and 
Evaluation Contract 
Management AMDP
 Advanced and 
Intermediate Microsoft 
Excel Report writing 
Finance for non-
Financial managers 
Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 
Policy Development 
Compulsory Induction 
Programme Labour 
Relations Demand 
Advanced acquisition 
SCOA for Managers 
and Practitioners

Workshops

Seminars
332 185.5
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female 101

Records Management 
Advanced and 
Intermediate Microsoft 
Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 
Compulsory Induction 
Programme PA’s office 
management course 
Labour Relations 
Demand Advanced 
acquisition SCOA 
for Managers and 
Practitioners

Workshops

Seminars
129 815.53

Male 64

Records Management 
Report writing 
Advanced and 
Intermediate Microsoft 
Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 
Compulsory Induction 
Programme PA’s office 
management course 
Labour Relations 
Demand Advanced 
acquisition SCOA 
for Managers and 
Practitioners

Workshops

Seminars
69 900.67
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Clerks 

Female 48
Compulsory Induction 
Programme
Records Management

Workshops

Seminars

149 350.16

Male 14 Compulsory Induction 
Programme

Workshops

Seminars
37 337.54

Service and sales workers

Female 1
Compulsory 
Induction 
Programme

Workshops

Seminars
4994.05

Male 1
Workshops

Seminars
4994.05

Plant and Machine Operators Female 0 Compulsory 
Induction 
Programme

Workshops

Seminars 13 564Male 2
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Labourers and related workers

Female 25

Compulsory 
Induction 
Programme
Drivers License

Workshops
Seminars 73 805.16

Male 7

Compulsory 
Induction 
Programme
Drivers License

Workshops
Seminars 16 064.84

Sub Total Female 242 1, 083 891.04

Male 157 916 108.96

Total 399 2 000 000
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Table 3.13.2 Training provided for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Legislators, senior 
officials and managers

Female 30

Scenario Planning and 
Strategic Thinking
Financial Management
Evidenced Based 
Policy Making and 
Implementation
South African Sign 
Language
Management Advanced 
Project 

SMS Leadership 
Conference
PFMA 
Competency 
Assessment
Conference
SCMU Indaba 
Conference
5t Biennial 
National Conference 
and User Forum
SAMEA Conference 
CCSA Examination
Gartner Symposium

145 266.30

Male 29

Scenario Planning and 
Strategic Thinking
Financial Management
Evidenced Based 
Policy Making and 
Implementation
South African Sign 
Language
Management Advanced 
Project 

SMS Leadership 
Conference
Competency 
Assessment
PFMA 
Conference
SCMU Indaba 
Conference
5t Biennial 
National Conference 
and User Forum
SAMEA Conference 

189 366.60
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Professionals

Female 1

CIP
South African Sign Language
Job Evaluation Initial 
Job Evaluation Follow Up
Implementation Of Protection 
Of Personal Information Act 
(Popi)
Advanced Management 
Project
Occupational Development 
and Training Course
Mentoring and Coaching
Monitoring
  Advanced and Intermediate 
Microsoft Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 

Bursary
Corporate Lawyers 
Association 
Conference
Government Budget 
and SCOA Training 
SCMU Indaba 
Conference
DPSA Trainers 
Learner Network
IIASA Public Sector 
Forum

313 327.77

Male 19

Compulsory Induction 
Programme
South African Sign Language
Job Evaluation Initial 
Job Evaluation Follow Up
Implementation Of Protection 
Of Personal Information Act 
(Popi)
Advanced Management 
Project
Occupational Development 
and Training Course
Mentoring and Coaching
Monitoring
 Advanced and Intermediate 
Microsoft Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 

Bursary
Corporate Lawyers 
Association 
Conference
Government Budget 
and SCOA Training 
SCMU Indaba 
Conference
DPSA Trainers 
Learner Network
IIASA Public Sector 
Forum

208 884.99
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Technicians and associate 
professionals

Female 26

Compulsory Induction 
Programme
South African Sign Language
Job Evaluation Initial 
Job Evaluation Follow Up
Implementation Of Protection 
Of Personal Information Act 
(Popi)
Advanced Management 
Project
Occupational Development 
and Training Course
Mentoring and Coaching
Monitoring
  Advanced and Intermediate 
Microsoft Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 

Bursary
Microsoft Solution 
expert  Certificate 
IIASA Public Sector 
Forum

130 210

Male 12

Compulsory Induction 
Programme
South African Sign Language
Job Evaluation Initial 
Job Evaluation Follow Up
Implementation Of Protection 
Of Personal Information Act 
(Popi)
Advanced Management 
Project
Occupational Development 
and Training Course
Mentoring and Coaching
Monitoring
 Advanced and Intermediate 
Microsoft Excel Forensic Audit 
Protocol Services 

100 018.34
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Occupational category Gender
Number of 

employees as at 1 
April 2016

Training needs identified at start of the reporting period

Learnerships Skills Programmes & 
other short courses

Other forms of 
training Total

Clerks 

Female 42

Compulsory Induction 
Programme
Advanced and Intermediate 
Microsoft Excel
Public Admin and Policy 
Studies Research

Bursary Workshops
245 292.15

Male 8
Compulsory Induction 
Programme  43 286.85

Labourers and related 
workers

Female 6 Driving Lessons
Compulsory Induction 
Programme

15 327.50

Male 2 14 573.50

Sub Total
Female 105 849 423.72
Male 70 556 130.28

Total 175 1 405 554.00
 

3.14. Injury on duty

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table 3.14.1 Injury on duty for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total
Required basic medical attention only 2 75%
Temporary Total Disablement 1 25%
Permanent Disablement 0 0
Fatal 0 0
Total 3 100%
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3.15 Utilisation of Consultants

Table 3.15.1 Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Project title Total number of consultants that 
worked on project

Duration

(work days)

Contract value in

Rand

Reputation Management and Public Relations for a period 
of 12 months 1 Consultant 12 months R 2 161 896,00

Appointment of a Quantity Surveyor for the erection of pre-
fabricated structures for 9 schools in PE 2 Consultants 7 months R 748 980,00

Appointment of a Quantity Surveyor for the erection of pre-
fabricated structures for 8 schools in PE 1 Consultants 7 months R 695 400,00

Appointment of a Quantity Surveyor for the erection of pre-
fabricated structures for 10 schools in Uitenhage 2 Consultants 7 months R 804 538,00

Asset Verification and Updating of the Fixed Asset register 
for 2015/16 financial year 3 Consultants 3 months R 745 954,40

Quantity Surveying services for the Manufacturing, 
Transportation and erection of 30 classrooms in the 
Eastern Cape 

1 Consultant 3 months R 348 030,00

Investigation into the management of donor funds used for 
the SURUDEC project 6 Consultants 4 months R 1 443 134,49

Appointment of an Internal Audit Consultants in order to 
complete the 2015/16 and 2016/17 Internal Audit Plans 2 consultants 3.5 months R 464 280,00
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Project title Total number of consultants that 
worked on project

Duration

(work days)

Contract value in

Rand
Appointment of a service provider to assist and 
support the Eastern Cape Provincial Government to 
improve Infrastructure service delivery across all sector 
departments and municipalities for build environment 
support specialists for the interim rapid response teams  
(Development Planning and GIS)

2 Consultants 24 months
R 4 268 160

Appointment of a service provider to assist and 
support the Eastern Cape Provincial Government to 
improve Infrastructure service delivery across all sector 
departments and municipalities for build environment 
support specialists for the interim rapid response teams 
(Construction Project Management)

2 Consultants 24 months R 3 064 320

Appointment of a consultant to conduct Annual Financial 
Statements Audit 2015/16 1 Consultant 25 working days R 378 366

Appointment of a labour relations services 1 Consultant 3 months Rate based appointment
Appointment of a consultant to support Supply Chain 
Management Unit in Bid and Contract Management at 
Office of the Premier

1 Consultant 2 ½ months R 464 600

Drafting of Business plan on Commercial Cropping Project 
at Nyandeni Local Municipality 1 Consultant 18 days R 105 000

Facilitation of a Leadership Change Management and 
team building initiative 2 Consultants 4 months R 205 266

Facilitation of a Change Management Intervention for staff 
at middle management level and below for the Office of 
the Premier

2 Consultants 4 months R 438 499

Appointment of a SCM Specialist to assist in drafting of 
specification and evaluation criteria for the department for 
10 days 

1 Consultant 10 days R 228 000

Appointment of a quantity surveyor to assist in drafting of 
specification and evaluation criteria for the department for 
10 days 

1 Consultant 10 days R 54 160
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Project title Total number of consultants that 
worked on project

Duration

(work days)

Contract value in

Rand
Appointment of a SCM Specialist to assist in the bid 
evaluation committee in providing SCM technical support 
during evaluation of bid- SCMU1-16/17-0008 for a period 
of 50 hours

1 Consultant 6 days R 142 500

Appointment of a quantity surveyor to assist in the bid 
evaluation committee in providing SCM technical support 
during evaluation of bid- SCMU1-16/17-0008 for a period 
of 50 hours

1 Consultant 6 days R 80 883

Appointment of a service provider to assist internal audit 
services 2 Consultants 1 month R 199 920

Facilitation of a Change Management Intervention to 
directors at the Office of the Premier 2 Consultants 4 months R 241 400

Investigation of Irregular procurement and various 
wrongful activities in ICT 2 Consultants 3 months R 410 240

Appointment of Professional service provider to conduct a 
forensic investigation on behalf of OTP 2 Consultants 7 months R 883 101

Table 3.15.2 Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 
2017

Project title Percentage ownership by HDI 
groups

Percentage management by 
HDI groups

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work on the 

project
Departments are no longer expected to obtain HDI status from 
service providers. The department is therefore not able to report on 
the other tables under this section 
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Table 3.15.3 Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Project title Total Number of consultants 
that worked on project

Duration

(Work days)
Donor and contract value in 

Rand

No consultants were appointed using donor funds

Table 3.15.4 Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs) for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Project title Percentage ownership by HDI 
groups

Percentage management by 
HDI groups

Number of consultants from 
HDI groups that work on the 

project

No consultants were appointed using donor funds

3.16 Severance Packages 

Table 3.16.1 Granting of employee initiated severance packages for the period 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017

Salary band Number of applications received
Number of 

applications 
referred to the 

MPSA

Number of 
applications 

supported by MPSA
Number of packages 

approved by department

Lower Skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 2 2 2 2

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 0 0 0 0

Total 2 2 2 2
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1. I have audited the financial statements of the Eastern Cape Office of the 
Premier set out on pages 177 to 246, which comprise the appropriation 
statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and 
the statement of financial performance, and cash flow statement for 
the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

2. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Eastern Cape Office of the 
Premier as at 31 March 2017, and its financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Modified Cash 
Standard prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements of 
the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 
of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2016 
(Act No.3 of 2016)(DoRA).

Basis for opinion
3. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on 

Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements section of my report. 

4. I am independent of the department in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional 
accountants (IESBA code) and the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA 
code.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matters
6. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect 

of these matters.

Irregular expenditure

7. Irregular expenditure of R8,3 million (2016: R4,4 million) that has 
accumulated over the last three years and that has not been recovered, 
written off or condoned was disclosed in note 23 to the financial 
statements. Irregular expenditure of R3,9 million incurred during the 
year under review is included in the amount disclosed.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

8. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R2 million disclosed in note 24 of 
the financial statements was incurred. This was as a result of assets 
purchased that did not meet the expected functionality to be used by the 
department.

Capital assets under investigation

9. Tangible capital assets of R3,2 million, intangible capital assets of R 4,3 
million and immovable tangible capital assets of R3,9 million disclosed 
in notes 29, 30 and 31 were disclosed as under investigation. The 
outcomes of the investigations would determine whether adjustments 
need to be made on capital assets and fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
disclosed in the notes.

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial 
statements
10. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Modified 
Cash Standard prescribed by the National Treasury and the requirements 
of the PFMA and for such internal control as the accounting determines 

Report on the audit of the financial statements



EASTERN CAPE – OFFICE OF THE PREMIER  |  VOTE 1
AUDITOR GENERAL’S REPORT  |  for the year ended 31 March 2017

Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report173

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

11. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is 
responsible for assessing the Eastern Cape Office of the Premier’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the intention is to liquidate the department or cease 
operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements 
12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is included in the annexure to this auditor’s report.

Report on the audit of the annual performance 
reportIntroduction and scope 
14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 

25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have 
a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance 
information against predetermined objectives for selected programmes 
presented in the annual performance report. I performed procedures to 

identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

15. My procedures address the reported performance information, which 
must be based on the approved performance planning documents of the 
department. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness 
of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My 
procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or assertions relating 
to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future 
periods that may be included as part of the reported performance 
information. Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters. 

16. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information in accordance with the criteria developed from the 
performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the 
general notice, for the following selected programmes presented in 
the annual performance report of the department for the year ended 
31 March 2017:

Programmes Pages in 
the annual 

Programme 2 – planning, policy co-ordination, monitoring 
and evaluation

64 – 82

Programme 3 – institutional development and 
organisational support

83 – 100

17. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance 
information was properly presented and whether performance was 
consistent with the approved performance planning documents. I 
performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators 
and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the 
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether 
it was valid, accurate and complete.
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18. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of 
the reported performance information for the following programmes:

• Programme 2 – planning, policy co-ordination, monitoring and  
      evaluation

• Programme 3 – institutional development and organisational      
      support

Other matter
Achievement of planned targets

19. Refer to the annual report page 36 to 100 on information on achievement 
of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under 
or overachievement of a number of targets. 

Report on audit of compliance with legislation Introduction 
and scope 
20. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms 

thereof I have a responsibility to report material findings on the 
compliance of the department with specific matters in key legislation. I 
performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to 
express assurance. 

21. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the 
applicable subject matters are as follows:

Expenditure management
22. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure of R3,9 

million and fruitless and wasteful expenditure R2,0 million disclosed 
in notes 23 and 24 to the financial statements, as required by section 
38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and treasury regulation 9.1.1.

Conditional grants and transfers
23. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence that 

appropriate measures were maintained to ensure that transfers and 
subsidies to entities were applied for their intended purposes, as required 
by treasury regulation 8.4.1.

Internal control deficiencies

24. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements, reported performance information and compliance with 
applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any 
form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to 
the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on 
compliance with legislation included in this report.

• The accounting officer did not exercise the required oversight 
responsibilities to prevent unlawful deviations from normal 
procurement processes and monitor transfers to institutions of higher 
learning. Consequently non-compliance with laws and regulations 
relating to expenditure management and monitoring of grants 
transferred was not prevented. 

Other reports 

25. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various 
parties that had, or could have, an impact on the matters reported in the 
department’s financial statements, reported performance information, 
compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These 
reports did not form part of my opinion on the financial statements or 
my findings on the reported performance information or compliance with 
legislation.
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Investigations 

26. The department appointed an independent consulting firm to investigate 
allegations of procurement irregularities relating to information 
and communication technology assets. At the reporting date, the 
investigation was still in progress.

East London

31 July 2017

Annexure – auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit 

1. As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my 
audit of the financial statements, and the procedures performed on 
reported performance information for selected programmes and on the 
department’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements
27. In addition to my responsibility for the audit of financial statements as 

described in the auditor’s report, I also: 

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial 
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the department’s internal control

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by the accounting officer

• conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting officer’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Eastern Cape Office of the 
Premier’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are 
based on the information available to me at the date of the auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause a department 
to cease operating as a going concern 



• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Communication with those charged with governance
28. I communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I 
identify during my audit. 

29. I also confirm to the accounting officer that I have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a 
bearing on my independence and, where applicable, related safeguards. 
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Appropriation per programme

2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted Appro-
priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of  

final appro-pri-
ation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure

Programme R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Administration 232 386                - 16 675 249 061        245 749 3 312 98.7%        378 567       367 002 

Planning, Policy Coordination, 
Monitoring and Evaluation

133 554                - (10 658)       122 896        108 732 14 164 88.5%        113 437       107 052 

Institutional Development and 
Organisational Support

161 679                - (6 017) 155 662        151 822 3 840 97.5%        179 668       170 832 

Subtotal 527 619                -           -       527 619        506 303 21 316 96.0%        671 672       644 886 
Total 527 619                -           -       527 619        506 303 21 316 96.0%        671 672       644 886 
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2016/17 2015/16

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure

TOTAL (brought forward)

Reconciliation with statement of financial performance

ADD

Departmental receipts             225              374 

NRF Receipts                 -                  - 

Aid assistance             499                17 

Actual amounts per statement of financial performance (total revenue)   528 343 672 063

ADD

Aid assistance 9 9

Prior year unauthorised expenditure approved without funding

Actual amounts per statement of financial performance (total expenditure) 506 312       644 895 
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Appropriation per economic classification
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Economic classification

Current payments 449 081 - (4 735) 444 346 424 386 19 960 95.5% 411 550 372 084
Compensation of employees 256 666 - (1 429) 255 237 242 324 12 913 94.9% 233 522 223 056

Salaries and wages 205 939 13 006 846 219 791 216 526 3 265 98.5% 205 512 198 268

Social contributions 50 727 (13 006) (2 275) 35 446 25 798 9 648 72.8% 28 010 24 788

Goods and services 192 415 - (3 306) 189 109 182 062 7 047 96.3% 178 028 149 026

Administrative fees 430 - 125 555 555 - 100.0% 649 655

Advertising 11 009 (624) (3 152) 7 233 7 197 36 99.5% 5 867 5 025

Minor assets 105 - 404 509 508 1 99.8% 418 156

Audit costs: External 3 691 - 426 4 117 4 117 - 100.0% 3 962 3 960

Bursaries: Employees 68 208 - 276 276 - 100.0% 474 399

Catering: Departmental 
activities 4 656 2 146 1 670 8 472 8 424 48 99.4% 6 916 6 333

Communication 4 518 (255) - 4 263 4 261 2 100.0% 6 911 6 726

Computer services 81 854 (2 548) (1 361) 77 945 77 913 32 100.0% 67 298 62 551

Consultants: Business and 
advisory services 43 314 (1 652) (6 049) 35 613 29 624 5 989 83.2% 41 538 22 702

Legal services 1 950 7 2 000 3 957 3 957 - 100.0% 1 434 1 426

Contractors 6 486 2 900 126 9 512 9 439 73 99.2% 9 177 7 481

Agency and support / out-
sourced services 2 570 634 400 3 604 3 604 - 100.0% 2 077 2 487

Fleet services 1 500 (23) - 1 477 1 477 - 100.0% 1 410 1 137

Consumable supplies 500 51 178 729 644 85 88.3% 795 752

Consumable: Stationery, 
printing and office supplies 2 751 (1 254) - 1 497 1 475 22 98.5% 1 370 1 064
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Appropriation per economic classification
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Economic classification

Operating leases

350                     (350) - - - - - - 1 075

Property payments 433 (224) - 209 137 72 65.6% 66 50

Transport provided: Depart-
mental activity 1 346 618 228 2 192 2 168 24 98.9% 1 018 932

Travel and subsistence 17 750 117 655 18 522 18 202 320 98.3% 17 352 15 674

Training and development 2 938 (1 333) - 1 605 1 589 16 99.0% 2 548 2 135

Operating payments 536 693 1 044 2 273 2 224 49 97.8% 2 278 2 319

Venues and facilities 3 660 889 - 4 549 4 271 278 93.9% 4 470 3 987

Interest and rent on land - - - - - - - - 2

Interest - - - - - - - - 2

Transfers and subsidies 68 736 - 4 735 73 471 73 029 442 99.4% 249 552 263 810
Provinces and municipalities - - - - - - - 6 2

Municipalities - - - - - - - 6 2

Municipal bank ac-
counts - - - - - - - 6 2

Departmental agencies and 
accounts 37 011 6 800 - 43 811 43 811 - 100.0% 59 735 74 296

Departmental agencies and 
accounts 37 011 6 800 - 43 811 43 811 - 100.0% 59 735 74 296

Higher education institutions 20 100 - 4 735 24 835 24 834 1 100.0% 16 330 16 330

Public corporations and private 
enterprises 6 800 (6 800) - - - - - 170 000 170 000

Public corporations - - - - - - - 160 000 160 000

Other transfers to 
public corporations - - - - - - - 160 000 160 000
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Appropriation per economic classification
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Economic classification

Private enterprises 6 800 (6 800) - - - - - 10 000 10 000

Other transfers to 
private enterprises 6 800 (6 800) - - - - - 10 000 10 000

Households 4 825 - - 4 825 4 384 441 90.9% 3 481 3 182

Social benefits 3 325 127 - 3 452 3 425 27 99.2% 2 945 2 763

Other transfers to 
households 1 500 (127) - 1 373 959 414 69.8% 536 419

Payments for capital assets 9 802 - - 9 802 8 853 949 90.3% 10 570 8 992
Machinery and equipment 9 002 - - 9 002 8 853 149 98.3% 9 795 8 605

Transport equipment 1 688 (142) - 1 546 1 477 69 95.5% 3 010 3 003

Other machinery and 
equipment 7 314 142 - 7 456 7 376 80 98.9% 6 785 5 602

Intangible assets 800 - - 800 - 800 - 775 387

Payments for financial assets - - - - 35 (35) - - -
Total 527 619 - - 527 619 506 303 21 316 96.0% 671 672 644 886
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Programme 1:  Administration
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

1. Premier’s Office 15 547 1 238 876 17 661 16 978 683 96.1% 14 600 14 782

2. Office of the Director 
General

53 463 (2 984) 8 039 58 518 58 031 487 99.2% 233 712 226 765

3. Office of the Chief 
Operations Officer

35 550 1 842 5 322 42 714 42 712 2 100.0% 45 850 43 479

4. Corporate Services 67 269 (6 395) (306) 60 568 58 917 1 651 97.3% 24 476 22 054

5. Financial Management 42 956 5 562 1 520 50 038 49 903 135 99.7% 47 869 46 229

6. Internal Audit 5 402 72 150 5 624 5 480 144 97.4% 4 985 5 885

7. Enterprise Wide Risk Man-
agement

2 799 643 - 3 442 3 359 83 97.6% 2 832 2 816

8. Special Programmes Coor-
dinating Unit

9 008 319 1 074 10 401 10 354 47 99.5% 4 243 4 992

9. Departmental Legal 
Services

392 (297) - 95 15 80 15.8% - -

Total for sub programmes 232 386 - 16 675 249 061 245 749 3 312 98.7% 378 567 367 002
Economic classification

Current payments 218 559 - 16 675 235 234 232 512 2 722 98.8% 206 160 180 651
Compensation of employees 146 888 - (198) 146 690 144 171 2 519 98.3% 131 149 128 484

Salaries and wages 126 242 3 601 846 130 689 128 683 2 006 98.5% 115 630 113 354

Social contributions 20 646 (3 601) (1 044) 16 001 15 488 513 96.8% 15 519 15 130

Goods and services 71 671 - 16 873 88 544 88 341 203 99.8% 75 011 52 165

Administrative fees 430 - 125 555 555 - 100.0% 649 655

Advertising 3 955 7 1 736 5 698 5 698 - 100.0% 5 196 4 453

Minor assets 105 - 404 509 508 1 99.8% 418 156
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Programme 1:  Administration
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Audit costs: External 3 691 - 426 4 117 4 117 - 100.0% 3 962 3 960

Bursaries: Employees 68 208 - 276 276 - 100.0% 474 399

Catering: Departmental 
activities

3 222 2 120 1 770 7 112 7 112 - 100.0% 5 524 5 008

Communication 4 518 (255) - 4 263 4 261 2 100.0% 6 911 6 726

Computer services 9 744 (1 208) 838 9 374 9 374 - 100.0% 2 557 2 543

Consultants: Business and 
advisory services

16 280 (238) 5 368 21 410 21 410 - 100.0% 20 198 1 568

Legal services 1 950 7 2 000 3 957 3 957 - 100.0% 1 434 1 426

Contractors 6 399 1 933 126 8 458 8 456 2 100.0% 7 563 7 029

Agency and support / out-
sourced services

2 570 634 400 3 604 3 604 - 100.0% 2 077 2 487

Fleet services 1 500 (23) - 1 477 1 477 - 100.0% 1 410 1 137

Consumable supplies 500 (4) 178 674 589 85 87.4% 773 739

Consumable: Stationery, 
printing and office supplies

2 706 (1 523) - 1 183 1 183 - 100.0% 1 324 1 004

Operating leases 350 (350) - - - - - - -

Property payments 433 (224) - 209 137 72 65.6% 66 50

Transport provided: Depart-
mental activity

702 (105) 228 825 801 24 97.1% 61 46

Travel and subsistence 7 769 28 2 230 10 027 10 028 (1) 100.0% 9 060 7 918

Training and development 2 922 (1 342) - 1 580 1 580 - 100.0% 2 195 1 820

Operating payments 404 613 1 044 2 061 2 043 18 99.1% 2 154 2 186

Venues and facilities 1 453 (278) - 1 175 1 175 - 100.0% 1 005 855

Interest and rent on land - - - - - - - - 2

Interest - - - - - - - - 2
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Programme 1:  Administration
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Transfers and subsidies 4 825 - - 4 825 4 384 441 90.9% 163 487 177 746
Provinces and municipalities - - - - - - - 6 2

Municipalities - - - - - - - 6 2

Municipal bank ac-
counts

- - - - - - - 6 2

Departmental agencies and 
accounts

- - - - - - - - 14 562

Departmental agencies and 
accounts

- - - - - - - - 14 562

Public corporations and private 
enterprises

- - - - - - - - -

Public corporations - - - - - - - 160 000 160 000

           Other transfers to public 
corporations

- - - - - - - 160 000 160 000

Households 4 825 - - 4 825 4 384 441 90.9% 3 481 3 182

Social benefits 3 325 127 - 3 452 3 425 27 99.2% 2 945 2 763

Other transfers to house-
holds

1 500 (127) - 1 373 959 414 69.8% 536 419

Payments for capital assets 9 002 - - 9 002 8 853 149 98.3% 8 920 8 605
Machinery and equipment  9 002 - - 9 002 8 853 149 98.3% 8 920 8 605

Transport equipment 1 688 (142) - 1 546 1 477 69 95.5% 3 010 3 003

Other machinery and 
equipment

7 314 142 - 7 456 7 376 80 98.9% 5 910 5 602

Total 232 386 - 16 675 249 061 245 749 3 312 98.7% 378 567 367 002
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1.1 Premier’s Office
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 14 047 1 365 876 16 288 16 019 269 98.3% 14 065 14 363
Compensation of employees 11 833 1 365 - 13 198 13 060 138 99.0% 10 764 11 431

Goods and services 2 214 - 876 3 090 2 959 131 95.8% 3 301 2 932

Transfers and subsidies 1 500 (127) - 1 373 959 414 69.8% 535 419
Households 1 500 (127) - 1 373 959 414 69.8% 535 419

Total 15 547 1 238 876 17 661 16 978 683 96.1% 14 600 14 782

1.2 Office Of The Director General
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification
Adjusted 

Appropriation
Shifting of 

Funds Virement Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 53 463 (2 984) 8 039 58 518 58 031 487 99.2% 73 712 52 203
Compensation of employees 30 970 (3 507) - 27 463 26 976 487 98.2% 35 512 33 856

Goods and services 22 493 523 8 039 31 055 31 055 - 100.0% 38 200 18 345

Transfers and subsidies - - - - - - - 160 000 174 562
Departmental agencies and ac-
counts - - - - - - - - 14 562

Public corporations and private 
enterprises - - - - - - - 160 000 160 000

Total 53 463 (2 984) 8 039 58 518 58 031 487 99.2% 233 712 226 765
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1.3 Office of the Chief Operating Officer
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification
Adjusted 

Appro-priation
Shifting of 

Funds Virement Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 35 550 1 842 5 322 42 714 42 712 2 100.0% 45 850 43 479
Compensation of employees 25 666 813 - 26 479 26 477 2 100.0% 33 173 30 978

Goods and services 9 884 1 029 5 322 16 235 16 235 - 100.0% 12 677 12 501

Total 35 550 1 842 5 322 42 714 42 712 2 100.0% 45 850 43 479

1.4 Corporate Services 

2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 63 194 (5 852) (306) 57 036 55 492 1 544 97.3% 21 531 19 291
Compensation of employees 41 642 (4 300) (1 044) 36 298 34 753 1 545 95.7% 17 183 15 963

Goods and services 21 552 (1 552) 738 20 738 20 739 (1) 100.0% 4 348 3 328

Transfers and subsidies 3 325 127 - 3 452 3 425 27 99.2% 2 945 2 763
Households 3 325 127 - 3 452 3 425 27 99.2% 2 945 2 763

Payments for capital assets 750 (670) - 80 - 80 - - -
    Machinery and equipment 750 (670) - 80 - 80 - - -

Total 67 269 (6 395) (306) 60 568 58 917 1 651 97.3% 24 476 22 054
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1.5 Financial Management
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification
Adjusted 

Appro-priation
Shifting of 

Funds Virement Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 34 704 4 892 1 520 41 116 41 050 66 99.8% 38 942 37 622
Compensation of employees 23 720 4 892 - 28 612 28 558 54 99.8% 24 937 24 785

Goods and services 10 984 - 1 520 12 504 12 492 12 99.9% 14 005 12 837

Transfers and subsidies - - - - - - - 7 2
Provinces and municipalities - - - - - - - 6 2

Households - - - - - - - 1 -

Payments for capital assets 8 252 670 - 8 922 8 853 69 99.2% 8 920 8 605
Machinery and equipment 8 252 670 - 8 922 8 853 69 99.2% 8 920 8 605

Total 42 956 5 562 1 520 50 038 49 903 135 99.7% 47 869 46 229
 

1.6 Internal Audit
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification
Adjusted 

Appro-priation
Shifting of 

Funds Virement Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 5 402 72 150 5 624 5 480 144 97.4% 4 985 5 885
Compensation of employees 4 210 72 - 4 282 4 140 142 96.7% 3 682 4 712

Goods and services 1 192 - 150 1 342 1 340 2 99.9% 1 303 1 173

Total 5 402 72 150 5 624 5 480 144 97.4% 4 985 5 885
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1.7 Enterprise Wide Risk Management
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification
Adjusted 

Appro-priation
Shifting of 

Funds Virement Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 2 799 643 - 3 442 3 359 83 97.6% 2 832 2 816
Compensation of employees 2 607 665 - 3 272 3 247 25 99.2% 2 697 2 707

Goods and services 192 (22) - 170 112 58 65.9% 135 109

Total 2 799 643 - 3 442 3 359 83 97.6% 2 832 2 816

1.8 Special Programmes Coordinating Unit
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification
Adjusted 

Appro-priation
Shifting of 

Funds Virement Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 9 008 319 1 074 10 401 10 354 47 99.5% 4 243 4 992
Compensation of employees 6 048 97 846 6 991 6 945 46 99.3% 3 201 4 052

Goods and services 2 960 222 228 3 410 3 409 1 100.0% 1 042 940

Total 9 008 319 1 074 10 401 10 354 47 99.5% 4 243 4 992

1.9 Departmental Legal Services
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
Expenditure

Variance Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 392 (297) - 95 15 80 15.8% - -
Compensation of employees 192 (97) - 95 15 80 15.8% - -

Goods and services 200 (200) - - - - - - -

Total 392 (297) - 95 15 80 15.8% - -
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Programme 2:  Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring And Evaluation
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

1. Programme Management For 
Planning, Policy,Coordination, 
Monitoring And Evaluation  

2 904 - - 2 904 2 399 505 82.6% 2 949 2 882

2. Policy Planning And Re-
search Coordination

49 995 (3 362) (1 254) 45 379 44 471 908 98.0% 61 303 53 208

3. Intergovernmantal And Stake-
holder Relations

21 862 - (1 584) 20 278 18 210 2 068 89.8% 15 723 13 792

4. Service Delivery Intervention 
And Coordination

43 840 3 362 (7 820) 39 382 31 746 7 636 80.6% 20 807 21 750

5. Performance Monitoring And 
Evaluation

14 953 - - 14 953 11 906 3 047 79.6% 12 655 15 420

Total for sub programmes 133 554 - (10 658) 122 896 108 732 14 164 88.5% 113 437 107 052

Economic classification

Current payments 89 743 - (10 658) 79 085 64 886 14 199 82.0% 69 700 63 316
Compensation of employees 55 850 - (846) 55 004 47 270 7 734 85.9% 53 642 47 599

Salaries and wages 39 760 4 329 - 44 089 42 949 1 140 97.4% 48 278 43 277

Social contributions 16 090 (4 329) (846) 10 915 4 321 6 594 39.6% 5 364 4 322

Goods and services 33 893 - (9 812) 24 081 17 616 6 465 73.2% 16 058 15 717

Advertising 2 280 (620) (738) 922 922 - 100.0% 355 315
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Programme 2:  Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring And Evaluation
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Catering: Departmental 
activities

492 1 - 493 493 - 100.0% 449 442

Computer services 800 (373) - 427 422 5 98.8% - -

Consultants: Business and 
advisory services

21 706 (1 245) (9 074) 11 387 5 454 5 933 47.9% 6 038 6 119

Contractors 87 - - 87 16 71 18.4% 100 58

Consumables supplies - 55 - 55 55 - 100.0% 20 13

Consumable: Stationery, 
printing and office supplies

45 269 - 314 292 22 93.0% - 15

Transport provided: De-
partmental activity

644 723 - 1 367 1 367 - 100.0% 942 886

Travel and subsistence 6 084 (130) - 5 954 5 697 257 95.7% 5 235 5 127

Training and development - 9 - 9 9 - 100.0% 97 75

Operating payments 81 97 - 178 178 - 100.0% 39 67

Venues and facilities 1 674 1 214 - 2 888 2 711 177 93.9% 2 783 2 600

Transfers and subsidies 43 811 - - 43 811 43 811 - 100.0% 43 737 43 736
Departmental agencies and 
accounts

37 011 6 800 - 43 811 43 811 - 100.0% 43 737 43 736

Departmental agencies 37 011 6 800 - 43 811 43 811 - 100.0% 43 737 43 736

Public corporations and private 
enterprises

6 800 (6 800) - - - - - - -

Private enterprises 6 800 (6 800) - - - - - - -

Other transfers to 
private enterprises

6 800 (6 800) - - - - - - -

Payments for financial assets - - - - 35 (35) - - -
Total 133 554 - (10 658) 122 896 108 732 14 164 88.5% 113 437 107 052
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2.1 Programme Management for Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and Evaluation
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 2 904 - - 2 904 2 399 505 82.6% 2 949 2 882
    Compensation of employees 2 307 - - 2 307 1 832 475 79.4% 2 383 2 331

Goods and services 597 - - 597 567 30 95.0% 566 551

Total 2 904 - - 2 904 2 399 505 82.6% 2 949 2 882

2.2 Policy Planning and Research Coordination
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 12 984 (3 362) (1 254) 8 368 7 460 908 89.1% 17 566 9 472
    Compensation of employees 10 903 (3 362) - 7 541 6 613 928 87.7% 15 892 7 798

Goods and services 2 081 - (1 254) 827 847 (20) 102.4% 1 674 1 674

Transfers and subsidies 37 011 - - 37 011 37 011 - 100.0% 43 737 43 736
Departmental agencies and 
accounts 37 011 - - 37 011 37 011 - 100.0% 43 737 43 736

Total 49 995 (3 362) (1 254) 45 379 44 471 908 98.0% 61 303 53 208
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2.3 Intergovernmantal and Stakeholder Relations
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 21 862 - (1 584) 20 278 18 175 2 103 89.6% 15 723 13 792
    Compensation of employees 12 182 - (846) 11 336 9 548 1 788 84.2% 10 563 9 056

Goods and services 9 680 - (738) 8 942 8 627 315 96.5% 5 160 4 736

Total 21 862 - (1 584) 20 278 18 210 2 068 89.8% 15 723 13 792

2.4 Service Delivery Intervention and Coordination
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-pria-

tion

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000
Current payments 37 040 3 362 (7 820) 32 582 24 946 7 636 76.6% 20 807 21 750

Compensation of employees 16 420 3 362 - 19 782 18 058 1 724 91.3% 13 018 13 863

Goods and services 20 620 - (7 820) 12 800 6 888 5 912 53.8% 7 789 7 887

Transfers and subsidies 6 800 - - 6 800 6 800 - 100.0% - -
Departmental agencies and 
accounts - 6 800 - 6 800 6 800 - 100.0% - -

Public corporations and private 
enterprises 6 800 (6 800) - - - - - - -

Total 43 840 3 362 (7 820) 39 382 31 746 7 636 80.6% 20 807 21 750
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2.5 Performance Monitoring and Evaluation
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 14 953 - - 14 953 11 906 3 047 79.6% 12 655 15 420
    Compensation of employees 14 038 - - 14 038 11 219 2 819 79.9% 11 786 14 551

Goods and services 915 - - 915 687 228 75.1% 869 869

Total 14 953 - - 14 953 11 906 3 047 79.6% 12 655 15 420

Programme 3:  Institutional Development and Organisational Support
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

1.    Programme Management     
       For Institutional    
       Development And  
       Organisational Suport   

3 487 (310) (100) 3 077 2 995 82 97.3% 3 812 3 657

2.   Institutional Support  
      Services

12 989 - (746) 12 243 10 247 1 996 83.7% 10 601 10 102

3.   Human Capital And  
      Talent Management  
      Support

18 470 340 (4 095) 14 715 14 647 68 99.5% 14 406 13 799

4.   Human Resource  
      Development Support  
      Services

34 668 (30) 1 724 36 362 35 879 483 98.7% 62 819 62 077



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE 1

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2017

194

Programme 3:  Institutional Development and Organisational Support
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

5.   Information Technology    
      Management

84 726 (851) (2 199) 81 676 80 561 1 115 98.6% 78 452 72 379

6.   Anti-Corruptionand   
      Security Management

7 339 851 (601) 7 589 7 493 96 98.7% 9 578 8 818

Total for sub programmes 161 679 - (6 017) 155 662 151 822 3 840 97.5% 179 668 170 832

Economic classification

Current payments 140 779 - (10 752) 130 027 126 988 3 039 97.7% 135 690 128 117
Compensation of employees 53 928 - (385) 53 543 50 883 2 660 95.0% 48 731 46 973

Salaries and wages 39 937 5 076 - 45 013 44 894 119 99.7% 41 604 41 637

Social contributions 13 991 (5 076) (385) 8 530 5 989 2 541 70.2% 7 127 5 336

Goods and services 86 851 - (10 367) 76 484 76 105 379 99.5% 86 959 81 144

Advertising 4 774 (11) (4 150) 613 577 36 94.1% 316 257

Catering: Departmental 
activities

942 25 (100) 867 819 48 94.5% 943 883

Computer services 71 310 (967) (2 199) 68 144 68 117 27 100.0% 64 741 60 008

Consultants: Business and 
advisory services

5 328 (169) (2 343) 2 816 2 760 56 98.0% 15 302 15 015

Contractors - 967 - 967 967 - 100.0% 1 514 394

Consumable supplies - - - - - - - 2 -

Consumable: Stationery, 
printing and office supplies

- - - - - - - 46 45

Operating leases - - - - - - - - 1 075
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Programme 3:  Institutional Development and Organisational Support
2016/17 2015/16

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appro-priation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Sub programme

Transport provided: De-
partmental activity

- - - - - - - 15 -

Travel and subsistence 3 897 219 (1 575) 2 541 2 477 64 97.5% 3 057 2 629

Training and development 16 - - 16 - 16 - 256 240

Operating payments 51 (17) - 34 3 31 8.8% 85 66

Venues and facilities 533 (47) - 486 385 101 79.2% 682 532

Transfers and subsidies 20 100 - 4 735 24 835 24 834 1 100.0% 42 328 42 328
Departmental agencies and 
accounts

- - - - - - - 15 998 15 998

Departmental agencies - - - - - - - 15 998 15 998

Higher education institutions 20 100 - 4 735 24 835 24 834 1 100.0% 16 330 16 330

Public corporations and private 
enterprises

- - - - - - - 10 000 10 000

Private enterprises - - - - - - - 10 000 10 000

Other transfers to 
private enterprises

- - - - - - - 10 000 10 000

Payments for capital assets 800 - - 800 - 800 - 1 650 387
Machinery and equipment - - - - - - - 875 -

Intangible assets - - - - - - - 875 -

Payments for financial assets 800 - - 800 - 800 - 775 387

Total 161 679 - (6 017) 155 662 151 822 3 840 97.5% 179 668 170 832
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3.1 Programme Management for Institutional Development and Organisational Support
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appropriation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 3 487 (310) (100) 3 077 2 995 82 97.3% 3 812 3 657
    Compensation of employees 2 316 (310) - 2 006 2 002 4 99.8% 2 612 2 578

Goods and services 1 171 - (100) 1 071 993 78 92.7% 1 200 1 079

Total 3 487 (310) (100) 3 077 2 995 82 97.3% 3 812 3 657

3.2 Institutional Support Services
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 12 989 - (746) 12 243 10 247 1 996 83.7% 10 601 10 102
    Compensation of employees 11 362 - - 11 362 9 402 1 960 82.7% 8 855 8 498

Goods and services 1 627 - (746) 881 845 36 95.9% 1 746 1 604

Total 12 989 - (746) 12 243 10 247 1 996 83.7% 10 601 10 102

3.3 Human Capital and Talent Management Support Services
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 18 470 340 (4 095) 14 715 14 647 68 99.5% 14 406 13 799
    Compensation of employees 13 278 340 - 13 618 13 623 (5) 100.0% 13 197 12 606

Goods and services 5 192 - (4 095) 1 097 1 024 73 93.3% 1 209 1 193

Total 18 470 340 (4 095) 14 715 14 647 68 99.5% 14 406 13 799
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3.4 Human Resource Development Support Services
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 14 568 (30) (3 011) 11 527 11 045 482 95.8% 20 491 19 749
    Compensation of employees 8 648 (30) (385) 8 233 7 836 397 95.2% 8 111 7 846

Goods and services 5 920 - (2 626) 3 294 3 209 85 97.4% 12 380 11 903

Transfers and subsidies 20 100 - 4 735 24 835 24 834 1 100.0% 42 328 42 328
Departmental agencies and 
accounts - - - - - - - 15 998 15 998

Higher education institutions 20 100 - 4 735 24 835 24 834 1 100.0% 16 330 16 330

Public corporations and private 
enterprises - - - - - - - 10 000 10 000

Total 34 668 (30) 1 724 36 362 35 879 483 98.7% 62 819 62 077

3.5 Information Technology Management
2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 83 926 (851) (2 199) 80 876 80 561 315 99.6% 76 802 71 992
Compensation of employees 12 396 (851) - 11 545 11 271 274 97.6% 10 201 10 272

Goods and services 71 530 - (2 199) 69 331 69 290 41 99.9% 66 601 61 720

Payments for capital assets 800 - - 800 - 800 -  1 650  387 

Machinery and equipment - - - - - - -  875  - 

Intangible assets 800 - - 800 800 - 775 387

Total 84 726 (851) (2 199) 81 676 80 561 1 115 98.6% 78 452 72 379
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3.6 Anti-Corruption and Security Management

2016/17 2015/16

Economic classification

Adjusted 
Appro-priation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final 

Appropriation
Actual 

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure 
as % of final 

appropriation

Final 
Appro-priation

Actual 
expenditure

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000

Current payments 7 339 851 (601) 7 589 7 493 96 98.7% 9 578 8 818
    Compensation of employees 5 928 851 - 6 779 6 749 30 99.6% 5 755 5 173

Goods and services 1 411 - (601) 810 744 66 91.9% 3 823 3 645

Total 7 339 851 (601) 7 589 7 493 96 98.7% 9 578 8 818
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-H) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

 Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on payments for financial assets

 Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for financial assets to the Annual Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement): 
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 4.1  Per programme Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance  R’000
Variance as a % of 
Final Appropriation

Administration 249 061 245 749 3 312 1.3%
Compensation of Employees under expenditure is primarily due to delays in the replacement of vacant posts not being filled.

Planning, policy, coordination, monitoring and evaluation 122 896 108 732 14 164 11.5%
Compensation of Employees under expenditure is primarily due to delays in the replacement of vacant posts not being filled. Goods and services under expenditure is mainly due to delays 
in the signing of the service level agreement for youth related projects.   
Institutional development and organisational support 155 662 151 822 3 840 2.5%

Compensation of Employees under expenditure is primarily due to delays in the replacement of vacant posts not being filled.  
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4.2 Per economic classification Final Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance
Variance as a % of Final 

Appropriation
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments

Compensation of employees 255 237 242 324 12 913 5.1%
Goods and services 189 109 182 062 7 047 3.7%

Transfers and subsidies

Departmental agencies and accounts 43 811 43 811 - 0.0%
Higher education institutions 24 835 24 834 1 0.0%
Households 4 825 4 384 441 9.1%

Payments for capital assets

Machinery and equipment 9 802 8 853 949 9.7%
Intangible assets 800 800 0.0%

Compensation of employees under expenditure is caused by the delays in the replacements of vacant post due to the repositioning of OTP. Goods and services under expenditure is mainly 
due to delays in the signing of the service level agreement for youth related projects.   
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Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible assets 9 8 853 8 605

Intangible assets 9 - 387

Total expenditure for capital assets 8 853 8 992

Payments for financial assets 7 35 -

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 506 312 644 895

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 22 031 27 168

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Voted funds 21 316 26 786

Annual appropriation 21 316 26 786
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 19 225 374

Aid assistance 4 490 8

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 22 031 27 168

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1 527 619 671 672

Departmental revenue 2 225 374

Aid assistance 3 499 17

TOTAL REVENUE 528 343 672 063

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 4 242 324 223 056

Goods and services 5 182 062 149 025

Interest and rent on land 6 - 3

Aid assistance 3 9 9

Total current expenditure 424 395 372 093

Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies 8 73 029 263 810

Total transfers and subsidies 73 029 263 810
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Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

ASSETS 

Current assets 30 278 32 692
Cash and cash equivalents 10 22 759 29 394

Prepayments and advances 11 3 548 2 715

Receivables 12 3 971 583

  

Non-current assets 104 143
Receivables 12 104 143

  

TOTAL ASSETS 30 382 32 835

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities 30 382 32 835
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 13 21 316 26 786

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to 
the Revenue Fund

14 14 16

Payables 15 6 770 4 241

Aid assistance unutilised 3 2 282 1 792

  

  

TOTAL LIABILITIES 30 382 32 835

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts 528 290 672 089
Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 527 619 671 717

Departmental revenue received 2 172 355

Aid assistance received 3 499 17

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital (1 653) 3 976

Surrendered to Revenue Fund (27 290) (5 743)

Current payments (424 395) (372 090)

Interest paid 6 - (3)

Payments for financial assets (35) -

Transfers and subsidies paid (73 029) (263 810)

Net cash flow available from operating activities 16 1 888 34 419

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets 9 (8 853) (8 992)

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.2 330 283

Net cash flows from investing activities (8 523) (8 709)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (6 635) 25 710

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 29 394 3 684

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 17 22 759 29 394
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Summary of significant accounting policies 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which 
have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. Management 
has concluded that the financial statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary 
information.  

The historical cost convention has been used, except where otherwise indicated.  Management has 
used assessments and estimates in preparing the annual financial statements.  These are based on 
the best information available at the time of preparation.

Where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance the 
usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the Public 
Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury 
Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA and the annual Division of Revenue Act. 

1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Modified Cash 
Standard.  

2 Going concern 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

3 Presentation currency

Amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also 
the functional currency of the department. 

4 Rounding 

Unless otherwise stated financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand 
Rand (R’000).

5 Foreign currency translation

Cash flows arising from foreign currency transactions are translated into South African 
Rands using the spot exchange rates prevailing at the date of payment / receipt.

6 Comparative information
6.1 Prior period comparative information 

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s financial 
statements.  Where necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have 
been reclassified to ensure that the format in which the information is presented is consistent 
with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

6.2 Current year comparison with budget 

A comparison between the approved, final budget and actual amounts for each programme 
and economic classification is included in the appropriation statement.  

7 Revenue
7.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against 
the revenue fund (i.e. statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date 
the appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments 
budget process are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date the 
adjustments become effective.

The net amount of any appropriated funds due to / from the relevant revenue fund at the 
reporting date is recognised as a payable / receivable in the statement of financial position.  

7.2 Departmental revenue 

Departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when 
received and is subsequently paid into the relevant revenue fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the relevant revenue fund at the reporting date is recognised as a 
payable in the statement of financial position. 

7.3 Accrued departmental revenue 

Accruals in respect of departmental revenue (excluding tax revenue) are recorded in the 
notes to the financial statements when:
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the 

transaction will flow to the department; and

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

The accrued revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable.

Accrued tax revenue (and related interest and / penalties) is measured at amounts receivable 
from collecting agents.

8 Expenditure
8.1 Compensation of employees
8.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date 
of payment.  
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8.1.2 Social contributions

Social contributions made by the department in respect of current employees are recognised 
in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.  

Social contributions made by the department in respect of ex-employees are classified as 
transfers to households in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

8.2 Other expenditure

Other expenditure (such as goods and services, transfers and subsidies and payments 
for capital assets) is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment.  The expense is classified as a capital expense if the total consideration paid is 
more than the capitalisation threshold.  

8.3 Accruals and payables not recognised 

Accruals and payables not recognised are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when the goods are received or, in the case of services, when they are rendered to the 
department or in the case of transfers and subsidies when they are due and payable.

Accruals and payables not recognised are measured at cost.

8.4 Leases
8.4.1 Operating leases

Operating lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as current 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The operating lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements. 

8.4.2 Finance leases 

Finance lease payments made during the reporting period are recognised as capital 
expenditure in the statement of financial performance on the date of payment.

The finance lease commitments are recorded in the notes to the financial statements and 
are not apportioned between the capital and interest portions.  

Finance lease assets acquired at the end of the lease term are recorded and measured at 
the lower of:
• cost, being the fair value of the asset; or

• the sum of the minimum lease payments made, including any payments made to 
acquire ownership at the end of the lease term, excluding interest.

9 Aid Assistance
9.1 Aid assistance received

Aid assistance received in cash is recognised in the statement of financial performance 
when received.  In-kind aid assistance is recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
on the date of receipt and is measured at fair value.

Aid assistance not spent for the intended purpose and any unutilised funds from aid 
assistance that are required to be refunded to the donor  are recognised as a payable in the 
statement of financial position.

9.2 Aid assistance paid

Aid assistance paid is recognised in the statement of financial performance on the date of 
payment. Aid assistance payments made prior to the receipt of funds are recognised as a 
receivable in the statement of financial position.

10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost in the statement of financial position.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position as 
a current liability.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on 
hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

11 Prepayments and advances

Prepayments and advances are recognised in the statement of financial position when the 
department receives or disburses the cash.  

Prepayments and advances are initially and subsequently measured at cost.

12 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost plus 
accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already settled or written-off.  
Write-offs are made according to the department’s write-off policy.

13 Investments

Investments are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

14 Financial assets
14.1 Financial assets (not covered elsewhere)

A financial asset is recognised initially at its cost plus transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial.

At the reporting date, a department shall measure its financial assets at cost, less amounts 
already settled or written-off, except for recognised loans and receivables, which are 
measured at cost plus accrued interest, where interest is charged, less amounts already 
settled or written-off.
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14.2 Impairment of financial assets

Where there is an indication of impairment of a financial asset, an estimation of the reduction 
in the recorded carrying value, to reflect the best estimate of the amount of the future 
economic benefits expected to be received from that asset, is recorded in the notes to the 
financial statements.

15 Payables

Loans and payables are recognised in the statement of financial position at cost.

16 Capital Assets
16.1 Immovable capital assets

Immovable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at 
cost.  Immovable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured 
at fair value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of immovable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the immovable 
capital assets are measured at fair value for recording in the asset register.  

Immovable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation 
or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the 
end of the capital project unless the immovable asset is recorded by another department in 
which case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.

16.2 Movable capital assets

Movable capital assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  
Movable capital assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at fair 
value as at the date of acquisition.  

Where the cost of movable capital assets cannot be determined reliably, the movable capital 
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the movable 
assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1.

Movable capital assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation 
or impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end 
of the capital project unless the movable asset is recorded by another department/entity in 
which case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.  

16.3 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recorded in the notes to the financial statements at cost.  
Intangible assets acquired through a non-exchange transaction are measured at fair value 
as at the date of acquisition.  

Internally generated intangible assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements 
when the department commences the development phase of the project.  

Where the cost of intangible assets cannot be determined reliably, the intangible capital 
assets are measured at fair value and where fair value cannot be determined; the intangible 
assets are measured at R1.  

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 (or a later date as approved by the OAG) may be 
recorded at R1.

Intangible assets are subsequently carried at cost and are not subject to depreciation or 
impairment.

Subsequent expenditure that is of a capital nature is added to the cost of the asset at the end 
of the capital project unless the intangible asset is recorded by another department/entity in 
which case the completed project costs are transferred to that department.  

17 Provisions and Contingents
17.1 Provisions

Provisions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is a present legal 
or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a result of events in the past and it 
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. 
The provision is measured as the best estimate of the funds required to settle the present 
obligation at the reporting date.

17.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when there is 
a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within 
the control of the department or when there is a present obligation that is not recognised 
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation 
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

17.3 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when a possible 
asset arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not within the control of the 
department.
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17.4 Commitments 

Commitments are recorded at cost in the notes to the financial statements when there is 
a contractual arrangement or an approval by management in a manner that raises a valid 
expectation that the department will discharge its responsibilities thereby incurring future 
expenditure that will result in the outflow of cash.

18 Unauthorised expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure is recognised in the statement of financial position until such time 
as the expenditure is either:

·	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature with funding and the related funds 
are received; or

·	 approved by Parliament or the Provincial Legislature without funding and is written off 
against the appropriation in the statement of financial performance; or

·	 transferred to receivables for recovery.

Unauthorised expenditure is measured at the amount of the confirmed unauthorised 
expenditure.

19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when 
confirmed.  The amount recorded is equal to the total value of the fruitless and or wasteful 
expenditure incurred.  

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is removed from the notes to the financial statements 
when it is resolved or transferred to receivables for recovery.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected 
to be recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as 
irrecoverable.

20 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  
The amount recorded is equal to the value of the irregular expenditure incurred unless it is 
impracticable to determine, in which case reasons therefor are provided in the note.  

Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the relevant 
authority, transferred to receivables for recovery or not condoned and is not recoverable.   

Irregular expenditure receivables are measured at the amount that is expected to be 
recoverable and are de-recognised when settled or subsequently written-off as irrecoverable.

21 Changes in accounting policies, accounting estimates and errors

Changes in accounting policies that are effected by management have been applied 
retrospectively in accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is 
impracticable to determine the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change 
in policy.  In such instances the department shall restate the opening balances of assets, 
liabilities and net assets for the earliest period for which retrospective restatement is 
practicable.

Changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively in accordance with MCS 
requirements.

Correction of errors is applied retrospectively in the period in which the error has occurred in 
accordance with MCS requirements, except to the extent that it is impracticable to determine 
the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the error.  In such cases the department 
shall restate the opening balances of assets, liabilities and net assets for the earliest period 
for which retrospective restatement is practicable.

22 Events after the reporting date

Events after the reporting date that are classified as adjusting events have been accounted 
for in the financial statements.  The events after the reporting date that are classified as non-
adjusting events after the reporting date have been disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.  

23 Principal-Agent arrangements

The department is party to a principal-agent arrangement for [include details here].  In terms 
of the arrangement the department is the [principal / agent] and is responsible for [include 
details here].  All related revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities have been recognised 
or recorded in terms of the relevant policies listed herein.  Additional disclosures have been 
provided in the notes to the financial statements where appropriate.

24 Departures from the MCS requirements

 [Insert information on the following:  that management has concluded that the financial 
statements present fairly the department’s primary and secondary information; that the 
department complied with the Standard except that it has departed from a particular 
requirement to achieve fair presentation; and the requirement from which the department 
has departed, the nature of the departure and the reason for departure.

25 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior 
reporting period but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first 
time in the current reporting period.  Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves 
when identified in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue 
Fund when the underlying asset is disposed and the related funds are received.
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30 Employee benefits

The value of each major class of employee benefit obligation (accruals, payables not 
recognised and provisions) is disclosed in the Employee benefits note.

26 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous 
financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year.  Amounts 
are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when recovered or are 
transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

27 Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the 
reporting entity and a related party. Related party transactions within the Minister’s portfolio 
are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s 
length. 

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility 
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the department. The number of 
individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the financial statements.
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  1. Annual Appropriation 

1.1  Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National Departments (Voted funds) and Provincial Departments:

2016/17 2015/16

Final Appropriation
Actual Funds 

Received

Funds not 
requested/not 

received
Final Appropriation

Appropriation 
received

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 232 386 232 386 - 378 567 378 567
Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation 133 554 133 554 - 113 437 113 437
Institutional Development and Organisational  
Support 161 679 161 679 - 179 668 179 713
Total 527 619 527 619 - 671 672 671 717
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2. Departmental revenue 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 169 175
Sales of capital assets 2.2 330 283
Transactions in financial assets and liabilities 2.3 3 180
Total revenue collected 502 638
Less: Own revenue included in appropriation 19 277 264
Departmental revenue collected 225 374

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

Note 2016/17 2015/16

2 R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the 
department 169 175

Other sales 169 175
Total 169 175

2.2 Sale of capital assets

Note 2016/17 2015/16

2 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 330 283

Machinery and equipment 28 330 283
Total 330 283

Cash received from sale of Premier’s vehicle amounting to R0.330m

2.3 Transactions in financial assets and liabilities

Note 2016/17 2015/16

2 R’000 R’000

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 3 180
Total 3 180

 
3. Aid assistance 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Opening Balance 1 792 1 784
As restated 1 792 1 784
Transferred from statement of financial performance 490 8
Closing Balance 2 282 1 792

3.1 Analysis of balance by source

2016/17 2015/16

Note R’000 R’000

Aid assistance from RDP 3 2 282 1 792
Closing balance 2 282 1 792
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3.2  Analysis of balance

2016/17 2015/16

Note R’000 R’000

Aid assistance unutilised 3 2 282 1 792
Closing balance 2 282 1 792

4. Compensation of employees

4.1 Salaries and Wages

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Basic salary 162 574 150 510
Performance award 4 074 2 300
Service Based 227 120
Compensative/circumstantial 5 732 5 044
Other non-pensionable allowances 43 919 40 293
Total 216 526 198 267

4.2  Social contributions

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Employer contributions

Pension 19 103 18 552
Medical 6 412 6 200
UIF 258 11
Bargaining council 25 26
Total 25 798 24 789

Total compensation of employees 242 324 223 056

Average number of employees                     
403 

                   
411 

               
5. Goods and services 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Administrative fees 555 655

Advertising 7 195 5 025

Minor assets 5.1 508 157

Bursaries (employees) 276 399

Catering 8 424 6 333

Communication 4 262 6 725

Computer services 5.2 77 913 62 551

Consultants: Business and advisory services 29 625 22 702

Legal services 3 957 1 426
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Contractors 3 662 7 481

Agency and support / outsourced services 9 384 2 487

Audit cost – external 5.3 4 117 3 960

Fleet services 1 477 1 137

Consumables 5.4 2 120 1 819

Operating leases - 1 075

Property payments 5.5 126 50
Transport provided as part of the departmental 
activities 2 179 931

Travel and subsistence 5.6 18 199 15 663

Venues and facilities 4 270 3 988

Training and development 1 588 2 136

Other operating expenditure 5.7 2 225 2 325

Total 182 062 149 025

5.1 Minor assets

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 508 157
Machinery and equipment 508 157

Total                                                                                                      508                   157
8                                                                                                                                    

5.2 Computer services

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

SITA computer services

External computer service providers 76 448 61 237

1 465 1 314
Total 77 913 62 551

5.3 Audit cost – External

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 4 117 3 960
Total 4 117 3 960

5.4  Consumables

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

Consumable supplies 854 935
Uniform and clothing 13 156
Household supplies 538 66
IT consumables 9 8
Other consumables 294 705

Stationery, printing and office supplies 1 266 884
Total 2 120 1 819
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5.5 Property payments

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

Property payments on maintenance and repairs - 42

Other 126 8
Total 126 50

5.6 Travel and subsistence

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

Local 17 160 15 141
Foreign 1 039 522
Total 18 199 15 663

5.7 Other operating expenditure

Note 2016/17 2015/16

5 R’000 R’000

Professional bodies, membership and subscription 
fees 40 46
Resettlement costs 28 555
Other 2 157 1 724
Total 2 225 2 325

6. Interest and rent on land 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

6 R’000 R’000

Interest paid - 3
Total - 3

 
 
7.             Payments for financial assets

Note 2016/17 2015/16

 R’000 R’000

Debts written off 7.1 35 -
Total 35 -

7.1 Debts written off

Note 2016/17 2015/16

7 R’000 R’000

Nature of debts written off

Staff debts 35 -

Total debt written off 35 -
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 8. Transfers and Subsidies

2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Note

Provinces and municipalities Annex 1A - 2
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1B 43 811 74 296
Higher education institutions Annex 1C 24 834 16 330
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1D - 170 000
Households Annex 1E 4 384 3 182
Total 73 029 263 810

Unspent funds transferred to the above beneficiaries 

ECSECC 3 097 4 712
SAMSA 3 247 -
ECRDA 2 822 1 625
Total 9 166 6 337

 
R37.011m was transferred to ECSECC during 2016/17 financial year, R3.097m was 
unspent, R3.247m was transferred to SAMSA during 2016/17 financial year, R3.247m 
was unspent and R3.553m was transferred to ECRDA during 2016/17 financial year, 
R2.822m was unspent.      

9. Expenditure for capital assets

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 8 853 8 605
Machinery and equipment 29 8 853 8 605

Intangible assets - 387
Software 30 - 387

Total 8 853 8 992

 
9.1  Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2016/17

Voted funds Aid 
assistance

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 8 853 - 8 853
Machinery and equipment 8 853 - 8 853

Total 8 853 - 8 853
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9.2  Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2015/16

Voted funds Aid 
assistance

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 8 605 - 8 605

Machinery and equipment 8 605 - 8 605

Intangible assets 387 - 387

Software 387 - 387

Total 8 992 - 8 992
 

9.3 Finance lease expenditure included in Expenditure for capital assets

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Tangible assets

Machinery and equipment 7 283 7 468

Total 7 283 7 468

 
10. Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 20 477 26 902
Cash receipts - 1
Investments (Domestic) 2 282 2 491
Total 22 759 29 394

              
 
 11. Prepayments and advances

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Prepayments (Not expensed) 11.2 2 059 94
Advances paid (Not expensed) 11.1 1 489 2 621
Total 3 548 2 715



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report

OFFICE OF THE PREMIER
VOTE

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2017

216

11.1 Advances paid (Not expensed)

Note 2016/17 2015/16

11 R’000 R’000

Public entities  1 489  2 621 

Total 1 489 2 621

11.2   Prepayments (Not expensed)

Note 2016/17 2015/16

11 R’000 R’000

Goods and services 2 059 94
Total 2 059 94

   
12              Receivables

2016/17 2015/16
Current Non-

current
Total Current Non-

current
Total

Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Claims 
recoverable 12.1 & Annex 3 3 426 - 3 426 120 - 120
Recoverable 
expenditure 12.3 9 - 9 - - -
Staff debt 12.4 536 104 640 463 143 606
Total 3 971 104 4 075 583 143 726

 
 

 
12.1 Claims recoverable 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

12 R’000 R’000

Provincial departments 3 426 120

Total 3 426 120

12.2 Recoverable expenditure     
              (disallowance accounts)

Note 2016/17 2015/16

12 R’000 R’000

Tax Debt 9 -

Total 9 -

12.3 Staff debt

Note 2016/17 2015/16

12 R’000 R’000

Staff debt 640 606

Total 640 606
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14. Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the Revenue   
 Fund

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 16 15
Prior period error 14.1 - -
As restated 16 15
Transfer from Statement of Financial 
Performance (as restated) 225 374
Own revenue included in appropriation 277 264
Paid during the year (504) (637)
Closing balance 14 16

               
15. Payables – current

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Advances received 15.1 6 637 4 050
Clearing accounts 15.2 133 191
Total 6 770 4 241

12.4 Impairment of receivable

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Estimate of impairment of receivables 25 25
Total 25 25

               
 
13. Voted funds to be surrendered to the  
 Revenue Fund

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 26 786 5 061
Prior period error 13.2 - -
As restated 26 786 5 061
Transfer from statement of financial 
performance (as restated) 21 316 26 786
Voted funds not requested/not received 1.1 - 45
Paid during the year (26 786) (5 106)
Closing balance 21 316 26 786
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 16. Net cash flow available from operating activities

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial 
Performance 22 031 27 168
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed op-
erating activities (20 143) 7 251
(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current (3 349) 1 491
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances (833) (596)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets - -
Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 2 529 3 081
Proceeds from sale of capital assets (330) (283)
Proceeds from sale of investments -
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets - -
Expenditure on capital assets 8 853 8 992
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (27 290) (5 743)
Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor - -
Voted funds not requested/not received - 45
Own revenue included in appropriation 277 264
Net cash flow generated by operating activities 1 888 34 419

          

15.1 Advances received

Note 2016/17 2015/16

15 R’000 R’000

National departments 1 206 4 050
Provincial departments 5 431 -
Other institutions - -
Total 6 637 4 050

Prepayments and advances disclosed mainly relates to the expenses incurred for the 
contracts that require an advanced payment before services can be rendered and the re-
mainder relates to the prior year contracts where services have actually been rendered in 
the current year.

15.2 Clearing accounts

Note 2016/17 2015/16

15 R’000 R’000

Description

Clearing accounts 133 191
Total 133 191
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18. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

18.1 Contingent liabilities

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000

Nature

Housing loan guarantees-employees Annex 2 62 -
Claims against the department Annex 3 4 732 3 081
Intergovernmental payables (unconfirmed 
balances) 

Annex 4
- 1 483

Total 4 794 4 564

18.2  Contingent    
        assets

                  Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Nature of contingent asset

Claim by the department  
  

250 250

Total 250 250

17. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account 20 477 26 902
Cash receipts - 1
Cash with commercial banks (Local) 2 282 2 491
Total 22 759 29 394
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  19. Commitments

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Current expenditure

Approved and contracted 88 141 153 216
Approved but not yet contracted 115 488 464

203 629 153 680
Capital expenditure

Approved and contracted - -
Approved but not yet contracted - -

-
Total Commitments 203 629 153 680

Commitments includes contracts that extend to 31 March 2018 amount to R12.2m. Office 
of the Premier indicated participation in RT 15-2016 arrange by National Treasury. The 
contract commenced on 15 September 2016 until 31 August 2020.  Office of the Premier 
was migrated effectively from 01 May 2017.  The cost per month will vary depending on 
the usage and will be reviewed every 3 months. (Vodacom).      
 

 20. Accruals and payables not recognised

20.1 Accruals

2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ 
Days

Total Total

Goods and services 17 473 12 011 29 484 11 426
Transfers and 
subsidies

- - -
249

Other 367 - 367 354

Total 17 840 12 011 29 851 12 029

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level

Administration 28 119 3 361
Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring 
and Evaluation

1 077 712

Institutional Development and 
Organisational  Support

655 6 512

Executive Support - 1 444
Total 29 851 12 029

Accruals mainly relate to service rendered in March 2017 and will be paid in 
the next month
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Note 2016/17 2015/16

Included in the above totals are the following: R’000 R’000

Confirmed balances with other departments Annex 
4

- 324

Total - 324

  21. Employee benefits

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 9 235 6 897
Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 5 816 5 884
Other - -
Total 15 051 12 781

At 31 March 2017 there were 3 outstanding PILLIR applications at year end 
amounting to R0.104m. 

20.2 Payables not recognised

2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classification

30 Days 30+ 
Days

Total Total

Goods and services 4 719 289 5 008 372
Capital assets - - - 39
Other 881 - 881 251
Total 5 600 289 5 889 662

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level

Administration 3 498 509
Planning, Policy Coordination, Monitoring and 
Evaluation

725
102

Institutional Development and Organisational  
Support

1 666
19

Executive Support - 32
Total 5 889 662

Other payables mainly relate to service rendered in the March 2017 and the invoices 
received in March 2017 and be paid in the next month
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22. Lease commitments

22.1 Operating leases expenditure

2016/17

Machinery and equipment

Total

Not later than 1 year 73 73
Later than 1 year and not later than 
5 years - -
Total lease commitments 73 73

2015/16

Machinery and equipment

Total

Not later than 1 year 821 821
Later than 1 year and not later than 
5 years - -
Total lease commitments 821 821

22.2 Finance leases expenditure**

2016/17

Machinery and equipment

  

Total

Not later than 1 year 6 398 6 398
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2 520 2 520
Total lease commitments 8 918 8 918

2015/16

Machinery and equipment

Total

Not later than 1 year 6 266 6 266
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 7 054 7 054
Total lease commitments 13 320 13 320
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The finance leases relate to printers and photocopies, government fleet and cellular 
phones.

Cellular phones: The service level agreement allows for the renewal of the lease and 
does not include any escalation clauses. 

Printers and photocopy machines: The service level agreement allows for the renewal 
of the lease and does not include any escalation clauses.

Restrictions imposed on the department relate to repairs and maintenance, disposal 
and sub leasing of assets.

Fleet :The service level agreement with department of transport  is in place for an indef-
inite period and includes the review of the rates on an annual basis in terms of National 
Treasury Regulations (19.5.3).Restrictions relate to repairs and maintenance ,disposals 
enhancement and sub-leasing.

23. Irregular expenditure

23.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 4 410 1 412
Prior period error - -
As restated 4 410 1 412
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to prior year - 32
Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 3 909 2 966
Closing balance 8 319 4 410

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age 
classification
Current year 3 909 2 966
Prior years 4 410 1 444
Total 8 319 4 410

23.2 Details of irregular expenditure – added current year (relating to current and  
 prior years)

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/
criminal proceedings

2016/17

R’000

Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 95
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 90
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 under investigation 443
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 442
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 90
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 269
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 under investigation 295
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 8
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 159
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 111
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 167
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 174
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 164
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 under investigation 148
Non-compliance with PPPFA under investigation 368
Non-compliance with TR 16A6.4 under investigation 886
Total                  3 909 
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 24.3 Analysis of Current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Incident Disciplinary steps taken/
criminal proceedings

2016/17

R’000
Penalty fee Under investigation 2
Accommodation cancellation Under investigation 1
Supplier catered for 10 only 9 attended Under investigation 7
Traffic fine Under investigation 1
SMSs not attended the training Under investigation 54
Officials not attended training Under investigation 15
Officials not attended training Under investigation 14
Meeting was postponed Under investigation 3
Traffic fine Under investigation 1
Total

 
                      

98 
The functionality of certain intangible ICT assets could not be immediately verified at year-end. 
An investigation on these assets is underway and could possibly affect the figure disclosed 
as fruitless and wasteful expenditure, although this cannot be immediately confirmed nor can 
it be quantified at this stage.

The above relates to interest paid on accounts paid late, traffic fines, late cancellation fee 
charged and non-attendance of training.

24. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

24.1 Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 11 -
Prior period error - -
As restated 11 -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to prior 
year 1 912 -
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to cur-
rent year 98 15
Less: Amounts resolved - -
Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery 15.6 - (4)
Closing balance 2 021 11

 24.2 Analysis of awaiting resolution per economic classification

2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Current 98  11
Total 98 11
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27.       Provisions

Note 2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

 Performance Awards 3 850 3 503

 Capped Leave Commitments 13 535 15 023
Total 17 385 18 526

27.1  Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2016/17

Performance 
Bonus

Capped leave 
Commitments

Total 
provisions

R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 3 503 15 023 18 526
Increase in provision 347 - 347
Settlement of provision - (1 488) (1 488)
Closing balance 3 850 13 535 17 385

27.2  Reconciliation of movement in provisions – 2015/16

 Performance 
Bonus   Capped Leave  Inter-Entity 

Total 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Opening balance 2 970 15 257 2 174 20 401
Increase in provision 533 - - 533
Settlement of 
provision - (234) (2 174)

(2 408)

Closing balance 3 503 15 023 - 18 526

 25. Related party transactions

All Departments within the province are related to the Office of the Premier, in particular 
the following are disclosed:

 ECSECC – a Public Entity reporting to the Office of Premier, 

European Union - Rural and urban livelihoods (RULIV) - SURUDEC, 

ECRDA -  a Public Entity where Office of the Premier transferred funds for certain proj-
ects 

The Eastern Cape Department Roads and Public Works – For the use of buildings, 

The Eastern Cape Department of Education – For which the Office of the Premier en-
tered into certain transactions as part of the Premier’s intervention.

The Eastern Cape Department of Transport – For the lease of the fleet.
 
 
26. Key management personnel

No. of 
Individuals

2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Political office bearers (provide detail 
below) 1 2 173 2 235
Officials:

Level 15 to 16 8 11 767 13 032
Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 19 21 454 15 227

Total 35 394 30 494
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Other machinery and 
equipment

2 290 - - 2 290

TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

26 658 1 570 (1 097) 27 131

Movable Tangible Capital Assets under investigation
Number Value 

R’000

Included in the above total of the movable tangible 
capital assets per the asset register are assets that 
are under investigation:
Machinery and equipment 191 2 725

During the verification of assets it could not be ascertained whether these 
assets exist. The department is finalising its own process of investigation 
and appropriate corrective actions will be taken during the 2017/18 
financial year.  

 29.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR 
THE YEAR     ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Cash* (Capital Work in Progress 
current costs and finance 

lease payments)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 8 853 ( 7 283) 1 570

The capped leave Provision is estimated based on the current number 
of capped leave days outstanding and the notch at year end (Capped 
leave means leave due to employees as at and including  30 June 2000)
The performance award are estimated based on 1.5% of the budgeted 
compensation of employees in line with the PMDS policy.

28.  Non-adjusting events after reporting date

2016/17

Nature of event R’000

Orders decommitted at year end 245

Surudec transferred to Provincial Revenue 2 282
Debts written off 55

Total 2 582

29.        Movable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET 
REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT

26 658 1 570 (1 097) 27 131

Transport assets 1 097 - (1 097) -
Computer equipment 10 167 1 165 - 11 332
Furniture and office 
equipment

13 104 405 - 13 509
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29.3 Movement for 2015/16

MOVEMENT IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Opening 
balance

Prior 
period 

error

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT 26 064 - 1 137 543 26 658
Transport assets 1 097 - - - 1 097
Computer equipment 9 307 - 1 104 244 10 167
Furniture and office 
equipment 13 370 - 33 299 13 104
Other machinery and 
equipment 2 290 - - - 2 290

TOTAL MOVABLE 
TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

26 064 - 1 137 543 26 658

Transport assets 1 477 (1 477) -
Computer equipment 1 165 - 1 165
Furniture and office equipment 405 - 405
Other machinery and equipment 5 806 (5 806) -

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

8 853 (7 283) 1 570

29.2 Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET 
REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Sold for 
cash

Non-cash 
disposal

Total 
disposals

Cash 
Received 

Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND 
EQUIPMENT

330 767 1 097 330

Transport assets 330 767 1 097 330

TOTAL DISPOSAL OF 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

330 767 1 097 330

Cash received from sale of Premier’s vehicle amounting to R0.330m
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29.4 Minor assets

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

MOVEMENT IN MINOR ASSETS PER THE ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

    Machinery and    Total
                        equipment
        R’000   R’000
Opening balance    7 317   7 317
Prior period error                       -           -
Additions        508      508
Disposals                        -                                          - 
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS                   7 825    7 825

Number of R1 minor assets
Number of minor  assets at cost                   5 320   5 320
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 5 320   5 320

Minor Capital Assets under investigation
      Number  Value
        R’000 

Included in the above total of the minor capital 
assets per the asset register are assets
 that are under investigation: 
Machinery and equipment     531   456

During the verification of assets it could not be ascertained whether these minor 
assets exist. The department is finalising its own process of investigation and 
appropriate corrective actions will be taken during the 2017/18 financial year. 

    Machinery and    Total
                        equipment
        R’000   R’000
Opening balance    7 761    7 761
Prior period error                       -           -
Additions          156      156
Disposals                  (600)                                   (600) 
TOTAL MINOR ASSETS                    7 317     7 317 

Number of minor  assets at cost                   4 795   4 795
TOTAL NUMBER OF MINOR ASSETS 4 795   4 795
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During the verification of assets it could not be ascertained whether software 
relating to disaster recovery and EDMS is functioning.  This software has been 
summarised as being under investigation in progress. After the investigation, 
which is expected to be completed after the year end, the necessary adjustment 
will be made and corrective action will be instituted by the department.

30.1 Movement for 2015/16

Opening 
balance

Additions Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000

SOFTWARE
5 875

                    
387 6 262

PATENTS, LICENCES, 
COPYRIGHT, BRAND NAMES, 
TRADEMARKS 1 098                         - 1 098

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS 6 973                    387 7 360

30. Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

SOFTWARE - - - 6 262

PATENTS, 
LICENCES, 
COPYRIGHT, 
BRAND 
NAMES, 
TRADEMARKS

- - - 1 098

TOTAL 
INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL 
ASSETS

- - - 7 360

Intangible Capital Assets under investigation
Number Value

R’000

Included in the above total of the intangi-
ble capital assets per the asset register 
are assets that are under investigation:
Software 16 4 350
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During the verification of assets it could not be ascertained whether some immovable 
assets are functioning. These assets has been summarised as under investigation.  After 
the investigation, which is expected to be completed after the year end, the necessary 
adjustment will be made and corrective action will be instituted by the department. 

31.1 Movement for 2015/16

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Opening 
balance

Prior period 
error

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND 
OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES

69 679 - - - 69 679

Other fixed structures 69 679 - - - 69 679

TOTAL 
IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

69 679 - - - 69 679

31. Immovable Tangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Opening 
balance

Value 
adjustments

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS 
AND OTHER 
FIXED 
STRUCTURES

69 679 - - - 69 679

Other fixed 
structures

69 679 - - - 69 679

69 679 - - - 69 679

Immovable Tangible Capital Assets under investigation

Number Value

R’000

Included in the above total of the immovable tangible 
capital assets per the asset register are assets that are 
under investigation:
Buildings and other fixed structures 81 3 947
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ANNEXURE 1A

STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS AND OTHER TRANSFERS PAID TO MUNICIPALITIES

Name of Municipality

Grant Allocation Transfer Spent 2015/16

DoRA 
and other 
transfers

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer
Funds 

Withheld

Re-
allocations 
by National 

Treasury 
or National 

Depart-ment

Amount 
received 

by 
munici-pality

Amount  
spent by 

municipality

% of  
available 

funds 
spent by 
munici-
pality

Division 
of 

Revenue 
Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 % R’000

Buffalo City - - - - - - - - - - 5
Bitou Local  - - - - - - - - - - 1
Total - - - - - - - - - - 6
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NNEXURE 1B

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND ACCOUNTS

Department/ Agency/ Account

Transfer Allocation Transfer 2015/16
Adjusted

Appro-priation

Roll 
Overs

Adjust-ments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available funds 

Transferred
Appro-priation Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
ECSECC 37 011 - - 37 011 37 011 100% 43 737
NSFAS - - - - - - 15 998
ECRDA 3 553 - - 3 553 3 553 100% 14 562
SAMSA 3 247 - - 3 247 3 247 100% -
Total 43 811 - - 43 811 43 811 - 74 297
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ANNEXURE 1C

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HIGHER EDUCATION INSTITUTIONS

Name of Higher Education 
Institution

Transfer Allocation Transfer 2015/16
Adjusted

Appropriation

Roll 
Overs

Adjust-ments
Total 

Available

Actual

Transfer

Amount not 
transferred

% of 
Available funds 

Transferred

Appro-priation 
Act 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000

Nmmu 

Rhodes 

Wsu 

Fort Hare 

North West 

Cape Town 

Stellenbosch 

Cape Peninsula 

Pretoria 

Western Cape 

Wits 

4 066

1 492

8 766

6 830

80

1 830

1 000

80

130

80

480

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4 066

1 492

8 766

6 830

80

1 830

1 000

80

130

80

480

4 066

1 492

8 766

6 830

80

1 830

1 000

80

130

80

480

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2 983

1 338

6 190

5 819
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-
Total 24 834 - - 24 834 24 834 - - 16 330
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ANNEXURE 1D

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO PUBLIC CORPORATIONS AND PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

NAME OF PUBLIC 
CORPORATION/PRIVATE 
ENTERPRISE

Transfer Allocation Expenditure 2015/16
Adjusted

Appro-
priation Act

Roll 
Overs

Adjustments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available 

funds 
Transferred

 
Capital

Current
Appro-

priation Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000 R’000 R’000
Public Corporations

Transfers

ESKOM - - - - - - - - 160 000

Total - - - - - - - - 160 000

Private Enterprises

Transfers

VWSA Skills development private 
enterprise 

- - - - - - - - 10 000

Total - - - - - - - - 10 000

Total - - - - - - - - 170 000
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ANNEXURE 1E

STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

 
Households

Transfer Allocation Expenditure 2015/16
Adjusted

Appro-priation 
Act

Roll 
Overs

Adjust-ments
Total 

Available
Actual 

Transfer

% of 
Available funds 

Transferred

Appro-priation 
Act

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 % R’000
Transfers

Leave Gratuity 

Severance Package 

Injury on Duty 

Bursaries non-employees 

Other households 

2 653

749

23

103

856

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2 653

749

23

103

856

2 653

749

23

103

856

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

1 890

864

9

-

419

4 384 - - 4 384 4 384 3 182

Total 4 384 - - 4 384 4 384 3 182
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ANNEXURE 1F

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

Name of Organisation Nature of Gift, Donation or Sponsorship
2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Received in cash

Mtn 10 laptops 60 -
Old mutual Accessories - 6
Standard Bank Sponsorship for 30 Eastern Cape top performing 2016 grade 12 students(R5 000) 150 -

Subtotal 210 6

Total 210 6
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ANNEXURE 1H

STATEMENT OF AID ASSISTANCE RECEIVED

Name Of Donor Purpose Opening Balance Revenue Expendi-Ture
Paid Back On/By 31 

March Closing Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Received in cash

     

European Union
Rural Livelihoods 
Development 1 792 499 9 - 2 282

     
     
 Subtotal  1 792 499 9 - 2 282
     
Total 1 792 499 9 - 2 282
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ANNEXURE 1I

STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS MADE 

Nature of Gift, Donation or Sponsorship

(Group major categories but list material items including name of organisation

2016/17 2015/16

R’000 R’000

Made in kind

Local and foreign 41 29
Staff 18 -
Communities 881 516
Total 940 545
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ANNEXURE 2A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 – LOCAL

Guarantor 
institution

Guarantee in 
respect of

Original 
guaranteed 

capital 
amount

Opening 
balance 

1 April 2016

Guarantees 
draw downs

during the 
year

Guarantees 
repayments/ 
cancelled/ 
reduced/ 
released 

during the year

Revaluations

Closing 
balance

31 March 2017

Guaranteed 
interest for 

year ended 31 
March 2017

Realised 
losses not 

recoverable i.e. 
claims paid out

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Housing

ABSA 62 62 - - - 62 - -

Subtotal 62 62 - - - 62 - -

Total 62 62 - - - 62 - -
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ANNEXURE 2B

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

Nature of Liability

Opening Balance Liabilities incurred during 
the year

Liabilities cancelled during 
the year

Liabilities recoverable 
(Provide details hereunder)

Closing Balance

1 April 2016 31 March 2017
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Claims against the 
department

   

Contractual Disputes 3 081 1 651 - - 4 732
    

 Subtotal 3 081 1 651 - - 4 732

   
      
Total 3 081 1 651 - - 4 732
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ANNEXURE 3

CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

Government Entity
Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding Total
31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Department
Department of Education - - 2 432 - 2 432 -
Department of Economic Development - - - - - -
Department of Social Development - - 436 18 436 18
Department of Sports, Arts and Culture - - - - - -
Department of Tradional Affairs - - - - - -
Provincial Treasury - - - 13 450 - 13 450
Department of Transport - - 91 - 91 -
Office of the Premier: WC - - - 34 - 34
Office of the Premier:FS - - - 68 - 68
Department of Health - - 255 - 255 -
Roads and  Public Works - - 117 - 117 -
Human Settlement - - 94 - 94 -
 

Total - - 3 425 13 570 3 425 13 570
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ANNEXURE 4

INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

Government Entity
Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding Total

31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Departments 

Current

Department of Justice  -  32  -  1 483  -  1 515 
Department of Social Development & Special Programmes  -  1  - -  -  1 
Department of health  -  51  - -  -  51 
ECRDA  -  240  - -  -  240 

Total - 324 - 1 483 - 1 807
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ANNEXURE 5

INTER-ENTITY ADVANCES PAID 

Entity
Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding TOTAL
31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Public Entities

Public entities 1 489 2 621 - - 1 489 2 621

Total 1 489 2 621 - - 1 489 2 621
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ANNEXURE 6

INTER-ENTITY ADVANCES RECEIVED 

Entity

Confirmed balance outstanding Unconfirmed balance outstanding Total
31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016 31/03/2017 31/03/2016

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

National Departments
 Current

National departments 1 206 4 050 - - 1 206 4 050
 

Subtotal 1 206 4 050 - - 1 206 4 050

Provincial Departments

 Current

Provincial departments 5 431 - - - 5 431 -
 

Subtotal 5 431 - - - 5 431 -

Total 6 637 4 050 - - 6 637 4 050
   Current 6 637 4 050 - - 6 637 4 050
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ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

1.1 Improved institutionalisation of integrated planning

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	74% or less of departmental 5 year Strategic 

Plans are aligned to the PDP and P-MTSF;
	74% or less of departmental Annual 

Performance Plans and Operational/or 
Projects are aligned to the IGCP /PoA 

	All departments have 5 year Strategic Plan aligned to the PDP and P-MTSF and drafted in accordance with the 
relevant guidelines

	Annual Performance Plan and Operational/or Projects aligned to the PoA and drafted in accordance with the 
relevant guidelines 

	Delivery agreements of MEC aligned to the PoA and HoD agreement aligned to the APP
	Staff performance agreements aligned to the APP and APP and Ops Plans/Projects Plan 
	PoA must be ready and approved by March of every year 
	Draft P-MTSF must be ready and approved by year 4 of the strategic planning cycle
	Infrastructure Plans aligned to priorities
	Strategic Plans and APPs conforms to the planning regulations

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance 
Level

Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	75% or more of departmental 5 year Strategic 
Plans are aligned to the PDP and P-MTSF;

	75% or more of departmental Annual 
Performance Plan and Operational/or Projects 
are aligned to the IGCP /PoA

	Legislation to coordinate integrated planning in the province adopted
	Review of departmental plans done and departments given feedback by the 2nd quarter for 1st submission and 3rd 

quarter for the 2nd submission
	Review of IDPs at local government and feedback given by the third quarter annually
	Development of Provincial Spatial plan
	Projects in department spatially referenced and integrated with IDPs
	Infrastructure Plans of departments aligned with the PDP and IDPs
	Sector (Local Economic Development Plans, Education, Health Plans) aligned with IDPs
	The Provincial integrated skills plan is reviewed in line with the PDP and P-MTSF
	Registration of planners to professional bodies
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1.2 Improved evidence based decision making  

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	The Province does not have a research agenda or 
	Research agenda is not aligned to the PDP and 

P-MTSF

	Policy and programme analysis projects completed
	Research and development capacity developed 
	Research findings consumed and used to inform policy development and implementation and service 

delivery improvement interventions
	Knowledge database established and maintained
	Provincial Research forums re-established and functional

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	The Province has  a research agenda  and it is aligned 

to the PDP and P-MTSF
	Departmental research plans aligned to the agenda 
	Research conducted by institutions outside government are mainstreamed
	Develop and maintain protocols and processes for conducting research.
	Research activities on provincial and sector specific programmes that supports evidence based policy 

decisions
	Partnerships with all spheres of government, academia, research institutions and communities of 

practices.
	Structured processes to source funding to conduct research
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2.2 Improved interdepartmental coordination at all spheres 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Non coordination of strategic projects which results in delays 

in implementation
	Failure to support, monitor and report on key government 

projects and programmes
	No information on or database for strategic projects and pro-

grammes in the province

	Establish baseline data for:
o Basic Services (Electrification, Water and Sanitation)
o Premier’s Intervention Projects

	Collate, analyse and provide strategic reports
	Coordinate departments and stakeholders to participate in platforms that deal with strategic projects 

and programmes
	Facilitate and monitor the implementation  of strategic projects and programmes
	Facilitate and monitor implementation of KSD Presidential Intervention
	Development  and approval of indicator framework
	Develop data monitoring tools and reporting template
	Capacitation of M&E practitioners on data collection tools 
	 Ensure timely submission of complete data
	Conduct data verification
	Data analysis and report writing

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Strategic projects and programmes identified from the 

SONA, PDP, P-MTSF and SOPA
	Departments monitoring the implementation of strategic projects and programmes without the sup-

port from the OTP
	Dashboard of strategic projects and programmes and implementation status existent. 
	Conduct review session with sector departments
	Development of improvement plans
	Monitor the implementation of improvement plans
	Improved service delivery
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2.3 A responsiveness public service

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Government not responding to concerns of communi-

ties.
	Non-existence of mechanisms, processes and proce-

dures for managing community concerns.

	Effective mechanisms, processes and procedures for managing community and stakeholders concerns. 
	80% of community concerns addressed/responded to. 
	Improved government perception survey results. 
	Effective and functional mechanisms by departments to ensure that community concerns are addressed. 

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Poor management of mechanisms for managing com-

munity and stakeholder concerns.
	Ineffective mechanisms, processes and procedures for 

managing community and stakeholders concerns.  
	Poor response to concerns of communities and stake-

holders.

	100% community concerns are adequately responded to.
	Majority of the Citizens have confidence in government.
	Minimal service delivery protests.
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2.4 Improved access to quality services

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Lack of participation of citizens in monitoring 

government programmes.
	Non-existence of mechanisms for involving citizens 

in government programmes.
	Lack of plans to improve the quality of service 

delivery.
	Lack of involvement of departments and 

municipalities in implementation of service delivery 
monitoring. 

	No citizen satisfaction surveys conducted.

	Functional governance structures involving citizens.
	Participation of citizens in monitoring for improved service delivery.
	Annual front line service delivery monitoring plan fully implemented
	Departments and municipalities providing resources for the implementation of service delivery improvement 

plans
	Implementation of service delivery improvement plans for all targeted facilities fully monitored.
	Profiling of facilities demonstrating best practice
	Capacitation of  M&E / Research practitioners  
	Support departments in development of concept notes for evaluation
	Support evaluation processes
	Assess evaluation report from implementing departments 
	Develop improvement plans to influence policy review

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Non-functional governance structures involving 

citizens.
	Non-implementation of service delivery 

monitoring improvement plan by departments and 
municipalities.

	Under-resourced service delivery improvement 
plans.

	Limited involvement of departments and 
municipalities in implementation of service delivery 
improvement plans.

	An annual front line service delivery visit schedule 
developed and approved by the Department and the 
Department of Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation 
(DPME)

	Training for front line service delivery monitors 
coordinated

	Irregular conducting of citizen satisfaction survey.

	Departments and municipalities conducting their own service delivery monitoring for improved service deliv-
ery. 

	Departments and municipalities monitoring the implementation of service delivery improvement plans and 
sustaining improvements in the targeted facilities 

	Departments and municipalities meeting the required service delivery standards.
	All targeted facilities conducting regular citizen satisfaction surveys.
	Mapping up of  GIS to identify planning  need
	Review the POA/ Cluster plans and integrate with departmental APPs
	Spatial referencing of projects and integrate with IDP
	Development of an evidence based integrated cluster plans
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2.5 Improved skills development for economic growth

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Unemployed youth do not have access to skills 

development opportunities in the Province;
	Engineering and TVET/HET Students do not 

access workplaces to gain a qualification in their 
fields of study

	All departmental plans in place to host University of Technology (UOT) and TVET/HET students to gain work-
place experience;

	All Departments budget and plan for the placement of Interns;
	Municipalities place UOT and TVET/HET Students to gain workplace experience;
	Departments provide funding to students to access higher education;
	Office of the Premier train and coordinate the training of artisans;
	Office of the Premier mobilise funding towards the training of artisans;

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Limited funding available for young people to ac-

cess skills development opportunities;
	Workplaces are providing limited spaces to Engi-

neering and TVET/HET Students to gain workplace 
experience and gain their qualifications;

	No alignment with strategic economic development 
projects;

	Government departments do not plan for the 
placement of Students;

	UOT and TVET Students access workplaces within three months of completing their classroom learning;
	Workplaces are made available to students for selection before they complete their classroom learning;
	Artisan development programmes are aligned to economic development opportunities;
	Artisan development programmes are made available to students;
	Students who qualify get access to incubation programmes and start-up cooperatives and SMME’s;
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3.2 An inclusive and unified Provincial brand

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	The Provincial communication strategy is not 

aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts
	There no marketing and branding strategy for 

the Province
	Local government and departmental 

communication strategies of districts are not 
aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts 

	The Provincial and district communication 
coordinating structures are not functional

	Media communications is reactive 

	The Provincial and local government communication coordinating structures are functional  (HoC, Core Team and 
Clusters)

	The profiling of major government programmes
	Provincial Communications policy and protocols developed

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	The Provincial communication strategy is  

aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts
	There is an approved marketing and branding 

strategy for the Province
	Local government and departmental 

communication strategies of districts are 
aligned to the P-MTSF and other prescripts

	Increased pro-active  voice of government in media space 
	All major government engagements are profiled 
	Improved public confidence in government
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3.3 Improved social inclusion of designated groups 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Weak integration of social cohesion pro-

grammes across all spheres of government
	Public education on Constitutional rights and responsibilities are explained to citizens 
	The status of designated groups monitored to inform issues of service delivery 
	Intergenerational programmes coordinated to foster understanding
	Awareness programmes conducted with traditional leaders on protection of vulnerable groups
	Capacity building on specific issues that relate to vulnerable groups

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance 
Level

Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	An integrated need based programme of 
action developed for social cohesion 

	Reduction of crime perpetrated by people known to victims
	Reduction of crimes against vulnerable groups.
	Increased pride, patriotism  and active citizenship of Eastern Cape people



Office of the Premier                             2016/17 Annual Report256

ANNEXURE A: DEFINITION OF PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

3.4 Sound intergovernmental governance arrangements

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level

	No integrated planning between and within the 
spheres of government

	Duplication of efforts between different spheres of 
government

	IGR agenda is too operational and not strategic
	Weak participation by departments in the IDP 

processes
	Dysfunctional IGR structures

	Establishment of the implementation arm for the District IGR structures 
	The District IGR steering committee functional
	Establishment of functional district IGR structures
	Establishment of the implementation arm for the local IGR structures 
	The local IGR steering committee functional
	Establishment of functional local IGR structures
	Monitoring of the implementation  IGR decisions

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level

	Establishment of the IGR implementation arm for 
the Provincial IGR structures

	The Provincial IGR steering committee functional
	A functional Premier Co-ordinating function (sit-

ting at least twice per year)
	Improved IGR agenda

	Establishment of the implementation arm for the ward based IGR structures 
	The ward based IGR steering committee functional
	Establishment of functional ward based IGR structures
	Ward based plans developed and implemented 
	Common baselines being used for both provincial and local based planning
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3.5 Improved and meaningful participation of citizens in their own development

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	There is limited voice of communities in government integrated 

plans and programmes 
	Communities are not empowered to be able to sustain their 

own development
	Partnerships with sectors are still at  inception level and there-

fore resources are not fully mobilised 

	Monitoring the implementation of the stakeholder and community participation strategy
	Issues raised by communities and stakeholders find expression in  government integrated plans 

and programmes 
	Communities playing a role in monitoring service delivery

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	A strategy of stakeholder and community participation devel-

oped 
	Voice of communities and stakeholders feature in policies that are developed
	Community are empowered to be able to sustain their own development
	Partnerships are leveraged for service delivery (including mobilisation of resource)

 
 
4.7 Effective management and operations systems 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	74% or less of departments do not have documented and 

approved Standard Operating Procedures
	Provincial Departments have not identified the key service 

areas for Business Process Mapping

	Provincial Departments have concluded the “As-IS” and “TO-BE” process mapping
	Provincial Departments have concluded the Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for all 

identified key services areas

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	75% or more of departments have identified their key services 

areas for BPM
	Provincial Departments have conducted the phase one of 

BPM which include the mapping of “AS-IS” processes 

	Provincial Departments have completed the automation of Business Process Mapping
	All SOPs are fully implemented by all Provincial Departments (N.B.) this is a continuous process.
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4.8 Skilled public service 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Departments develop Workplace Skills Plans, but it is not 

aligned to the Strategic Plans of the Department;
	Departments do not develop HRD Implementation Plans;
	Line Function Managers/ Supervisors do not prioritise core/crit-

ical skills training of officials
	Departments do not budget for skills development programmes 

for their employees;
	Departments do not report quarterly on their skills development 

programmes;
	Departments do not work with Sector Education and training 

Authorities to implement skills programmes;
	Poor human resource planning to achieve core skills in most 

departments 
	Non-compliance regarding the skills development levy
	Inconsistency and unco-ordinated governance structures for 

HRD (Skill Development Committee) Oversight structure

	Departments develop Workplace Skills Plans that are aligned with the Core Business of the De-
partment;

	Departments develop HRD Implementation Plans that takes employees’ performance into account;
	Line Function Managers/ Supervisors prioritise core/critical skills training of officials
	Departments budget for skills development programmes for their employees;
	Departments report quarterly on their skills development programmes;
	Departments work with Sector Education and training Authorities to implement skills programmes 

to develop the skills in the sector;
	All departments implementing cross critical skills (transversal skills)
	Skills interventions are aligned to project and programme capacity needs;
	 Functional governance structures for HRD (Skills Development Committee) Oversight structure
	Officials complete the training interventions successfully;

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Departments develop Workplace Skills Plans, but it is not 

aligned to the Sector Development Plans;
	Departments do not consult Line Managers and Organised La-

bour in developing their HRD Plans;
	Line Function Managers/ Supervisors do not prioritise core/crit-

ical skills training of officials
	The WSP’s are not taking the Personal Development Plans of 

employees into account and is not considering performance 
outcomes;

	All departments developing plans future core skills through in-
ternships, work integrated learning, artisans, learnerships and 
bursaries

	WSP’s are developed to make the maximum impact on the performance of the employees and the 
department;

	There is a coordinated system in place;
	Information on key programmes are available to employees and youth;
	Capacity of employees is aligned to the core objectives of a department;
	All departments assessing the impact of training interventions;
	Performance of officials increase after the completion of training;
	Project performance improve service delivery;
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4.9 Professional public service.

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	74% or less of departments have approved culture change 

and Batho Pele revitalisation Plans 
	There is no Provincial framework for business process 

development

	All departments have approved Culture change and Batho Pele plans and or strategy
	The implementation of these plans is monitored;
	At least 10 Departments participating in the PSM Activities

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	75% or more of departments have approved culture change 

and Batho Pele Revitalisation Plans
	A Provincial business process framework and methodology 

are in draft form

	Management in all departments discusses implementation reports of Culture Change and Batho Pele 
Revitalisation

	At least 7 departments conducting customer satisfaction surveys
	At least 5 Departments participating in the Khaedu Deployment Programme
	Departments monitoring the Resolutions taken during PSM 

4.10 Improved human resource capacity and effectiveness

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	Dysfunctional HRA processes with not clear SoPs,
	No focus on strategic policy directives like EE,
	No HR forecasting and effectiveness assessments,
	Low levels of PMDS implementation,
	There is no engagements with social partners and no 

adherence to prescripts,
	Events-based Organizational and Employee Wellness 

programs not informed by Departmental needs.

	Functional HRA processes for targeted departments (sourcing, PILIR, HR planning, HR policies, HR 
delegations,

	Full compliance with EE requirements, 
	PMDS utilised as operations improvement tool
	Structured and efficient platforms of engagement between management and unions as well as 

adherence to prescripts,
	Needs-based and Results-based EHW Programmes are implemented in departments
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Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Partially functional HRA processes with not clear SoPs,
	No focus on strategic policy directives like EE,
	Incongruent HR forecasting and  limited effectiveness 

assessments,
	Low levels of PMDS implementation and focus only on 

rewards,
	There is no engagements with social partners and no 

adherence to prescripts,
	Partially events-based O&EW programs not informed by 

departmental needs.

	HR units fulfil their strategic partner role and contribute to the overall achievement of goals,
	Significantly improved processes in place to enhance administrative efficiencies,
	The level of conversation with social partners enhances the transformation agenda of the state
	PMDS is a service delivery improvement tool,
	Employee Health and Wellness is one of the key elements of a departmental People Management 

Strategy

 
 
4.11 Improved leadership capacity and accountability 

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	No Leadership Development Model in place;
	Leadership Development programmes are implemented 

based on individual demands;
	Competency Assessments take place without considering 

the needs of departments;
	Competency Assessments not conducted 
	No Leadership training reports from Departments 

	All SMS are properly inducted into the ECPA;
	Competency assessments conducted and the identified performance gaps are addressed
	Leadership Development Programmes implemented across all levels of leadership;
	Coaching and Mentoring Programmes implemented;
	Leadership competency model implemented;
	Reporting and analysis of Leadership Development programmes taking place

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Leadership Development Model in place;
	Leadership Development Programmes only target senior 

management;
	Competency Assessments conducted at appointment
	Leadership training reports not addressing performance 

gaps

	Leadership Programmes are completed successfully by all participants;
	Coherent Leadership culture in place across all supervisory levels;
	No audit queries on finance and performance management;
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4.12 Improved integrity in the public service

Level 1: Unacceptable Performance Level Level 3: Acceptable Performance Level
	There are 171 backlog cases dating back to 2005 owing to 

limited investigative capacity
	There is limited investigative capacity in the Province 
	Anti-corruption policies have not been customised in 

departments 

	All departments have anti-fraud and corruption policies
	All departments have Minimum Anti-Corruption Capacity (MACC)
	Monitoring of the implementation of anti-fraud and corruption programme 
	Provincial Anti-corruption structures are functional 
	Increased awareness on fraud and corruption 
	Improved whistle blowers reporting mechanism
	Level of collaboration with other LEA exists

Level 2: Towards Acceptable Performance Level Level 4: Efficiency Performance Level
	Clear all backlog cases dating back to 2005
	More than half of departments have fraud and anti-

corruption policies
	More than half of departments and district municipalities 

have anti-fraud and corruption minimum capacity

	Case Management System functioning optimally 
	Reduced fraud and corruption incidences in the Province
	Improved ethical culture
	Improved collaboration between the OTP and law enforcement agencies 
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